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Annual Report

For the year ended 30 June 2019

The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd. is committed to
making sustainability an integral part to continually enable
the people in good health for better life, improving the
environmental and social performance through mainstream
operations of health services ensuring availability of quality
medicines which we commonly refer to as our corporate
footprint.

The sustainability strategy articulates the company strategic
commitment to sustainable development and is an integral
part of our approach to a healthy life for human being as a
whole.

The company priority as a good corporate citizen is to earn
money in ethical manner that is both socially and
ecologically responsible and of course, sustainable.



Letter of Transmittal

To

The Valued Shareholders,

Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission,
Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited and

Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited

Disclosure of Annual Report for the year ended 30 June 2019.

Dear Sir(s)

Enclosed please find a copy of the Annual Report together with the Audited Statement
of Financial Position as at 30 June, 2019 and the Statement of Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30
June 2019 along with the notes thereon of The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd.
for your kind information and record.

Thank you,

Yours sincerely,

MM

Md. Shahid Farooqui, FCS
Company Secretary 0

Dated: 19 September 2019
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Notice

& )
(2, The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd.
i#nswa  Tanin Center, 3 Asad Gate, Mirpur Road, Mohammadpur, Dhaka-1207

NOTICE OF THE 35th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 35th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Shareholders of The IBN SINA
Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd. will be held on 14 November, Thursday, 2019 at 9 : 30 AM at Emmanuelle's
Convention Center, Shimanto Square Market (Rifles Square), 5th Floor, Dhanmondi, Dhaka to transact the
following business:

AGENDA

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the year ended
30 June 2019 together with the Auditors' Report and Directors' Report thereon.

To approve proposed Dividend for the year 2018-19.

To appoint Statutory Auditors for the financial year 2019-20 and to fix-up their remuneration.

To appoint Compliance Auditors for the financial year 2019-20 and to fix-up their remuneration.
Election of Directors.

To approve the investment in the associate company, "The Ibn Sina Consumer Products Ltd."

ogkwN

The respected shareholders of the Company are requested to attend the meeting in time.

By order of the Board

Dated : N L

19 September 2019 (Md. Shahid Farooqui, FCS)
Company Secretary

Notes:

a. Record Date : 14 October, Monday, 2019.

b. The shareholders whose names will appear in the Share Register of the Company or Depository Register
(CDBL) on the Record Date 14 October, Monday, 2019 respectively are eligible to attend and vote in the
AGM and entitled to the dividend.

c. A member entitled to attend and vote in the Annual General Meeting may appoint proxy to attend and

vote in his/her stead. 07

d. Proxy Form must be affixed with the revenue stamp of Tk. 20.00 and should be deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company at least 48 hours before the scheduled time of the meeting.

e. Annual Report, Attendance Slip, Proxy Form and Notice of the 35th Annual General Meeting has been
sent to the shareholders by post. Annual Report and Proxy Form will also be available at the Registered
Office of the Company.

-

The shareholders are requested to register their names within 10.30 AM in the concerned counter at AGM date.

No arrangement of any type of gift/food will be made in the 35th AGM as per
direction given by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC)

Annual Report 2018-19
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The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd.
was recognized and accorded with Award in
the Food Allied and Pharmaceutical
Companies category at the ICSB National
Award 2013, 2015, 2016 and 2017 for
Corporate Governance Excellence. Our
strong promise, determination and practice
in adopting Global Best Practices in
Corporate Governance rendered this success.

We thank all our patrons and stakeholders
for their valued cooperation and
acknowledge their contributions in achieving
this milestone.



Certificate of
Appreciation 15th ICAB
National Award for
Best Presented
Annual Report-2014

Gold Award in the
Food Allied and
Pharmaceutical

Companies Category
from ICSB for Corporate
Governance Excellence
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2017

Silver Award
in the Food Allied
and Pharmaceutical
Companies Category
from ICSB for Corporate
Governance Excellence

Gold Award (3rd time)
in the Food Allied and

Pharmaceutical Companies

Category from ICSB
for Corporate
Governance Excellence

Gold Award (2nd time)
in the Food Allied and

Pharmaceutical Companies

Category from ICSB
for Corporate
Governance Excellence
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Corporate Award
(Certificate of Merit)
in 2012 for publication

of best Annual Report 2011
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/ision |

IBN SINA's vision is to become a premier specialty pharmaceutical
company, with a balanced focus in complementary therapeutic areas. Our
primary responsibility lies towards the people of Bangladesh and ultimate
responsibility towards humanity at large.

A public limited company working for the nation as a whole with

pertinacious incitement and firm determination to ensure the quality and
10 ethical standing attributing the sustainable growth and development to

serve the mankind.

Board-approved vision and mission statements of the company
The Board of Directors, at its 45th meeting redefined the

Company's vision and mission. We are driving towards our vision.

Annual Report 2018-19




This forward looking statement predicts our outlook to the future
actions as expectations or possibilities. Information in the Annual
Report reveals management's thinking and views based on commercial
operation, business and economy during the year under review and
future events and its proposition. However, these statements do not
give assurance against certain risks and uncertainties. Therefore, actual
future outcome and trends forecasted in the enterprising statements

may differ significantly due to the following reasons:

4

Changes in national, economic and financial conditions;

Changes in Government policy issues;

Fluctuations in international prices which influence
the foreign exchange market;

Unpredictability of capital market;

Changes in corporate tax structure and VAT in
Pharmaceutical sector;

Changes in the competitive markets of the country;

Instability in capital market arising;

Sudden Ecological and Demographical changes;

Inconsistency of the factors regarding Market
Competitors Suppliers and Pricing.

@7

Forward

Looking
Statement
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Corporate Management

— Board of Directors Company Secretary

Shah Abdul Hannan Chairman Md. Shahid Farooqui, FCS

Commodore (Retd.) M. A. Rahman Director and Chairman, Executive Committee

Prof. Dr. AK.M. Sadrul Islam Managing Director Chief Financial Officer

Prof. Dr. Choudhury Mahmood Hasan Director, Technical Md. Jasim Uddin, FCA

Kazi Harun-or-Rashid Director, Finance

Prof. AN.M.A. Zaher Director Head of Share Department

Md. Rafiqul Islam Khan, FCA Independent Director Md. Aminur Rahman Manir

Md. Abdus Salam, FCA, FCS Independent Director
Head of Internal Audit and Compliance
Abdur Rakib

Executive Committee Auditors

Commodore (Retd.) M. A. Rahman Chairman S.F. AHMED & CO

Prof. Dr. AKM Sadrul Islam Member Chartered Accountants

Prof. Dr. Choudhury Mahmood Hasan Member House 51 (3rd Floor)

Md. Shahid Farooqui, FCS Secretary Road 9 Block F

Banani, Dhaka-1213
Bangladesh.

— Audit C itt
udit Committee Compliance Auditors

Md. Rafiqul Islam Khan, FCA Chairman M. Mohashin & Co.
Commodore (Retd.) M. A. Rahman Member i
Chartered Secretaries
Md. Abdus Salam FCA, FCS Member
Md. Shahid F ' FCs s 218 Elephant Road (3rd Floor)
->hahid Farooqui, ecretary Dhaka-1205, Bangladesh.
Bankers
— Nomination and Remuneration Committee Islami Bank Bangladesh Ltd.
Md. Abdus Salam FCA, FCS Chairman ;\I.-Arafgh I;I&r(]jn Bl L.
Commodore (Retd.) M. A. Rahman Member r|me qn' o
2 : First Security Islami Bank Ltd.
Md. Rafiqul Islam Khan, FCA Member Shahialal Tslami Bank Ltd
Md. Shahid Farooqui, FCS Secretary anjaidiisiami Ban ’

Sonali Bank Ltd.
Shimanto Bank Ltd.

Registered Office
Tanin Center, 3 Asad Gate

CSR Committee

Prof. Dr. Shah Md. Bulbul Islam Chairman )

Mirpur Road, Mohammadpur
Prof. Dr. AK.M Sadrul Islam Member Dhaka-1207. Bangladesh
Kazi Harun-or-Rashid Member ' 9 ’
Md. Shahid Farooqui, FCS Secretary

Corporate Website

www.ibnsinapharma.com
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Memorandum

NATURE OF BUSINESS

Status and Articles of ) )
Public Limited Association Signed Manufacturing and Marketing
Company by the Sponsors of Pharmaceutical Products

19 December and Natural Medicine

1983

Certificate of
Incorporation as

Commercial

Converted into

. Production !
Private Ltd.Company Started Public Ltd. Company
22 December May 1986 1989

1983

Subscription Subscription Started production
Opened on Initial Closed Listed in DSE and marketing of
Public Offerings (IPO Ophthalmic products
1 ul 1998(9 ' 14 September 17 July 1990 phthalmic proc

y 1989 Eye Drop/Ointment

1995

Trading Started

Listed in CSE

on CSE Market Catagory Electronic Share Face Value
24 December 26 December "A" wyn Tk. 10

Enhancement of
Authorized Capital

Company Crossed

No. of Securities

the Number Authorized Capital | (¢rom Tk 120,000,000 to Paid up Capital Ao
of Products to 100 | Tk. 500,000,000 Tk. 500,000,000) Tk. 312,436,270 ( )
December 2003 on 10.06.2005 31;243;627

at 2nd EGM

First Dividend

1SO-9001 Started production of | Obtained Certification

Declared (After IPO) | certification (1ISO) | marketing of injectable of Membership
31 March 1993 18 August 2004 products from BAPLC
in the 7th AGM December 2004 30 November

2005

Registered as Dematerialized

Natural Medicine

Al VI Depository Securities trading
Division Participant of CDBL Started on
(Unani and Herbal)
2008 03 January 2009 | 04 January 2009

CORPORATE
PROFILE
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DIRECTOR'S PROFILE = cnah Abdul Hannan

Chairman

Shah Abdul Hannan was born in 1939 in Mymensingh. He took his Masters
from Dhaka University in 1961. He joined Pakistan Superior Service in 1963. He
retired from service in 1998 when he was Secretary of the Government and
Chairman, National Board of Revenue. During his tenure he held important
positions like Deputy Governor of Bangladesh Bank, Director General, Bureau of
Anti-Corruption, Secretary, Social Welfare Ministry and Secretary Banking
Division of the Ministry of Finance. He played pioneer role to introduce Value
Added Tax (VAT) in Bangladesh and reform. He has been serving as Director of
The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd. since 1983.

Currently he is the Chairman, Center for Strategic and Peace Studies; Chairman,
Islamic Economics and Research Bureau; Chairman, Bangladesh Institute of
Islamic Thought Trust; Advisor, International Islamic University Chittagong;
Chairman, Manarat International University Trust; and Member of the Darul
Ihsan Trust.

He has several books on Economics, Islamic law, International Relations and
Islamic issues. He writes regular column in the national newspapers.




Commodore (Retd.) M. A. Rahman
Director and Chairman, Executive Committee

Commodore (Retd.) M. A. Rahman came of a Muslim noble family on 18th October 1926
at Provakardi village of Narayanganj. He did his Bachelor of Engineering in 1949 from
Bengal Engineering College, Calcata, India, and Post Graduate in Marine Engineering
from Manadon Plymouth, UK in Calcutta 1951. He was the founder Managing Director of
The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd. He has been serving as Director of The IBN
SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd. since 1983.

Naval Sea Service: Sub-Lt, Royal Navy of Pakistan, 1950-1956, Frigate & Destroyer, 1951-
1956, Flotilla Engineer Officer, 1960-1961, Diplomatic Service: Deputy Naval Advisor of
Pakistan in London, 1956-1960, Shore Service in Navy: MPP (Manager, Planning &
Production) of Naval Dockyard, Karachi, 1961-1962, Training Commander in Karsaz,
Karachi, 1962-1964, Deputy Director General, Defense Purchase, 1966-1968, Director,
Naval Engineering & Director, ships Repair & maintenance.

Civil Service: Chairman, Bangladesh Inland Water Transport Corporation (BIWTC),
Chairman, Chalna Port Authority, Chairman, Trading Corporation of Bangladesh (TCB),
Chairman, Tariff Commission, Chairman, Islami Bank Bangladesh ltd.,

Social Attachment: Founder & Chairman, International School, College & University.
Founder & Chairman, Faisal Investment Foundation, Founder Member, IBN SINA Trust,
Founder Director, IBN SINA Group Investment Companies Ltd., Founder, Consultative
Committee of Public Enterprises, Founder & Chairman, Bangladesh Association of Banks
(BAB), Founder Chairman, Weekly Palabadal, Founder Chairman, Center for Strategic &
Peace Studies, Founder Chairman & Managing Director, Business & Management Co.,
Founder Chairman, Association of the Private Universities of Bangladesh, Rotarian &
President of Rotary Club of Dhaka, Founder, Moittri Samity, Founder Chairman, Diganta
Media Corporation and Chairman of Abacia Investment Co. Ltd.

Annual Report 2018-19
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DIRECTOR'S PROFILE

Managing Director

Prof. AK.M. Sadrul Islam was born on 7th April 1955 in Jessore. He did Ph.D in
Mechanical Engineering from London University, U.K. in 1988. He served BUET
and Islamic University of Technology (a subsidiary organ of OIC) for 36 years as
Professor and Head of Department from 1980 to 2016. He was also a Visiting
Professor of University Technology Malaysia; a Guest Professor of Institute of
Ocean Energy, Saga University, Japan.

Prof. Islam is also Ex- Chairman, Mechanical Engineering Division, Institution of
Engineers Bangladesh (IEB); Secretary General, Bangladesh Society of
Mechanical Engineers (BSME).

He has been serving IBN SINA Pharma in different levels as Director, since
2003; Member, Executive Committee since 2005; Director, Finance since 2010
and formerly Chairman, Audit Committee from 2007 to 2011 and Managing
Director from 2014 to till now.

Prof. Islam is a Director, IBN SINA Hospital Sylhet Ltd., The IBN SINA Consumer
Products Ltd. and IBN SINA Diagnostic Center, Lalbag Ltd.

Prof. Dr. A.K.M. Sadrul Islam



DIRECTOR'S PROFILE

Dr. Choudhury Mahmood Hasan was born on 31st
August 1953, in Chittagong District of Bangladesh. He
obtained B. Pharm. (Hons) and M. Pharm. (Thesis
group) degree from the Dhaka University, securing First
position in First Class in both the examinations. He
received his Ph.D. in 1982 from the Dept. of
Pharmaceutical Chemistry at the University of
Strathclyde, Glasgow, United Kingdom. He was
awarded Commonwealth Scholarship for doing Ph.D.
(1978-1981) in the Univ. of Strathclyde, Glasgow,
Commonwealth Academic Staff Fellowship (1990-
1991) to work as a visiting scientist in the same
university and Japan Society for the Promotion of
Science (JSPS) Senior Fellowship (Nov-Dec, 2004) for
doing research in Tokushima Bunri University,
Tokushima, Japan.

Dr. Hasan joined the Department of Pharmacy, DU, in
January, 1978 and progressed through the ranks to
Professor in the same department in March, 1992. He
was the Chairman of this Dept. from 1992 to 1993. He
was the Director of Drug Administration, Ministry of
Health and Family Welfare, from July 1993 to January
1997. He was elected as the Dean of the Faculty of
Pharmacy for two terms from 1999 to 2003. He was
the Chairman of BCSIR (Bangladesh Council of
Scientific and Industrial Research) from 11th August
2005 to 10th August 2008. He was the Vice-Chancellor
of Manarat International University for four years from
13th October, 2012 to 12th October, 2016.

He was the member of Pharmacy Council (1993-1997,
2001-2008) and also the Chairman of Accreditation
and Education Committee. Dr. Hasan, as a member of
expert committee, played the pivotal role for the

Prof. Dr. Choudhury Mahmood Hasan

Director, Technical

inclusion of “herbal drugs" in the National Drug Policy
2005 and which later on incorporated in the Drug
Ordinance 2005.

His research focuses on the chemical and biological
studies of local medical plants with emphasis on
structure elucidation of the secondary metabolites by
spectroscopic techniques (UV, IR, NMR, MS etc.). So far
her supervised/co-supervised the research of few Ph.D
and about 60 M.Pharm. students of Dhaka University.
At present he is co-supervisor/co-supervisor of 8 Ph.D
and 3 M.pharm students. He is the main/co-author of
276 peer-reviewed papers published in international
and national scientific journals. He was the chairman/
co-chairman/ plenary lecturer/ presenter/ participator
in 66 international seminars/symposia held in 25
countries of the world (including UK, USA, Japan,
Canada, Germany, Sweden, Spain, Australia etc.).

For his outstanding contribution in medicinal plant
research and in biological science he was awarded
Habibur Rahman Gold Medal 2003, Bangladesh
Academy of Science Gold Medal 2006 (senior group),
Chandrabati Gold Medal 2007 and Atish Dipankar Gold
Medal 2008.

Dr. Hasan is a member of American Chemical Society
(ACS), American Society of Pharmmacognosy (ASP),
Fellow of the Bangladesh Academy of Sciences (FBAS)
and fellow of Royal Society of Chemistry (FRSC).

He was a Director of Essential Drug Company Ltd
(EDCL) owned by Govt. of Bangladesh. (1993-1997).
Dr. Hasan has been serving as Director of The IBN
SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd. since 2013 and
currently he is serving as Director, Technical.
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DIRECTOR'S PROFI LE ‘i(azi Hafun-or-Rashid

Director, Finance

Mr. Kazi Harun-or-Rashid came from a noble family in 1st April, 1950. He is an
M. Com. in Accounting. He did his graduation from the University of Dhaka.

Mr. Rashid has been serving The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd. as
Director from September 2016.

Formerly Chairman, Board of Directors, of The Islami Bank Bangladesh Ltd.
(IBBL), Chairman, Audit Committee of IBBL and Chairman, Audit Committee,
Islami Bank Foundation.

Mr. Rashid is a Director of The IBN SINA Consumer Products Ltd., Kazi Trading
Corporation, Harun Textile and Member, Board of Trustees, The IBN SINA Trust.

Mr. Rashid has 36 years of versatile professional and business expertise.




3

DIRECTOR'S PR O‘JFI LE Prof. Abu Nasser Muhammad Abduz Zaher

Director

Abu Nasser Muhammad Abduz Zaher was born in a respectable Muslim family
of Companygonj, Noakhali in the year 1948.

Prof. Zaher has been serving as Director of The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical
Industry Ltd. since 1983.

He achieved his Masters Degree in English literature. He started his professional
life with teaching at Khandaker Mosharrof Hossain Degree College in the early
seventies. Later he joined at the Royal Embassy of Kingdom of Saudi Arabia in
Dhaka, Bangladesh as the Secretary of the Embassy and Ambassador and
performed duties for about 13 years. He joined The Ibn Sina Pharmaceutical
Industry Ltd. in 1989 as Managing Director of the company.

Prof. Abu Nasser Muhammad Abduz Zaher was Chairman of Islamic Bank
Bangladesh Ltd., Chairman of Islamic Banks Consultative Forum (IBCF), Vice
Chairman of Bangladesh Association of Banks and Board Member of General
Council for Islamic Banks & Financial Institutions (CIBAFI). He was a member
of the Advisory Committee of the Bangladesh Association of Pharmaceutical
Industries (BAPI).

Annual Report 2018-19




DIRECTOR'S PROFILE Md. Rafiqul Islam Khan, FCA

Independent Director

Md. Rafiqul Islam Khan FCA was born on 25th March, 1952 in a noble muslim
family. He qualified as Chartered Accountant from The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) in the year 1978 and also awarded as fellow
member of ICAB in the year 1986. He took Bachelor of Commerce from
University of Dhaka in 1970. He was Director of Dhaka Chamber of Commerce
and Industry (DCCI) and was a councilor of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB). He has been serving as Independent
Director of The Ibn Sina Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd. from 5th December 2016
to till now.

Mr. Khan was the Chief Officer (Finance & Accounts) of Trading Corporation of

Bangladesh (TCB) for six years and General Manager, Desh Group for five years.

He has about 40 years of experience in the arena of Auditing, Taxation, Project
20 Consultancy, Investment and Foreign Investment Promotion etc.

Mr. Khan is a Managing Partner of M. M. Rahman & Co., Chartered
Accountants, Managing Director, Sun Cherry Body Fashion MFTY Ltd., Member
National Council, Diabetic Association of Bangladesh (BADAS), Member, Board
of Management BIRDEM and Member, Board of Management, Bangladesh
Institute of Health Services (BIHS).
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DIRECTOR'S PROFILE

Mr. Md. Abdus Salam FCA, FCS is a former President
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Bangladesh (ICAB) and Vice President of the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh
(ICSB). He also served both ICAB and ICSB
Institutes as the Council Member. He obtained his
Bachelor of Honours and Master Degree in
Accounting from the University of Dhaka in 1975
and 1976 respectively and qualified as Chartered
Accountant from the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Bangladesh in 1989 and became
Fellow of the Institute in 1994. He was awarded
Burmah Eastern and the BCIC scholarships to
pursue his CA Course.

He has been rendering services to the Institute in
various capacities and as a member of different
standing and non-standing Committees, including
Board of Studies, the Technical & Research
Committee, Editorial Board and Review Committee
for published Accounts & Reports. He was elected to
Dhaka Regional Committee of the Institute and
served as the Secretary in 2000 and in one of
regular Faculty Members of the Institute. He was
also the Technical Adviser of the IDA Technical
Assistance project for Chartered Accountants titled
"Development of Accounting and Auditing
Standard in Bangladesh” financed by the World
Bank. He is a Fellow Member of the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh. He was Vice
president for the term 2005-2006 and the
Treasurer for the term 2004-2005 of the Institute
of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh. He has

Md. Abdus Salam FCA, FCS

Independent Director

been serving as elected Councilor of the said
Institute since its establishment in 1997. He is a
Charter Member and Best Past President of the
Lions Club of Dhaka Meghna for the term 1993-94.
He is a Life Member of Dhaka University
Accounting Alumni Association, Bangladesh
Economic Association and Bangladesh Computer
Society. He attended various national and
international seminars/conferences in United
Kingdom, Australia, Canada, Saudi Arabia, UAE,
Thailand, India, Pakistan, Sri Lanka and Nepal.

Mr. Salam in his career served in a number of
Government autonomous bodies and multilateral
international development organizations including
Bangladesh Power Development Board as
Additional Director of Accounts, General Manager
Finance in National Tea Company and as Mission
Team Leader and Consultant/Expert for UNDP, ADB,
World Bank, CIDA, DFID, NORAD, SIDA, EC,
DANIDA in a number of projects in the fields of
financial management, auditing and governance.
He has completed an assignment as the National
Finance Expert with the PEDPII of Asian
Development Bank.

He was the Member of the Board of Directors of
Islami Bank Bangladesh Ltd., Director of Coal
Power Generation Company Ltd., Electricity
Generation Company Ltd. (Govt. Body), Dhaka
Stock Exchange and Chittagong Stock Exchange.
and Member of South Asian Fedaration of
Accountants (a SAARC body).
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Strategic

To serve humanity by-Providing the highest
quality of products and services;

To maintain the ethical standard
in all its functions;

To follow WHO-cGMP requirement from
procurement to finished goods;

Marching onward for sustainable growth and
continuous improvements;

To ensure consumers' satisfaction;
To ensure welfare oriented health services;

To establish a set of managerial succession and
adopting technological changes to ensure
successful development of the Company;

To emerge as a healthier and stronger Medical
Service at the top of the pharmaceutical sector;

To invest in the thrust and priority
sectors of the economy;

To pay more importance in human resources
as well as financial capital;

To ensure lucrative career path, attractive
facilities and excellent working environment;

To ensure zero tolerance on negligence in
compliance of regulatory issues;

To provide impeccable and progressively better
customer services using changed technologies;

To train and develop human resources
continuously and provide adequate logistics
to satisfy customers’ need;

To motivate team members taking part in the job
with sense of belongingness;

To strengthen corporate governance practice culture;

To ensure Corporate Social Responsibilities
(CSR) through all activities.



01.

02.

03.

04.

05.

06.

07.

08.

09.

10.

1.

Core Values and Code of
Corporate-Philosophy

We carry some core values and codes of
corporate-philosophy that are practiced as follows:

Trust in Almighty Allah;

Highest Principle of Honesty, Integrity
and Conscience;

Equity and Justice;
Environmental Consciousness;

Adoption of Changed Technology
and Advancement;

Proper Delegation, Transparency
and Accountability;

Human Interest is the first priority
that is attached to the country's
growth and prosperity;

Employees are trained with the object of
developing leaders to be next successors;

Emphasize on creativity and innovation to
achieve organizational excellence;

Employees have an obligation to know
and understand not only the guidance
contained in the Code of Conduct but also
the spirit on which it is built;

Recognize the rights of shareholders
in creating wealth, jobs and the
sustainability of a financially

sound enterprise;

12.

13.

14

15.

16.

17.

Ensure timely and accurate disclosure of all
material information regarding the entity;

Ensure strategic guidance of the company,
effective monitoring of management and
the Board's accountability to the company
and the shareholders;

Monitor and assess how risk is minimized
and how performance is maximized;

Customers Satisfaction;

Team Work in adherence with the truth
and transparency;

In accordance with the agreed Code of
Conducts, the Company:-

a. Acts with integrity, competence, dignity
and in an ethical manner while dealing
with stakeholders as a whole;

b. Acts and encourages others to behave
in a professional and ethical manner;

c. Endeavors to maintain and improve the
competence of al in the business;

d. Uses reasonable cart and exercise
independent professional judgment;

e. Not restrains others from responding
their professional obligations.
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Our Guiding Principles

The spirit of the company is derived from some of
our guiding principles as follows:-

ETHICAL PRINCIPLES
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CHAIRMAN’S ADDRESS

Bismillahir Rahmanir Rahim
The Beloved Shareholders
Assalamu Alaikum Wa Rahmatullah

We are delighted to welcome you all at the 35th Annual
General Meeting of The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical
Industry Ltd. In this auspicious occasion we would furnish
before you the Annual Report for the year 2018-19
showing the financial position, achievement and the
notable performance of the Company. In Sha Allah.

I am pleased to place the following focused key
performance achieved in the year under review:-

Profit
after Tax

Operating
Profit

Earnings

Revenue per Share

V- V-

5,263,963,344 336,266,870

Keeping in view of sustainable sales growth and
milestone of other performance indicators, we emphasize
to retain the meritorious employees and extend them the
opportunity to perform their highest level of ability.
Harmonious working environment, free of employee
discrimination is strictly ensured. We train the employees
round the year to grow individual best potential and
thereby enriching the human capital of the Company.

Some of the key strategic progress of the Company is
cited below for your information:-

API Project

Since getting allotment letter for an Industrial Plot in
Govt. APl Park at Gajaria, Munsiganj, the IPI
management had remained pursuant to the terms of
API Park Authority. The management kept continuous
efforts ongoing and striving to finish the project work
within scheduled time. Finally it has come to a shape
and you will be elated to learn that a number of good
API molecules have been finalized at Product
Development (PD) level and waiting to start trial
production by February-March 2020.

Biotech Project

IBN SINA Pharma have earmarked for setting up of a
Biotech Project. PD Lab. work and animal house set-up
work is now going on. For setting up of a compliant
manufacturing Biotech facility, an American firm QbD
Pharma Serve Inc. has been appointed for working with

IBN SINA Pharma. Meanwhile, a high level management
team has visited a number of the Chinese Biotech
facilities in order to find out Technical Collaboration. Two
Chinese companies have agreed for Technology Transfer
and IBN SINA Pharma entered into an MOU agreement
with them.

USA Export

Entering into US Pharma market always counts as a
challenge. In spite of uncountable hurdles, the
management kept its exercise ongoing with all possible
means. As a result of its strong determination and
striving constantly, IBN SINA Pharma has got the fruit
and has already exported first consignment to USA.
After successful staging of the first lot of OTC products
manufactured by IBN SINA Pharma into US market, the
management of the Company is very much hopeful that
it will be continued. In addition to OTC products,
prescription products are in next line of export to USA as
well. IBN SINA Pharma has been working to affect the
export of prescription products by third party
manufacturing. It is mentionable that, IBN SINA
Pharma is one of the fortunate companies in
Bangladesh to get registration in US FDA and it was
achieved two years back.

The Board of Directors accepts with gratitude the reviews,
criticism and suggestions of our valued shareholders and
consider them as a catalytic factor in attainment of the
success and continued progress of the Company.

I sincerely acknowledge the contribution made by the
management and employees of all level for their
determined effort to bring this success. I also wish to
thank and express my gratitude to our valued customers,
well-wishers, healthcare professionals, bankers, suppliers,
Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited, Chittagong Stock
Exchange Limited, Bangladesh Securities and Exchanges
Commission, Central Depository Bangladesh Ltd.,
Registrar of Joint Stock Companies and Firms, National
Board of Revenue (NBR) Bangladesh, Government
Agencies and all concerned.

Lastly I pray to Almighty Allah to bless us with success
and help us in our endeavor marching towards a bright
future and benevolence to our people as a whole.
Ameen.

o e

Shah Abdul Hannan
Chairman

Annual Report 2018-19







TS IRRRR,
SIAATSIY STEFH AT ARAGHIR S IS |

@R ARBTG5 (A AN FARE
0ESY FE ART Tor JBRE wow 8 FTe
TIZ | 0 TN 05b (AF wo T 055 INE Tt
YT IR 897 AfprEewea afeamT «qag
free sge fifre wife faaad sz wewm
TR s s, Torre ¢ vy [EbR & ) (on
T T | A TN@ @A JNEE AT

T G
ARG, TN ¢ A SYY TeAM A

TR @ IRTY ATIETSFACAT N NS 6
TR AT QTR 0% N eI S A1 |

gy i 8 Wy SRR SEe

DT O 2@ 370 P wibrebwe Twifg f
TECHE A SRS 8 G AAfGET Tew
S FAwe @ TAE NAMHF \T Qo AfqHeT
AT (53T TGRS (FACR | AT |

@36 eferifreryrs ke AR @ity
Aferifeess ne A&l edTe TPy @0 e
CSTSIF A ATFCS TFT AR | (S TFye effes
@ 787 I SR witE (NFIRE SR ECHS
SRV #dly SRR IO TR TR
SR GFY AN B ACE | TV SRR TFAH TACH
e T 2eifg . aa gigel afetmers
8 7T TrErd T AR |

J[IAE AeeTwar

AT 9 ARE (@A T 8 Sewifes
qecd T SITeeEd AT e AR |
sfaprerereal efswfronee sfaf¥fe et o
S A ST FACH T o T S
AW AT A= FCECRA | (T Tgore e,
T I @ AFEN A (@A | T
TPTAS G4 TAW, T g, oo oo
A, TCATN gy T A w63 @ 8
(SIS PR 9FY TR SRfY oL gl T
T ECR |

205b-5> T IRF EPS WIfERTR So.q0 BIFT A 059-
o O IR 2@ 8.8y Bl @2 WDy wd q=0d
R &S [T TG O 8.9 BIFl AT 059-db T
Tz fem sy BRI A6 M T (NAV)
5,89b,350,05¢ B, A AFST wd ImE@ fwT
5,339,%0b,¢ 9y BIFT | (R &fS B veifs w9 2[R
(NOCFPS) 59.b-4 BI%T | Al o {aet oief I=0d et v.vy
BT | STgrey (F, SICEIDY IR [T S IR Sy
SR S Jfad S NOCFPS Jfar (ot |

oo S 8 oYfF IRT

TSl ¢ @ W Jhad TR TFe AYfE
FTAE, R AR ¢ efdrwe e SmEe
AT | SACEDS = T 8 BRI (Wi fefes
g ¢ Tge W (AR T 93 @ Fg
TR (21T ISETOTACET ML A T I
(ITCE TN (@I oo T ¢ e [
AT e T4 TR0 |

R oy e

Dy IRed 6Fd @ Jfag oW @l [,
fTeqd @HeF ¢ WA AP A8 e
TRZ | AN GFY @@ ANWME SAENE e T
JCAR | AT qE A d0.08 % REw a3fa wfere
TR | TG Ry wifere TR0 ¢,290.5Y fifema 5,
e =7 e 2 8,uea.0¢ ffermw Bt | Ty,
w7 ¢ foowd fremeE Ml 458l e [ qe
AR 8 SIFA AR @32 2057 T¥e JIZEAE @
ETE (RIS SRyIRS AT 789 TR |

reECT TG M ergfar e

FFTEBEme fég AeEnmem @t wrpsd 4 | A
JEAMT R FAITOTe Sy SRW AR |
205b-55 O IR IET TIPS MF6 «@F
g3fr z@RA So.vwe% | @ W@ @ T Frer
FINFTCHIT TOIg o1, $9.03% efa wew e |

wifdfe werTe

0d TR 200 (AT vo T 20d> I IREF WF
TEAFCAR AT ALF =

Annual Report 2018-19




foraet L

R05b-55 20%9-dY
TR T 8GY,585,€¢9 | @UY,830,Udb
M § T S3¢,rA8,ua | 305,353,508
9 RS VOL,BL 90 | 8GY,5Y,958
oS T WG A (B | bRE,09,b3 | 8bu,u89,9¢%
ftbew s 5,505,¢58,5¢3 | Hb,580,8bY
5 s T 9,89k, 354,05¢ | 3,339,30b,¢ b
(R 26 Y (A T-2034-3¥) 30.9% 8.8
(R effs S5 7w o 89.93 5.3
(RT3 2fs 5 BAfS 7o 21T 3.9 )

50.9Y
8.8

M 03-05 W R039-d

M 03-05 W R039-d

R T

RIS 7@ € oI, ST AT (CITeTSs GHGTH
AFG FIAT, AFPEZ FIA A ST TIZ A2,
NG (ST QAT TS MG FFAE Bt
T P T ¢ TR PG TR FR WM G
gy [ s gre | 3R ime [eifre
ozt wifdfe fReadlia s8b =B e T@= |

Ty FIBIET 8 SOHT @S T

SR FEFCA FCHT T PR T ©fF TeATre eqre
g N T dfeerfoqa | @ T T SHAMICT
FoF W e T TR @2 TFe FGMNIE AT,
AT 8 FIF V@ SGTC Q¥ T ACH 2qC P
T GEE @G WeEaers (TQM) Bess
I TR | R Igeifen ot SeAme 8
IR AW fFEEeR 1w M Seenfre ey areee
(BT BIfeTcy AMTHR |

o ST JreTEOFRT
1T fefmy
1 g B wribele goifg fr. dfte ey

AP T @3y SIS FACR AN @I egfa
e IRE PRE @Y AR | 9F2 (AR,

Annual Report 2018-19

205b-35 I IR 5 B @Ak @6 so T T97
¢ JEeT® Fl AR |

4 IR IEEROFE (LCFET 4 T ST
T APCATHE, e AN 2.¢/coo, TIHIE AT
3.¢/q¢o, TR 2.¢/S000 BIREG, @I v% &,
I 33% T, e e, e Bus sz
g, OIS fow ¢ oifeT wmoms fofeess
TRET R e ER | @ (@B 04
AMfSaeT Q00 T I8TT afs T 7w [fre sty |

IoTTeT (SR fefems

Sy ey oo @ e @ SmeAle (RTETe
o Biewia v 7rf efsfame TorE o
A, TTA ¢ AR @t ey ¢ wifm
Terren e seR | fodrenT (Aed T &R B
TrorEE (fehm fefoxm Sgewitas (oqs SoAmiT
IR FCE @S AW T TSN 8 T (AT
T 8 FEREeF T R A e 8
(SIGTITIT YT SIS T ZACZ | TN Faoifeg
AL A I T WoEE (fetE ey Tgw eyy
IS FACR |

Dy WY IR ORI FEHE foq o (efrerd
AFAETOFAT FCACE, BT ZCANS- GBI ARG,
@FOT ACTBIND 8 IACFAR ACTBCID |

fem @ Reqer

W 330w Frer wRfitTetae oty fifioe av e ¢
o fremfs Pifee ¢ swe=cd | @ e
ffae o, et ¢ o g e
efSTRIreT @ FAATEPTT eqe FEE T 0% |
@lfag Tefifre e3q ERAIET ACw [edd I
e g vo & “fieem sz | ot % oEpr
T T (ST AT FRCNTT Seat Sk
THSE SFY TWPIWE AR o Facz | Sy
oyfE U FPEHR @5eTF Automation System
pafre a1 20 |

I

@A efsfare IWRT ISR TP T 2Tee
BIECER | WTasy 9 IR (@A I AEE
29 efSrama Sov BT Srard w41 T |

T =0

@I ST AR 1% @ SEIE ABART A
oy e weel Sifere wIhieR | SefE ofaege
SO, T ey, SR qeEw, Awte Tent
FAFICST T (TC A, T 8 F1FAT 751 A0
G PIfTe g IR toda T AT




SIS AT TR | IO (@A T fefen,
ToEE @hE fefesm ¢ @it fefexm
e for weHifys W ¢ U We W e
N TGN G T AR |

e, G «T (ereEeItTS

IRFT € THANEHS IR (@A T 7] AR
AT TR CFPTRE  WEAT AR, AT
ARISIEIR T FIEF AMCF! (T ZCACE |

@Il [ RS e nvel Tered Jia 7R
S (KT8 TSR JEATCAN S LT NI
SRR Y A= T RCACR | STERT, SIS AN
crif fifeg w9 ¢ et Fite I S5
TGP ey AT AR (AR TRCR IR CFE
e fey corme oPi-Rorr afspn aférwem
T (@A A AT | AFRHOET FNCHE 9T O 8
FISIfTer TR (Effectiveness Evaluation) T 237 |
a3 eférwd Sifewea s weice o[
TR ARG Need-Based Training 509164
SIS A AAREFAT (7 2R |

‘FUATRG T @Fe Afeo e

o Fifstifba 9o g@ne FhmT TpFe
‘TS Tew @e (@I
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, Dated 3
June, 2018) dfeoeaa Wiy & 33w Forar
TPl Swifg . av sew AfRweEy
AT SRS | AT WY IR @i Sy
TR | FREAF A(Coa Toa fAfwe ol aifs
AfST@WTTa &> 7B Annxure-B @3 Annxure-C T
Ay 2@ |

A IR ST

TR AT IS AL ACHT FIANT I &
g, 200Y (RS =W W3, 2059) @ @Y [y
YOI AfoAlR™ Facr | A & [,
205¢ OF FMEF TG AT FAG, GRFH
S ¢ By wagem G e zme | wwr
Mo TN AR @ Aoy Feandr s | sRBeten

vaﬁm

ofs WErlier @3 @ FowT ALEB AR PG Q7o
FCAR | GNIEN ATYE a3 ¢ fqedcam e g2
AR @ TRrEy IfFYE AT FTOHT 390 Oy T+
S T FEA B TR (ACF @Y AR e

AN FECR | GRGT SLAMASE Sref@ae 73 ¢ &
feoraeer FBW T AT Sfmed 8 egq e
wfgwecss QI Swpre F ETP 8 Sy faioial
TR ARGl 0 AR |

0d TR R0k (AF wo G wdd I YT T
FALR SfE6q e FEriele a 019 @%@
PIOTE GBI 37 AT 06 ©F AMEE A=l TS
TR G FE | O YDA AT (FI BIBTE CLGo IS
7 foF T2a TR 205U-39, WHA-db GI WVIH-D5
4 IR AC67 KGR Mg A T |

2055-30 9 IFER T INYIH SfEod eI
facmt efen w 2F Fige swgmE wies w1 wiay
(Expression of Interest) &M HCACR | FAATIT
I (AN TS (@ A€ QUG- (=i
FALR SC6F KT WP Sy FATR I |
G A (@ AT s A0 54 (Pt Todre
@O a8 ARG (& 2005-20 I IQET &
g S wod FEPmMIeEE o a8)
e | s we oW A AR o @R
CRIRCTIRAICCR {5 @ POe SeeTd & o
RT |

e ooy ST Afsieveia cargat

TS IR 8 ChFERRIeE  ofe
SRR RS (W ormace @A AfDee S
TR FCATED 9T TS OF Yo Sy | SARBErEare
e Pfeeiiite e «ITEE FET T Corporate
Governance Code Siica faty Sfafe fezrmres
e e FEee-

. @il g giEe g Wy SRkER S
e faw 3 afsramtaa sv PRy 3fife zmee;

q. (TS A o1 f$feF Performance T™ifF® w2y
AT efetamera s = e g

o, Sreyedr ¢ IRATS IF TR Y e AfwoTe
e efferama, Fited afe e ¢ @R e[
AT o= TS eiferamtag aq PR 3o zrre;
. Cost of Goods Sold, Gross Profit Margin €<% Net
Profit Margin 7*If¥s w2y s efstavtra 89 o
Fffe zrae;

6. AR T MM ATF @FEmA TS oy
fstameTa s8¢ “pr Iffe zwTR;

5. AT ARmETIR  AfveNean ool
(Remuneration) 7f¥e 2y afetawcaa 85 7B
3fefs zraTe;

AN g ECESISE kD] ¢_\§"f‘$ W AFOFS wifefe

_n

Annual Report 2018-19

'



E

e, Fm ¢ 4R G SRET “REeT e
@ I Reavee fefere Sogifre zre;

&, (@Al R 3R TR FAReICe A R0A0;
A, Wi @@ TR AT ARG AT
(o 23 T (IAS @ IFRS) WP Sl @R
GR TSI TAZ2 FAT FACR;

@, e AT AR TR A ¢ TR
e w1 TRE;

5. veTe efSpie fRem @rifag el emifie;

5. @R ARTEAETS AR KRS IR G
@I e @%;

T, A5 IR AfDEA @ A T TR 89 PR
Ffefe zrae;

5. ~ffprEemeda Tow SAfEfen fRaadt vy R IS TR
o, (TR R iR =BT €q 8 Sou B I 2T
. (@RbEE &9 ¢ AT f&oraa T Sy
AT (725

g, @>fa TR SAfieEe ewe  AAfRmETE
(Management) 38 /fitenal ¢ fResme sreiffe
w2 afstamiaa 88 By e TrE;

W. BSEC 99 (IiGReeq Spiita g9« “ifavris
G 5% FIEERE ARG Y AT T Sl
vy ¢ Feq FHFe el AfetmeT dvo ORI
e zrTe;

4. AT ¢ @ Sl $9s ame eferamy
¢ ~BIY Iffe za@TE;

7. Ao ekt av are FhmeE @
ST FCATID ST TR AT elfsraweas v
BT Torgire Teare;

IAS, IFRS ¥ S ST WZ @ NS Tqeza
AR BT

@I SR, 558 G AEm FiseRiba e
qFoE I [, Sobq PR 7T FHIA TS
SR RS W Ge A Ao SR ASE
I S e IR, ©f [fve F97 vy @R
ARBIAFTGAT | e TF A I International
Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) R S«jl«y
AR NS T A wpRe 54F gge w4
afe [fve waf =7 wiffs o age afem
SR AT TS RE @3 [l vo
TR (7T TR |

e aferame ¢ TR
aiEey W qeed edw eifes, wd-affe e gorm

IR FREE 9F6 TARY FEHAT 8 [0 iy

Annual Report 2018-19

ARBIAFNGHT AT FCA AR | ARG T§ oifee
eSS @i efsramea s Fower, Tader,
ool @ sffre! fafire s e A |

e Pifsefibe uv qHte FhrEa @R
T @M/ AaTaETatifE/2 0o -db o/ dT T/ 0w-08,
Siffd 29 ETHF, Q005 IR BIFT 35F Y ffice
8 BBAN BF GHGG FNGE «7 fAfde wept st
205b-5p 9E TR &AW gifes, W ¢ worw
gifes @3 SfAfFs o @i e 185, W@
FE @ SR [F8ET (BT THGTT A T R
3 @A TREifs ¢ fafeea BSEC, DSE, CSE
R Sy fREeriar efei TR @ I |

AT AR AT AN FNAT

ey fEE ANfBTRd A @F-0 International
Accounting Standard 1AS-24 @ IR Sfewrer
SPRe 6 dfafens fefere w1 zra | eEny oid
Jeead AR AR MY G- (e @, @@,
T Terifr feifrees wiffs afstamea s8¢ ow
TG T AR |

= R e s

205b-3p ALIRE FW REEPRE CRIRCRIGReeR
1< JFfFe |
TAOIRE e-Fe

03p-5s I @ TEEIRT Teo-wfe HAfqEtre
M |

(PR ARGEFNEE T ¢ Sa T [P qReF
CoRI e Rt eferwed @ BT 3 TR |

ofes i

et Bifseiibe v e IR @I R
T2 BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 Siferd
© G 2050 T Pl (oIS AfpETE T
e R T IACCATET AR wfetes Ty ©
(fom) swarr faf*2 wfes e s sz | s o7
RToF BSEC ¢ (@C I93 oWg Wiy =W,
werede WA afe, e Wi afetvwy egfe
3R IR NAFFNCIT ST W S @
AT Feaces | feenfie @3 @ A qEew
@5, SfNer w2 ey ARG oy T AT N
IR efStawe IWI @ TR RO 107 TER | ATH
s @36 Reals qo B Afyafre 2z |

Afgiver N 3 Wiw Fao [ afeoe

@A O 1 2B, T FAFS-FAGIA @2 @F
AN AT T T R T @9 CF@ BSEC



@3 iy sepia ARt Ao iasaer i
Afeoemarg «s e Ndma sz @ s
TYLSIE Afeiifere 2% |

FCAICE0 AW wRq@e! (CSR) NifS

Good Governence Practice ffie ¢ «wmRIRE
AIES AFame! (CSR) SIfe AR F1e 07 IR | @
e YOI FIEFT T & @6 forf swory ({42 @Ffo
TG 107 FACR | (TE “ifd® CSR TA-FRMB wieewy
9 @@ @A FEF e CSR AfowE S
FCATIG AGTS FEamS! FIG R 8 AT
FICACE, A ST Wb BT Afrafre 2w |
gRoroe s “Afoiee

e PReRifte «o yRwe T [y Sgard
T SATET ARGET TG TE @I, e
B LI, QFOG € T ., WA AN, aFH1E,
TG A oIt Fa0=H |

IR oS wat

BT Wz ¢ [y Reg 7eme wepEEd 8 afosiee
ST 4Pl @mi w1 ‘2 4R FAA [TEPTHR
TAPTIE 8 ARSI WFoe 4T 206z | @11 ST
rErE ¢ IR A e [ [ G
belce amifiSd |

TRt Afcety TR

@FNRTE TN FAFSI-FAOIANNAT G TFT AT
fifim (e TR TR T AR 2@ |
Ty wifde Rada w2

BSEC @3 0@l S@ifl ofe ¢ qwcad Sy
s @Y ¢ TaEEE AFe [/ afswee
89 7R Al 2= |

A FEE] @ FAGRANCNT & TS
DS T IR (AT FAFST 8 TN oy
TEES I Rl eferamcT qo ST
A a@ *S QR |

S I SRy w=f<ke (WPPF)

AN AR, 004 (S AT 2T, 2059) TR,
@R TR €% LR 22,53, 504 BIF FLEE
S SmIfe 8 WfSE Fepe S=fRE one w1 204 |

aafoe FAFTEHFIE SARCEGT (efF=R) avs

S G 2055, @REAR ARGETTAR QW8TY TS
TfAT frEs AR AT CATE  "3J0 BT
afrrez fafie” e fr 33e G wfifehene

Foifg ffide «3 s St sl sTRbfeRifa
@ e aw Pae R TR «se
FRIPTSHENET TAWE TAWH € ASRCTSFICEIT STl*1y
3w B «@fsrens e i Ifvie @ e
a3zt afseng fog i Areom SR <
TFAET (AF [WWATE 40 qIoe  FHIPIEHHE
oM SAVFET 4TS o FT 20J |

B0 P Te calters T o, @ fRfacrr

QAR AN AWy e off2 ifeml o e
S @Y elffre 2rare “ 330 FMr Saeia @reiza
A

SISy S ARCd “IA T e e .7 @
Afqenfee Fow so (I TN 80% (T AT
feeTa 8 @I BT eme S0 TR | A @A FE
T 3,190, 50¢,b00/- BIFIT 2.56% | W 330 F=r
TRl 3G MiGe v szErl afssw 3w
1T Sevegr cerergst for. @ evge fafacamers sfasre
@A (T dFe T 3% 97 @A ReTR,
e Priceiite ue qume Fhrta @bk
M- SEC / CMRRCD / 2008-183 / Admin / 03-30;
Dated June 1, 2009 SRR ¥ e o= 1S
TR TG SCACT Ty (o7 ] 2T |

werear

SR e g Jp e e efsfre wmz
G2 RIS Y IR FI& FAE | AAfGEFear
ST T, A TeomaeTs! €32 Foze! fHive
T G G qp WA oF ¢ wreredd frae gl
ST ACACE |

ver afediT

AT TR TFRI IZCe W6 2R @, ST
e (@FEANRE IECR | SN TSR ACETFS
@i wiffe RREIhTR o 4 T | R
(AN FEATE EBAT GFS (@ G A
s e el Sraer 3 sl 2 =,
T[T A @R e efede T @9 s
IR FIFTE AT O THVOR A (Fwwer
AR 3B FECS AN |

SICHASY AN (P (1T B BT a;qoE 7. 8
BT BF qoE o1, @ wfex@rr Jfa AT SRS

-

Annual Report 2018-19

-



"

M | CRIFEERE T 33 B S eorieaa
89T M | o B6F GHOE ATS So BN
SfefEe YR CF KT 203,50 BIFT (AF TEIH
©8¢.00 BIF GfEr 2R |

GRS (AN W

e SEeiEd o e @i Fafireeia
QSR (FRMIE @M AR | @A srsi e
(FINE F9 @ F5 W 0d TEN2 205k (ATF o T
2055 AW $90,08Y,9¢2 BIF gWE FE HOT
Sdifs e Srgrearly sawie @t | aft Sy
o TRcF fT@Tes de ©8.08% @I TN |

e ¢ wfpsEet RZHA

@rifag sreredr ¢ g I TS TRy Fewa
e Jife g s R a1 «F @@
ST 9 B 7T SR |

ez AAfgate

@ oo esq TE® ey M AF | TS
ET FGT 8 (IR e @ B w8
FERAg™ AT @ PR AT Wy A" Fare
S T |

3 P TGS Her 3uifGre ae ASEET
FFO-FGIN-ATFICR TR Few adfe ey,
o, Slr efeel, wdqr TrAifTer ¢ wEmrof
Treefesy PrHF e Tz A @I TR @
Tesee sifediteTer Jiare efefvre =fe @i |
ARG @ @PEEST (NRC) IR

JEmere Frieekibe «g @ SHEEE FeliEs
S (FE (BSEC / CMRRCD / 2006-158 / 207 /
Admin / 80 SIf7% © T, 205) GF VAR *S P
TS U G, 2055 S T ARBEFTEETT Q0T
o fEe wfeata s @B Nomination and
Remuneration (NRC) S5 1o« a1 277 |

(. ST ARAT- QT TG, a9
Bfersres sfvEs
TR

TACT (IF.) @ 4, TR

ARSI

ANAF

. TR FR <N

3AfETomTeS A

Ralepaly

TERE (. MR FER-QFO9T Nomination and
Remuneration (NRC) ¥foa cabifa frrwe wiftrg
Ao TR | A6y 9 =@ NRC Sfba Fi@ca
fomet effstamea ae =BT AfREe T@wE |

Annual Report 2018-19

.

“AfvTereReEts Sret

3AMECATES BT 77 ARBIAdISAIT TN 8 Sy
ARV [ER AT T eifsrameg a 72 (e Sy
9 TR, W AT afsramtm 38y B Iffe zmz |

fifvefis e

O TR efSTarl @RI Trd AT Ay
e w1 =@ | e Hfsekita v awoy
FRET Sifege SATED TS (F1e W NRC
g Joifr (TeiEe IR sAfwEeeR
PO 8 T (@CCH SN ACATE e Aot
AR TR |

AfISiee W5

@R e [feF by 47T S @ e SRS
¢ TR QTR T, Q. (F. 9G¥, AP AN Q3L
T FIE QEA-SG-TT G QR FCAC |

SR AT ARG AL @ |
et Friesite go qeg s ewe fNdifre
afere AfRDPrEETeHr AHE G Jere Afeamee
38 TR SIRIBTTRTAR (LATRFIETA AT FCACE |

7R & ARG o7 o7 (e

e ifeefifte aw  aibe IR
(fBReE=T 7 BSEC / CMRRCD / 2009-193 / 217
/ Admin / 90, Dated 21 May 2019) €3 8 w *&
TTST 3% T AFT od TA 203>, @R oS
ARBEAFTTAT Que O HSF TR ©f, =T (.
T D G FCfT (SF.) TR T, (G2W A
qq HARDETE oM Wy (AEer FAr =W fqEEi
CRIRRITIFAER SRoSF S (o1 T 2T |

TR @ WBHIE (T AR Ty FOC] &I FZ |

QI @I AT

IO @32 At W @ e A
el e o MR @@ gaeR aifefe ¢
RFATT AR I ACF | @ NS TPraeet (@@ =hife
@ FAFST I FAGET O FAFS] I FAGEIG
A @ s FHFAA TAE FO AT
@I e oafEe F0E A |

e R@a 4ES 7S oAREr

03 T 205 (ATF Wo T 055 AT TN N
TS LI (BT GO GBI |




TSI VTR NS

3w e wfifefene 3w 1. 3 T
TEF ISR BT 0 @, @i SR
ARG HEN A CIRCRBRANE (@ A
ARy O™ A AW FACS RA (OO Were
TAFR G T e FFo A0S TR S ofkAres
@A ARG TP 8 IR GHIET
Al ema AL IS AT | @ [ @
e ¢ SfaR @RfEPrmReew siftwr 8w e
SRENTA @Y 2T 0 eI (AR 0 AT |

ORI

ARBIE AT 203b-35 TIRE o T wfelxe
T efofB R & ©0% oW TSI eIt
AR FCACA |
=S aw sAweeT

wo TH 2wd> S @ fae av e
5,50€,5bY, 303 BT THIe FEACR A SFAS! 2059-5br
LR 2T 589,093,¢qY BT |

e S

@i FEwe @1, 9F JIRem 9 (@R BT
GFTCTETHT 05b-3s I I@T WA= FE T
IR | G, OF AEW GT (FI2 HIOTC GFENGH
@ IO T e FCACA | I Prfseiibe v
QFOE IR @GRS (BSEC / CMRRCD /
2009-193 / 104 / Admin, Dated the 27 July, 2011)
G &1 QST @ 74 |

2055-20 ¢ IER T Warws e o e
rerr fifite 6 Fge HOC GHCAETH FIH
ftatele® 29 3wRl (Expression of Interest) 2
TR | ArFs e e s b emers
AT IR NS Difwdt ST HIHTE GFCAHH-
@ @rifeg Sews e farevies s g
FE | @ [AE @IC TREF s L1 7T A
S ST HBTE AFEABBINEF 200,000 BIFT

et F 91 I 205-20 FLRE T @
s e Faemier o awie sEw | G
OEON JMAF AKET TOR (@A CRIREBRACR
RIBAT 8 OIS NHMCTR &y (o< T4 = |

CRRRIBIAANTENRT AT @A € FTF

@I W3S (e @i gt e o
MY el WA A WPNE, [ NG
CRIREERATE wIE o, wwifs, e
eFPS FGT 8 T TF SIS T T | FCA
CRIATRIEEE @ A Aoy @ T ey
TATTT S TAPTICE SRRSO | (IR0
R et (ATF GRITER, (RIRE (FI, 3-TNeE 8
ST 3G W efefme ey e Tag
JFACS AR |

TO@WE! 8 (N Gl

AfoIETeTedr gy g A A TZy TFeETE, €y
e wfymed, egd g wffe, sfre fofewe s
RRBITE OFD AL Gy A G SR |

Qe fSefte aT Iy IR, oI B
Qe o, 8 58U BF «HGE . @7 AfKS
RO FA AT FOeDIS =T TR |

TR R (@FOI-TSS], PrARE ¢ GSLIRAIS A
TEIFOT T AREE @RIEFAM SR | A
AT @ FHHIACET 197 Ao, WLz F=ifer,
S[TST @ TSy WO Ty 41 Taloiw FACE |

TITE IR ARGEFTeAd eid @ F 8
T @R O SIHRE TSiFed Teifee @
e FR | G ISR ARCS JIEEAT FOAF,
TSl ¢ FAGE b dfews |

¢ Tifed APIRS TFA AT AT Pl 8
T QT SGRAIT LT Bl | AT olelererear
G, (AT SPTIIRE 8 (@F=iifa Serared Sgfs,

e e e weefor @ =W wWER AR
RIS TN T2 FIA 7R |

ARTIETFNGAT AV 8 2ITF,

T 4w

TR T, &, (5.9, AT S TR ©, (TR N AT
MERGES

A(IBI AT

T 7 T, GFOIGT

3

_-m

Annual Report 2018-19

S



6

_-U

DIRECTORS' REPORT

Bismillahir Rahmanir Raheem
Distinguished Shareholders,
Assalamu Alaikum Wa Rahmatullah

We have the pleasure to welcome you on behalf of the
Board of Directors at the 35th Annual General Meeting
of The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd. and
present before you to receive, consider and adopt the
Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
year ended on 30 June 2019 together with the Auditors’
Report and Directors' Report thereon, for your valuable
guidance, opinion and consideration. We express our
gratitude to the Almighty Allah for the Company's
business achievement in 2018-19.

Main Objective of the Company

The Company's main objective was to play the role
usually offering the healthcare services of highest
standard through production and marketing of quality
Allopathic, Unani and Herbal medicines in Bangladesh
and abroad.

Industrial Prospects and Future
Sustainable Development

IBN SINA Pharma tried to maintain the continuity of its
productivity and best ethical standard of business affairs
preferring the principles of sustainable development in
the year under review. Alhamdulillah.

The Company has been able to hold its customer
satisfaction upright providing the quality products with
competitive price in the competitive business
environment. The Company gives the utmost
importance in extending business activities through
supply of products as per demand keeping in view of
future challenge depending on the modern technology.
The Company's outlook in terms of future sustainable
development has been mentioned in the page no 46 of
the Annual Report.

Business Analysis

The year under review, in spite of severe competition
prevailed in the national and international business
arena, we have been able to maintain an overall
progressive growth trend due to timely action taken by
the Board of Directors managing the finance efficiently
through visionary steps and ensuring proper
investment procedures.

As a result, it became easy and usual to produce quality
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medicine and deliver the same at the door steps of the
customers. The Company has played a significant role in
applying modern technology ensuring quality control,
smooth distribution and delivery of the medicine to the
patients and customers.

In the year 2018-19 EPS stood Tk. 10.76 which was Tk.
14.48 in 2017-18. In the year under review Net Asset
Value per share is Tk. 47.32 which was Tk. 39.28 in 2017-
18 and in the year 2018-19 Net Asset Value stood Tk.
1,478,296,395 which was Tk. 1,227,208,578 over the
last corresponding year. NOCFPS per share stood Tk.
13.87 in the year under review which was previously Tk.
6.16. It is mentionable that the increase in NOCFPS
arose due to the increase in collection of Trade and
Other Receivables in the current year.

Production Activity via Technology Utilization

Procurement of modern technology, research and training
are being continued in order to enrich the production
capacity of the factory by increasing efficiency and skills
in terms of quality and quantity as well. In the year under
review, the overall investment was increased by launching
some new sophisticated products and installing some
latest machinery & equipment in both Pharma and
Natural Medicine factory. These investments were funded
by own sources and institutional finance keeping the
balanced financial leverage.

Achievement of Sales Growths

The year under review the company's distribution
network and marketing management were strengthen
more in view of the attainment of the increased sales of
products. This help to fortify our position in the
pharmaceutical market. During the year 13.02% sales
growth was achieved compared to the preceding year. In
the year 2018-2019 overall sales achievement stood at
Tk. 5,263.96 million which was Tk. 4,657.35 million in the
last year. This was attained by coordinated efforts of
sales, marketing and factory.

Bangladesh Pharma Market

In the year under review, the growth of pharmaceutical
market of Bangladesh stood 10.65%. The IBN SINA
Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd. achieved 13.02% growth
which is good with respect to the growth of pharma
market of Bangladesh.

Financial Results

The financial results of 2018-19 are summarized below:




Amount in Taka

Particulars
2018-19 2017-18
Profit Before Tax 452,141,557 561,423,618
Less: Income Tax 115,874,687| 109,126,904
Profit After Tax 336,266,870 | 452,296,714

825327,282| 486,643,752
1,161,594,152| 938,940,466

Retcined Earnings (net) as per Lost Accounts

Retained Earnings

Net Asset Value (NAV) 1,478,296,395| 1,227,208,578

Eamings per Share (EPS) [Adjusted EPS, 2017-18] 10.76 14.48

Net Asset Value (NAV) per Share 47.32 39.28

Net Operating Cash Flow per Share 13.87 6.16
NOCFPS

m 2018-19 ® 2017-18 m 2018-19 ®m 2017-18

Fixed Assets

Keeping the continual achievement of last years' success,
mentionable investments were made in procurement
and development of land for establishment of API
industry, Industrial Park at Maona, Sreepur, Gazipur,
factory expansion including Solid Dosage Extension
Building, Bio-tech, Natural Medicine Plant, purchase of
new machineries, vehicles, power extension as well as
other developments in respect of fixed assets for the
Company. The detail particular of fixed assets added
during the year under review has been stated in the Page
no. 148 of the Financial Statements.

The Qualitative Standard of Medicine and Raw Materials

Being engaged for the welfare of the human being, IBN
SINA is committed to maintain the qualitative standard
of medicine. For this purpose, highest efforts are given to
identify genuine sources, colleting of best quality raw
materials and their proper storing and also producing
prescribed standard medicine for which there is an
effective Total Quality Management (TQM) system in the
company. Relentless endeavor is being given to deliver
the quality medicine with competitive price at the door
steps of the customers through sourcing of standard and
quality raw materials and producing them with state of
the art machineries.

Marketing of New Medicines
Pharma Division

The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd. is regularly
introducing new products along with existing products
which contributed remarkably in the achievement of
company's sales growth. In consequences of such IBN
SINA Pharma launched 13 new medicine of 9 generics in
2018-2019. In the year under review some of the
marketed products specially accepted by the doctors are
Tluca power for suspension, Linax plus 2.5/500, Linax plus
2.5/750, Linax plus 2.5/1000 tablet, Keranil 6% cream,
Keranil 12% cream, Gavisol suspension, Nep TS eye
drops, Dermastin cream & Dermastin ointment. Among
these products Gavisol suspension 200 ml is now
contributing highest revenue per month.

Natural Medicine Division

The general acceptability and consumption of natural
medicine is being increased mentionable in the country
and globally in comparison with synthetic (Allopathic)
medicine. IBN SINA Natural Medicine Division has earned
the trustworthiness and credibility from the physicians as
well as consumers. Since its establishment it is dedicated
to marketing qualitative standard Unani, Herbal and
consumer products assuring quality raw materials.

In the year 2018-19, the important and essential
products marketed are Voltasin Ointment, Recto
Ointment and Bobcare Ointment Each of the same has
been appreciated by the physicians.

Sales and Distribution

Sales and Distribution Department of The IBN SINA
Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd. is very time befitting and
well equipped futuristic. The manpower engaged in this
department are experienced, skilled having knowledge of
modern distribution channel management technology
serving diligently. There are 60 vehicles of various types
to distribute the medicine countrywide. Alongside of this,
timely distributing of the lifesaving goods at the door
steps of the consumers is being ensured through 19 sales
Depots. Smooth communication and customer service
has been accelerated adding modern technology like
software, automation and networking facilities.

Export Activities

The Company is giving utmost effort in expanding the
export market. The export related performance
statement for the year under review is given in the page
no. 106 of the Annual Report.
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Human Resources Development

The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd. has been
striving to establish long awaited goals and objectives of
the Company. The HRD Department is endeavoring to
create an emphatic balanced complimentary working
environment in all sides of head office, field levels and
factory through various activities like human resources
planning, recruitment, training, personnel evaluation,
promotion, etc. At present about to three thousand
employees with skills and integrity are giving their
diligent efforts to run the total activities of the Company
effectively and efficiently.

Legal, Training and Development

The Law Section of the Company is vigilant all the time
to properly face the litigations sued against the
Company, legally mitigation of industrial disputes,
keeping the Company compliant of overall legal
management activities. In order to develop skill as well as
efficiency of all level of employees increasingly, Training
and Development department initiated the various
professional training programmes. Last year, total 1121
employees in different levels were taken under training
programme of in-house and in different local & foreign
professional training organisations. A plan was taken to
bring the total manpower of the company in the same
platform gradually of Need-based Training Manual
adopting an appropriate training policy.

Corporate Governance Compliance Report

IBN SINA Pharma is committed to run the organisation
in adherence to the code of corporate governance
(Notification No. BSEC / CMRRCD / 2006 -158 / 207 /
Admin / 80, Dated: 3 June 2018) issued by the
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission
(BSEC). During the year under review the code applicable
for IPI was duly followed. The compliance of the
corporate governance code certified by the Compliance
Auditors and status of compliance of the Company is
reflected respectively in "Annexure- B" and "Annexure- C"
of the Annual Report page no. 81.

Compliance to the Labor Laws

In order to maintain labour friendly atmosphere in all
aspects, the Company duly comply with The Bangladesh
Labour Act, 2006 (As amended 2013) and other laws and
regulations as applicable to the Company. As per The
Bangladesh Labour Rules, 2015 some committees like
Participatory Committee, Safety Committee and Canteen
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Management Committee were formed. Besides this,
Sexual Harassment Protection Committee has also been
formed. These committees are serving for the wellbeing
of the workers within the purview of the provisions.

Pollution Free Environment

In order to protect from risk of human health and
environment, caused by increasing manmade pollution;
IBN SINA is trying its best to keep pollution free
environment and follow the required laws and rules of
Directorate General of Drug Administration and
Department of Environment of the Government in the
factory and its surrounding as well.

Compliance Auditors Appointment

M. Mohashin & Co., Chartered Secretaries, compliance
auditors of the Company audited the status of
compliance of the Company for the year 2018-19. M.
Mohashin & Co., Chartered Secretaries retire at this
meeting. M. Mohashin & Co., Chartered Secretaries had
performed as compliance auditors of the Company last 3
years from 2016-17,2017-18, 2018-19.

The company has received Expression of Interest (Eol) to
be appointed as compliance auditors from two (2)
recognized Chartered Secretaries firms. The profile of these
two Audit Firms was reviewed by the Audit Committee and
recommended to appoint M/s. Itrat Hussain & Associates,
Chartered Secretaries in Practice, as compliance auditors
of the Company for the next financial year. After review
and discussion over the profile and particulars of the said
firms, the Board of Directors has endorsed in favor of M/s.
Itrat Hussain & Associates, Chartered Secretaries in
Practice to be appointed as compliance auditors for the
financial year 2019-20 subject to approval by the
Shareholders in the 35th AGM of the Company to be held
on Thursday 14 November 2019.

Disclosures from the Directors about Additional
Compliance Information

The objective of Corporate Good Governance is to run
the Company effectively and legitimately with a sense of
accountability and transparency to the shareholders and
the society as a whole. The Company is complying with
the "Corporate Governance Code” of Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission.

The Board of Directors has confirmed the standard of
corporate good governance incorporating the following
additional statements in the Annual Report:

(a) The industry outlook and possible future
development of the company is stated in the page no.
46 of the Annual Report.




(b) The information about the segment-wise or product-
wise performance is stated in the page no. 128 of the
Annual Report.

(c) The report regarding the risks and concerns including
internal and external risk factors, threat to sustainability
and negative impact on environment is stated in the
page no. 77 of the Annual Report.

(d) The information about the cost of goods sold, gross
profit margin and net profit margin is stated in the page
no. 47 of the Annual Report.

(e) The detail discussion on the business related party
transaction of the Company is stated in the page no. 145
of the Annual Report.

(f) A statement of remuneration paid to the directors
including independent directors is stated in the page no.
147 of the Annual Report.

(g) The financial statements prepared by the
management present fairly the state of affairs of the
Company, results of its operations, cash flow and
changes of equity.

(h) The Books of Accounts of the Company have been
properly maintained.

(i) Principles of accounting have been followed in
preparing the statement of accounts and estimates
related to accounting have been made reasonably and
with prudence.

(j) IAS and IFRS applicable in Bangladesh have been
followed in preparing the financial statements.

(k) The internal control system was proper and effective
application and monitoring was confirmed.

(1) The ability of the Company as a going concern has
been proved.

(m) There have been no remarkable deviations in the
operational affairs as compared to the previous year.

(n) Preceding five years' key operational and financial
data have been summarized in page. 47.

(0) The attendance in Board of Directors meetings has
been described in page. 61.

(p) The shareholding pattern of the Company has been
presented in page. 57.

(q) There is no mentionable deviation in between
quarterly and annual accounts.

(r) The management discussion and analysis given by
the Managing Director of the Company is stated in the
page no. 44 of the Annual Report.

(s) Declaration or Certification by the Managing Director
and Chief Financial Officer to the Board of Director's as
required by the notification of BSEC is disclosed in the
page no. 110 of the Annual Report.

(t) A statment of Remuneration and Nomination
Committee is stated in the page no. 75 of the Annual
Report.

(u) The report of compliance on the Corporate Governance
Code audited by Compliance Auditors has been
incorporated as per proforma prescribed by BSEC which is
shown in "Annexure-C" and page. 82 of Annual Report.

Implementation of IAS, IFRS and Other Applicable
Laws and Regulations

The Board of Directors of the Company is entrusted to
ensure the disclosure of the actual financial position and
preparation and maintenance of all types of Statutory
Statements as per the Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission (BSEC) and Companies Act-1994.
The Board of Directors is absolutely responsible to
prepare all types of financial reports in line with
International Accounting Standard (IAS), International
Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) and other applicable
rules and regulations. The role and responsibilities of the
Directors in the presentation of the financial report has
been stated in page no. 80 of the Annual Report.

Financial Report and Accountability

The Board of Directors
responsibilities

discharged their due
through timely preparation and
publication of 1st quarter, half yearly, 3rd quarter and
annual financial report at the end of each financial
period and the affairs of the Company performed in the
year under review. Audit Committee, sub-committee of
Board
transparency and completeness of these reports before

examined the fairness, exactness and

placement of the same to the Board for their approval.

The Company published the report (un-audited
accounts) of 1st Quarter, half yearly and 3rd quarter
accounts as per notification of Bangladesh Securities
and Exchange Commission (BSEC) and the Listing Rules
2015 of Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd (DSE) and
Chittagong Stock Exchange (CSE) through Company's
Website, Newspapers and Online News Portal and
submitted the same timely to BSEC, DSE, CSE and other
regulatory authorities.
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About the Related Party Transactions

The business related party transaction of the Company is
being made based on the business principle and as per
International Accounting Standard IAS-24. During the
year under review, the standard, nature and the manner
of related party transactions in the ordinary course of
business carried out arm's length basis at commercial
rates with its related parties were reflected transparently
in the financial statements which is given in the page no.
145 of the Annual Report.

Minority Shareholders’ Interest Protection

During the year under review, the minority shareholders’
interest has duly been protected with effective means of
redress. No abusive actions either directly or indirectly
with regard to the interest of controlling shareholders
was observed.

Un-usual Profit and Loss

In the year 2018-19, there is no un-usual profit and loss
was observed.

Directors’ Shareholding Position

Particulars of shares as against the name of the Directors
of the Company have been stated in the page no. 57 of
the Annual Report.

Audit Committee

As per BSEC's notification no. BSEC / CMRRCD / 2006-
158 /207 / Admin /80 dated 3 June, 2018, the Audit
Committee consisting of three members including two
Independent Directors having prominent reputation and
versatile knowledge and experience has been working
effectively. The Audit Committee had detailed discussion
and analysis on its report as directed by BSEC and the
Board with regard to internal audit system, preparation
of annual financial report and the observations of
external auditors. As there was no evidence of smallest
mistakes, dissemblance or information contrary to the
truth, the financial report was considered as realistic and
transparent. Report of the Audit Committee is presented
in the page no. 73 of the Annual Report.

Beneficiary Insider Trading Prohibition Policy

The Company has outlined the Beneficiary Insider Trading
Prohibition Policy regarding the trading of Company's
share for its directors, employees and concerned persons.
The policy is being followed accordingly.

Policy for Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

In view of the corporate social responsibility of the
company, the Board of Directors has approved a CSR
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policy for implementation of good governance practice
on a regular basis. A three member committee has been
formed to implement this policy. The CSR activities as
per CSR policy taken by the Company in the year under
review are being carried out by the CSR committee; a
sub-committee of the Board has been stated in the page
no. 68 of the Annual Report.

Independent Director

As per notification no-BSEC / CMRRCD / 2006 -158 / 207
/ Admin / 80 dated 3 June, 2018 of Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC), Mr. Rafiqul
Islam Khan, FCA and Mr. Md. Abdus Salam FCA, FCS
have been performing the duties as Independent
Directors.

Respect to the Laws

The laws of the state and other applicable rules and
regulations of the Company and the affairs, thereon have
duly been complied with the highest preference and
timely actions thereon have been ensured. The Company
is committed to abide by the rules of regulatory bodies
and other legislative authorities as always.

Statutory Payments

All statutory payments in relation to the employees and
the government have duly been made up-to-date.

Compliance to the Laws of the Capital Market

Since listing in both the Stock Exchanges, the Company
strictly abides by all the laws, regulations and directions
circulated time to time by Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission (BSEC), Dhaka Stock Exchange
Ltd. (DSE) and Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd. (CSE).

The Key Information of the Financial Statements

As per direction of the Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission (BSEC), the key information of the
financial statements of Preceding five years' have been
summarized in the page no. 47 of the Annual Report.

Welfare Activities for the Company's Officers and Workers

The welfare activities for the Company's officers and
workers were taken during the year under review are briefly
represented in the page no. 70 of the Annual Report.

Workers' Profit Participation and Welfare Fund

In the year under review 5% of the Company's profit i.e.
Tk. 22,692,136 will be transferred to the workers' profit
participation fund and welfare fund as per Labor Law
2006 (As amended in 2013).




Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients (API) Project

The Board of Directors of The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical
Industry Ltd. in its 264th Meeting held on 28.04.2019
has decided to form a wholly owned "subsidiary
company” in the name of "IBN SINA API Ltd." in the
BSCIC API Industrial Park, Gozaria, Munshiganj, allotted
by the Ministry of Industry, Govt. of Bangladesh in favour
of The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd. to
produce and market "Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients”
(API) subject to obtaining necessary approval from the
regulatory authorities concerned.

Investment in The IBN SINA Consumer Products Ltd.

The IBN SINA Consumer Products Ltd. was established is
Singair, Manikganj keeping in view of fulfilling the
demand of balanced food and nutrition for the
populations of Bangladesh.

As of 30 June 2019, out of total paid up capital Tk. 10
crore, IBN SINA Pharma invested Tk. 4 crore for holding
of 40% Shares of The IBN SINA Consumer Products Ltd.
This investment stands 2.19% of tangible assets Tk.
1,823,965,830/- (Property Plant and Equipment and
Capital Work-in-Progress), therefore, it is recommended
by the board that approval of the shareholders in this
AGM is required pursuant to the BSEC's Notification no.
SEC / CMRRCD / 2008-183 / Admin / 03-30; Dated June
1, 2009 for the capital investment exceeding 1% of total
tangible assets of The IBN ISNA Pharmaceutical
Industry Ltd. to its Associate Company, The IBN SINA
Consumer Products Ltd.

Internal Control

Internal control system of The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical
Industry Ltd. is founded on specified set code approved
by the Board. The Board of Directors incorporates
necessary norms and practices of internal control system
for development and control. An effective internal control
system is in action to ensure the transparency, highest
productivity and maximum utilization of resources.

A Going Concern

By the grace of the Almighty Allah, the Board of
Directors after analysis of the business trend of the
Company has confirmed that the Company has enough
ability to carry on business activities in the coming days
as a Going Concern and the financial statements have
been prepared on the basis of going concern assumption.
As per management assessment there is no material
uncertainties related to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt upon the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern.

Company's Position in the Share Market

In the year under review, the market share of the
Company did not face ups and downs significantly in
either Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd. (DSE) or Chittagong
Stock Exchange Ltd. (CSE). The shareholders had always
been confident on IBN SINA shares. In the year 2018-19,
The company shares were traded in the both stock
exchanges at minimum of Tk. 231.10 to maximum of Tk.
345.00 as against the face value of Tk.10.

Contribution to the National Exchequer

The Company had made a significant contribution in the
year 2018-19 towards the National Exchequer by paying
Tk. 970,646,752 as Income Tax and VAT. This is equivalent
to 34.04% of the sales in the year under review.

Risk Management

In order to control all matters involving risks and
uncertainties, the Company has a strong management
process. This has been described in details in page. 77 of
this Annual Report.

Code of Ethics and its Implementation

Highest emphasis is given on the implementation of
code of ethics and principles so that the concerned
officials and personnel can take appropriate decision
complying the required laws and professional manner.

Workers-Officers Relationships

There exists devotion to work and respectful harmonious
relationships among all levels of officers and employees
in The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd. which has
accelerated the Company's progress and productivity.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

In accordance with the condition 6 of Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission's Code of
Corporate Governance, BSEC / CMRRCD / 2006 -158 /
207 / Admin / 80 dated 3 June 2018, the Board in its
266th meeting held on 26.06.2019 formed the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) with
the following composition:

Mr. Md. Abdus Salam FCA, FCS

Independent Director
Chairman

Commodore (Retd.) M. A. Rahman
Non-Executive Director
Member

4
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Mr. Md. Rafiqul Islam Khan FCA
Independent Director
Member

Md. Shahid Farooqui, FCS acts as the Secretary of NRC.
The report from the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (NRC) about their activities performed during
the year under review is mentioned in the page no. 75 of
the Annual Report.

Directors’ Remuneration

This information is incorporated in the Notes. 27 of the
Notes to the Financial Statements on the page 141 with
reference to the "Directors Fees and Remuneration”
figures relating to the Board of Directors including
Independent Directors.

Wage-Remuneration Policy

The salary and wages of the employees are usually
determined considering the prevailing inflation, price
index and in commensuration with the existing salary
structure in other competitors’ companies.The procedure
of evaluation and determining the honorarium of the
functional directors are being followed within the criteria
recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (NRC) and approved by the Board as per
corporate governance code of BSEC.

Election of Directors

Prof. Dr. AK.M. Sadrul Islam and Mr. Kazi Harun-or-Rashid
retire from the office in this Annual General Meeting as
per clause 28 of Articles of Association of the Company.
As per law, the retired directors are eligible to be re-
elected to act as Director. The brief resume along with the
required information of the directors to be re-elected are
available under the Directors' Profile of this Annual Report.

Casual Vacancy of two (2) Directors

In view of holding less than minimum 2% shares of the
paid-up capital of the Company, the directorship
(Shareholding Directors) of Prof. Dr. Shah Md. Bulbul
Islam and Colonel (Retd.) Prof. Dr. Zehad Khan be and is
hereby ceased from the Company and resolved this issue
of casual vacancy as such pursuant to the BSEC's
Notification No. BSEC / CMRRCD / 2009 -193 / 217 /
Admin / 90 Dated May 21, 2019 by the Board of
Directors in its 265th Meeting held on 09.06.2019.

In the said Board meeting, the Board of Directors
gratefully acknowledged their valuable contributions and
services to the Board during their tenure.
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Whistle Blowing Policy

Company's Whistle Blowing Policy ensures to establish
transparency in all aspects and also in terms of
minimizing the risk management and detecting any
forgery or embezzlement.

Events After the Reporting Period

Events After the Reporting Period for the year 2018-19,
no necessity arose for later adjustment or no subject
pecuniary thereto happened which is mentionable in the
financial statements.

Dividend Policy

The management of the company sincerely believes that
at the end of yearly operation of the company, the
highest benefit i.e. dividend is given to the shareholders
after retaining a portion of earnings so that the
company can maintain the ability for future expansion
and also extending facilities to the shareholders in future.
Keeping this policy in mind, the company declares
dividends giving importance on a balance between the
present expectation of the shareholders and that of
potential beneficiaries considering all relevant applicable
laws and best practice in this connection.

Dividend

Based on the overall performance as reflected in the
Financial Statements for the year 2018-19 of the
Company, the Board of Directors proposed cash dividend
of 30% as against per share of Tk.10 each.

Reserves and Surplus

In the year 2018-19, Company's reserves and surplus
rose to Tk. 1,165,986,262 which was Tk. 943,332,576 in
the previous year.

Appointment of Statutory Auditors

S F Ahmed & Co., Chartered Accountants, statutory
auditors of the Company, audited the Accounts for the
year 2018-19. S F Ahmed & Co., Chartered Accountants
retire at this meeting. As per BSEC/CMRRCD/2009-
193/104/Admin Dated the 27 July, 2011 notification,
the existing Auditors is not eligible for re-appointment as
statutory auditors.

The Company has received Expression of Interest (Eol)
to be appointed as statutory auditors from two (2)
recognized Chartered Accountants firms. The profile of
these two Audit Firms was reviewed by the Audit
Committee and suggested to appoint M/s. Malek



Siddiqui Wali, Chartered Accountants as Statutory
Auditors of the company for the next financial period.
After review and discussion over the profile and
particulars of the said firms, the Board of Directors has
recommended in favor of M/s. Malek Siddiqui Wali,
Chartered Accountants to be appointed as statutory
auditors for the financial year 2019-20 with a
remuneration of Taka 2 (two) Lac only subject to
approval by the Shareholders in the 35th AGM of the
company to be held on Thursday 14 November 2019.

Relation and Communication with the Shareholders

The Company has been arranging regular Annual
General Meetings (AGM) as per Companies Act, 1994
through which shareholders are informed about the
Company's progress, important activities and the
development activities under taken during the year under
review. As a result, the shareholders, concerned
organizations and the people get various information
about the Company in due time. The shareholders of the
Company are able to collect all required information
from our Share Department through landphone, mobile
phone and e-mail service.

Recognition and Compliments

The Board of Directors extends its heart-felt gratefulness

to the Ministry of Health, Directorate General of Drug
Administration, respected Doctors, Chemists, Patrons and
all concerned with the pharmaceutical industry for their all
out support to us. The Board of Directors remembers the
co-operation of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission (BSEC), Dhaka Stock Exchanges Ltd. (DSE)
and Chittagong Stock Exchanges Ltd. (CSE) gratefully. The
Board thanks the Financial Institutions for their support.

The Board of Directors wishes all levels of officers,
employees, buyers, consumers, patrons, well wishers and all
concerned for their sincere contribution towards our business
success. We are also grateful to our beloved shareholders for
their comprehensive support to the company.

The shareholders’ trustworthiness to the Board of
Directors make them confident and deeply inspired. The
management and employees of all levels are committed
to uphold this.

May Allah Subhanahu Wa Taa'la accept all our efforts for
the development of our Company, Nation and the
Country. We pray to the Almighty Allah for His blessings
for continual overall progress and prosperity of our
beloved country People’s Republic of Bangladesh and
the Company.

Allah Hafiz.

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf.

S 4—r

Prof. Dr. Choudhury Mahmood Hasan
Director

Prof. Dr. AK.M. Sadrul Islam
Managing Director

Md. Shahid Farooqui FCS
Company Secretary

Annual Report 2018-19




4

_-u

Annual Report 2018-19

Statement from the Managing Director
(Management's Discussion and Analysis)

Bismillahir Rahmanir Rahim
Dear Shareholders
Assalamu Alaikum Wa Rahmatullah

By the grace of Almighty Allah, The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd. has
completed its journey of 35 years with achievement records in Pharma business.
This year, similar to the successful track records, we have been able to maintain
revenue at a reasonable level in the financial year 2018-19. We acknowledge with
gratitude the continued trust and support of our valued shareholders, patrons,
physicians, regulatory authorities, and the end users of Company's products.

As per condition no. 1 (5) (xxv) of the Corporate Governance Code 2018 issued by
Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission, the management's discussion
and analysis representing detailed analysis of the Company's position and
operations along with a brief discussion of changes in the financial statements for
the year 2018-19, among others, centering on:-



Turnover amounted to Tk 5,263.96 Million increased by
13.02 % over the year 2017-18;

Earnings per share (EPS) stood Tk. 10.76 which was Tk.
14.48 in the year 2017-18;

Enriching product portfolio by introducing 13 new products
with 9 generics in Pharma and 3 Natural Medicine (Harbal
and Unani);

Contribution to the National Exchequer in the form of VAT,
AIT and Corporate Tax of Tk 970.65 Million;

Accounting Policies and Estimation for Preparation of
Financial Statements

The accounting policies and estimation for the preparation
of financial statements of the Company has been mentioned
in details in the page no. 121 of the Annual Report.

Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimation

No changes in accounting policies and estimation which
have the effect on financial performance or results and
financial position as well as cash flows in absolute figure for
such changes was observed in the year under review and the
description on the issue is stated in the page no. 122 of the
Annual Report.

Comparative Analysis of Financial Performance and
Operational Performance

Comparative analysis of financial performance or results and
financial position as well as cash flows for current financial
year with immediate preceding five years has been
explained with reasons thereof in the page no. 47 of the
Annual Report.

Comparison of Financial Performances and Financial
Position as well as Cash Flows with Peer Industry Scenario:

The Company is diversified business conglomerate having
several production plants. It is noted that the Industry
growth as per IMS report 10.65%; on the other hand the
Company's national growth 13.02%.

The Financial and Economic Scenario of the Bangladesh
and Global Position as well is briefly placed as under:

The market-based economy of Bangladesh is one of the
fastest growing economies in the world. The financial sector
of Bangladesh is the second largest in the subcontinent, it is
reflected the strategic importance of Bangladesh in this
region. As of 2019, Bangladesh's GDP per capita income is
estimated as per IMF data at US$4,992 (PPP) and
US$1,888 (nominal).

The Bangladesh government continues to pursue foreign
investment in various thrust sectors including
pharmaceuticals. Other industries which have shown very
strong growth hold the pharmaceutical industry as well. It
has been projected by Bangladesh Government in its
Seventh Five-Year Plan to achieve GDP growth rate of 7.8
percent in the fiscal year 2018-19.

The nation is marching ahead in achieving the
government's Seventh Five-Year Plan, we are on strong foot
steps towards this upward growth despite the probable
challenges like natural calamities, lack of skilled workers,
financial sector vulnerabilities and the slow pace of
infrastructural reforms.

Risk and Concerns Issues Related to the Financial Statements

The risks and concerned issues related to the financial
statements, explaining such risk and mitigation plan thereof
is described in the page no. 129 & 146 of the Annual Report.

The Justification of Future Plan/Projection/Forecast for
Company's Operations, Performances and Financial Position

The Company has taken an ambitious plan to step forward
with a long term vision in order to achieve excellence in the
manufacturing and marketing of Pharma & Herbal products
and extending its business to abroad. The plan includes
developing of new production facilities and diversifying of
product ranges at one side and targeting annual sales of
more than thousands crore taka on the other side within
next 3 years.

Among the new projects, Oral Solid Dosage (OSD) extended
facility has been entered into operation and the new Lyo-
Injection line & Prefilled Syringes facility will come into
operation in February 2020. New liquid project work is now
going on. It will be taken into operation in the early 2021
with advanced products range.

We are expecting to start trial production in the Govt. API
project in February-March 2020. Once commercial
production will start, Company's in-house API demand & the
national demand as a whole for a number of API raw
materials will be met from this facility.

The most important breakthrough that IBN SINA Pharma
achieved the export of its 1st consignment of Over-the-
counter (OTC) products to USA. In fact it was a dream and
finally it has come into the reality. Hopefully the export of
the Company's products to US Pharma market will be
continued in the coming days as well.

The next most important breakthrough will be into the field
of Biotechnology. The management of the Company
appointed an US Consultant in this regard & had signed
MOU with two Chinese Companies for technical
collaboration. Setting up of one R&D Lab. and an animal
house for Biotech Project have been started.

The work progress of the IBN SINA Pharma Industrial Park
at Godhulia, Mauna, Gazipur is satisfactory. The
management has been thinking to undertake a massive
work plan here and it will be started soon.

While, concluding, I would like to express my sincere
appreciation to you all, our valued customers, shareholders,
the suppliers, bankers, business partners, the healthcare
professionals and our regulatory authorities for their trust
and continued support to the Company and to all the
employees of the Company for their hard endeavor.

We pray to Almighty Allah for His blessings for the
Company's bright success in future.

b~

Prof. Dr. AK.M. Sadrul Islam
Managing Director
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IBN SINA Looks for Faster Growth
a a journey towards excellence N

Going beyond the conventional approach, IBN SINA Pharma now looks for a faster growth with
diversified new product ranges. It has evoked a new arena for IBN SINA Pharma to step forward
echoing to the global development in medical sciences. In fact, Medical Sciences are developing
very fast, and creating new demands for new technology and new facility. IBN SINA Pharma is
well aware of the requirement and has undertaken a number of ambitious projects and
earmarked dynamic business strategies to meet the upcoming challenges.

API Projects

API Project is one of the priority projects of IBN SINA
Pharma. Civil construction work of R&D cum Pilot
Production is now at final stage. Construction of API
Production Building has also been started simultaneously.

Our Indian and US Consultants have been working on
API synthesis. Technology of Pilot synthesis for a
number of API molecules are now ready for
implementation.

Liquid Products Manufacturing Project:

This is the 2nd priority project. IBN SINA Pharma is one
of the major producer of liquid finished products. Present
facility of liquid production is insufficient to meet market
demand. Therefore, it has been proposed to put priority
on liquid production building in the new project list.

IBN SINA Industrial Park, Mouna, Gazipur

In order to achieve a long term sustainable growth of the
IBN SINA Pharma by including new generation drugs and
adapting new technology, IBN SINA Pharma has
undertaken a courageous step in setting up of an Industrial
Park of an its own namely "IBN SINA Industrial Park™ at
Mouna, Gazipur. The Park will include eight production
projects mostly for the production of life saving drugs
including Biotech & Oncology (Anti-Cancer) Drugs
manufacturing units.

Biotech (Bio-similar) Products
Manufacturing Project:

Biotech products are the new class of products to IBN
SINA Pharma. It includes the fastest growing drug
products and encompasses all categories of drugs
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including insulin, anti-cancer, CV drugs, etc. Bio-similar
drugs market in Bangladesh is growing very fast and
most of the big companies are now working with
Biotech facility.

Management of IBN SINA Pharma is now very much
sincere to set up a Biotech facility and signed MOU with
two Chinese companies for Technology Transfer.
Meanwhile an earmark has been made to set up a Bio-
tech Laboratory including an animal house.

Valuka Project: Commitment towards US-FDA
Compliant Production Facility

Last year, we informed that IBN SINA Pharma is now an
US-FDA registered company. First phase of US
marketing has been started with OTC products. It will be
continued gradually with prescription products as well by
third party manufacturing.

In order to shift the third party manufacturing to IBN
SINA’s own plant, the IBN SINA Management has
undertaken a plan for setting up of the most compliant
and state-of-the-art production facility at Valuka,
Mymensing. The objective of this specialized compliant
facility is to obtain US FDA certification.

New Extended Production Facilities

First Phase of the project has been completed and
started production. Second Phase is expecting to be
completed soon & it will add new products like Lyo-Dry
Vial Injection, Prefilled Syringes & Cartridges. Many of
the new product categories and dosage forms will be, in
fact, for the first time in Bangladesh



Key Financial Highlights

Amount in Taka

PARTICULARS 2014 2015 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

Sales (Net) 2678909367  3,162,625108  3,490,800000  4,009,153,501 4,657350011  5,263,963344
Sales Growth (%) 21.29% 18.06% 18.90% 14.85% 16.17% 13.02%
Cost of goods sold (COGS) 1,609,797,641 1896784005 ~ 2082029983 2385628180 2764720036  3,102,151,141
COGS Growth (%) 892 20.15 17.83 14.58 15.89 1220
Gross Profit 1,069,111,726 1265841103 ~ 1408770017  1,623,525321 1892629975  2,161,812,203
Gross Profit Ratio (%) 3991% 40.03% 40.36% 40.50% 40.64% 41.07%
Net Profit before Tax 169,935,002 231,511,764 286,169,430 306,468,807 561,423,618 452,141,557
Net Profit after Tax 127,278,420 178,057,156 202,811,006 233,829,346 452,296,714 336,266,870
Net Profit Ratio 475% 5.63% 581% 583% 9.71% 6.39%
Workers P.P. Fund & Welfare Fund 8,496,750 11,575,588 14,308,471 15,354,783 28,184,657 22,692,136
No. of Share holder 11,381 11,381 10,704 11,249 10,969 11,748
Return on Equity 18.74% 2138% 23.83% 23.69% 38.79% 2486%
Current Ratio 1.03 0.31 0.77 0.89 0.81 0.84
Equity per Share (Taka) 31.77 3895 33.67 38.90 39.28 4732
Earning per Share (Restated) 5.67 7.21 7.85 8.23 14.48

Earning per Share (Orginal) 5.95 793 9.03 9.06 15.92 10.76
Price Earning Ratio (Time) 16.89 16.89 25.75 27.36 16.17 2454
Quoted Price per Share-DSE (Year End) 100.50 100.50 23250 24790 257.40 26410

» 30% Cash 25% Cash ~ 12.50% Cash 25% Cash 30% Cash
Dividend per Share : 810%Stock  &5%Stock & 10%Stock  &10%Stock  30% Cesh
& 5% Stock

Reserve & Surplus (Year End) 259,286,963 362,500,119 385,182,808 557,265,854 943332576 1,165,986,262
Dividend Yield 3.48% 2.34% 1.51% 1.41% 1.55% 1.14%
Dividend Payout Ratio 58.82% Lb14% 44,56 % 38.65% 2512% 21.87%
Retained Eamning 254,894,853 358,108,009 380,790,698 552,873,744 938,940,466  1,161,594,152
Retained Eaming (Yearly) 52,434,420 99,470,956 124,224,806 143,455,216 338,683,522 242,535,989
Current Assets 412,684,597 434,659,631 451,450,553 643,644,663 859,761,961 964,225,217
Current Liabilities 400,948,605 534,721,516 584,750,907 726,608,044  1,062,536,232  1,144,311,664
Fixed Assets (Net) 515,907,382 870,486,005 951,723570  1,116,332,498  1,409,800,123  1,684,778351
NAV 679,344,704 832,945,668 869,431,627  1,104963231 1227208578  1478,296,395
NOCFPS 8.12 9.60 1492 438 6.16 13.87

*2015-16 figures include 06 month ( from 01 July 2015 to 31 December 2015) Performance of 2015.
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Operating Performance
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Division Wise Sales: 2018-19
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Share Performance
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NAV Per Share (Restated)
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Shareholders' Information 2018-19

For the year ended 30th June, 2019

Authorized Capital : Tk. 50,00,00,000

Paid-up Capital : Tk. 31,24,36,270

No. of Share : 31,243,627

Class of Shares : Ordinary Shares of Tk. 10 each
Voting Right : One Vote per Ordinary Share
Market Category A

Redressal of investors' complain : During the year under review, the
complaints received from the Shareholders have duly been addressed
and resolved accordingly.

Stock Exchange Listing

The issued Ordinary Shares of The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry
Ltd. are listed with the Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited and Chittagong
Stock Exchange Limited.

Status of Shareholdings-2019 (June) <IGHININ|
Directors and Sponsors : 13,883,056  (44.43%)
Public 011,388,874 (36.46%)

Institutions : 5971697 (1911%)

B Director and Sponsors
B Public
Institutions

In Pursuance of BSEC Notification no.-SEC/CMRRCD/2008-183/Admin/03-34 dated 27.09.2009
The Quarterly Reports are given below :-

Quarterly Results
During the year 2018-19 operational results of the Company were announced on-

First Quarter Report 06 November 2018
Half Yearly Report 27 January 2019
Third Quarter Report 28 April 2019

. Dividend : Financial Year 2017-18
Board Meeting for the Year 2017-18 25 September 2018
Record Date for the Year 2017-18 22 October 2018
34th Annual General Meeting for the Year 2017-18 22 November 2018
Commencement of Cash Dividend Warrant Distribution for the Year 2017-18 12 December 2018
Completion of Cash Dividend Warrant Distribution for the Year 2017-18 19 December 2018
Stock Dividend (Bonus Share) Credited for the Year 2017-18 02 December 2018
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Pattern of Shareholdings

{ As on June 30, 2019 ]

Particulars sh g'g's?\fel a Percentage
Shares held by :
(a) Parents / Subsidiary / Associated Companies other related parties : N/A
(b) i) Shares held by Directors Representative
IBN SINA Trust 13,693,312 43.8275
Shah Abdul Hannan Rep. IBN SINA Trust
Commodore (Retd.) M. A. Rahman Rep. IBN SINA Trust
Prof. A.N. M. A. Zaher Rep. IBN SINA Trust
Prof. Dr. A. K. M. Sadrul Islam Rep. IBN SINA Trust
Prof. Dr. Choudhury Mahmood Hasan Rep. IBN SINA Trust
Kazi Harun-or-Rashid Rep. IBN SINA Trust
Md. Abdus Salam, FCA, FCS (Independent Director) self Nil
Md. Rafiqul Islam Khan, FCA (Independent Director) self Nil
(b) ii) Sh.ares.held py Dirg:ctors, Chief Executive Off!cer, Comppny Secretary, No. of Percentage

Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit and their spouses shares held
Shah Abdul Hannan Chairman self 1,369 0.0044
Commaodore (Retd.) M. A. Rahman Director self 74,979 0.2400
Prof. Dr. AKM. Sadrul Islam Managing Director self 2,765 0.0088
Prof. Dr. Choudhury Mahmood Hasan Director self 6,939 0.0222
Kazi Harun-or-Rashid Director self 103,692 0.3319
Md. Abdus Salam, FCA, FCS (Independent Director) self Nil
Md. Rafiqul Islam Khan, FCA (Independent Director) self Nil
Company Secretary, his Spouse
and minor children self Nil
Chief Financial Officer, his Spouse
and minor children self Nil
Head of Internal Audit and Copliance, his spouse 57
and minor children self Nil

(c) Shares held by top five salaried employees other than the Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary,

Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit and their spouses

Dr. Md. Rafiqul Hug
Md. Nurullah

Md. Abdul Khaleque
Md. Parvez Kabir
Md. Ilyus

self
self
self
self
self

(d) Shareholders holding 10% or more voting right :

Note : Total 13,693,312 no. of shares are registered against the name of Six trustees nominated by the IBN SINA Trust.
None of the individual Director/Shareholder holds more than 10 % share.

55
Nil
335
Nil
Nil

N/A

0.0001

0.0010
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Value Added Statement

For the year ended 30th June 2019

PARTICULARS

VALUE ADDED

Turnover & other income

Less: Material costs & services

APPLICATIONS

To Employees as salaries, wages & allowances
To Providers of finance as financial charges

To National exchequer

For replacement of fixed assets as depreciation
Dividend to Shareholders

For future growth as retained earnings

2018-19
3.29

0.52

To Employees as salaries, wages & allowances
To Providers of finance as financial charges

To National exchequer

For replacement of fixed assets as depreciation
Dividend to Shareholders

For future growth as retained earnings
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Amount in Taka

2018-19 Percentage 2017-18 Percentage
(%) (%)
5,266,340,121 4,879,251,490
2,415,219,832 2,200,746,061

2,851,120,289  100.00 2,678,505,429 100.00

1,400,997,531 49.14 1,206,934,447 45.06
14,738,885 0.52 35,856,327 1.34
970,646,752 34.04 871,178,813 32.52
128,470,252 451 112,239,130 419
93,730,881 3.29 113,613,192 4.24
242,535,989 8.51 338,683,522 12.64

2,851,120,289  100.00 2,678,505,429 100.00

2017-18

12.64

1.34

To Employees as salaries, wages & allowances
To Providers of finance as financial charges

To National exchequer

For replacement of fixed assets as depreciation
Dividend to Shareholders

For future growth as retained earnings




Market Value Added
(MVA) Statement

Market value added statement reflects the Company's performance
evaluated by the market through the share price of the Company. This
statement shows the difference between market capitalization and book
value of the shares outstanding. In other words, it is the sum of all capital
claims held against the Company plus the market value of debt and equity.

The higher MVA is the better indication. A high MVA indicates the Company has
created substantial wealth for the shareholders. A negative market value added
means the value of management's actions and investments are less than the
value of the capital contributed to the Company by the capital market.

The following statement shows how the MVA has been calculated for the year
2018-19.and 2017-18:-

Particulars in BDT Million

2018-19 2017-18

Market Value of Shares Outstanding 4584.93 4059.98
Book Value of Shares Outstanding 173.61 157.73
Market Value Added 4411.32 3902.25
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Economic Value
Added Statement

For the year ended 30th June, 2019

Economic value added (EVA) is a measure of a company's financial performance
based on the residual wealth calculated by deducting its cost of capital from its
operating profit, adjusted for taxes on a cash basis. EVA can also be referred to as
economic profit, and it attempts to capture the true economic profit of a company.

Particulars

Operating Profit
Provision for Income Tax
Net Operating Profit After Tax (NOPAT)

Charges for Capital
Capital Employed
WACC

Capital Charges
Economic Value Added

Capital Employed

Total Assets

Less: Current Liabilities
Capital Employed

2018-19 2017-18
488,896,972 405,832,651
(115,874,687) (109,126,905)
373,022,285 296,705,746

1,684,160,188

1,379,200,425

18.18 % 13.29%
306,221,213 183,343,991
66,801,072 113,361,756

2,828,471,852
1,144,311,664

2,441,736,657
1,062,536,232

1,684,160,188

1,379,200,425




Attendance At Board Meeting

for the period from 01 July, 2018 to 30 June, 2019

Name of Directors Position lvz\le(:t?::solﬁ:d No.:tft 21‘;‘:‘(;"95
Shah Abdul Hannan Director 12 11
Commodore (Retd.) M. A. Rahman Director 12 11
Prof. Dr. AK.M. Sadrul Islam Director 12 12
Prof. Dr. Choudhury Mahmood Hasan Director 12 09
Prof. Dr. Shah Md. Bulbul Islam Director 11 10
Kazi Harun-or-Rashid Director 12 12
Prof. A.N. M. A. Zaher Director 12 00
Col. (Retd.) Prof. Dr. Zehad Khan Director 11 08
Rafiqul Islam Khan, FCA Independent Director 12 10
Abdur Raquib M.A (Eco), DU Independent Director 07 05
Md. Abdus Salam, FCA, FCS Independent Director 05 05

Leave of absence was duly granted

In Attendance

Md. Shahid Farooqui, FCS Company Secretary 12 10
Md. Jasim Uddin, FCA Chief Financial Officer 12 12
Sayed Amimul Ihsan, FCS Sr. Manager Corporate Affairs 12 12
Md. Abdur Rakib Head of Internal Audit and Compliance 12 05

Audit Committee (AC) Meeting and
Attendance During the Year Under Review

Name of the Audit - No. of Board No. of Meetings
Committee Members' Position Meetings Held Attended
Rafiqul Islam Khan, FCA Chairman o
Kazi Harun-or-Rashid Member 09 04
Abdur Raquib M.A (Eco), DU Member 09 04
Col. (Retd.) Prof. Dr. Zehad Khan Member 09 08
Md. Abdus Salam, FCA, FCS Member 09 05
Md. Shahid Farooqui, FCS Secretary 09 09

In Attendance

Md. Jasim Uddin, FCA Chief Financial Officer 09 09
Md. Abdur Rakib Head of Internal Audit and Compliance 09 09

_-m
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The objective of corporate good governance of The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical
Industry Ltd. is to run the company with the sense of four pillars of
governance- fairness, transparency, accountability and independence to the
shareholders and the society as a whole. The company is directed and
managed under the Code of Conducts approved by the Board in light of the
directives given by the concerned regulatory bodies to establish the good
governance in the company in discharging of its obligations towards meeting

stakeholders' rightful expectations.

The Board of the company believes in efficient and effective performance of
business by meeting obligations to the shareholders and other stakeholders
following the ethical manner, norms, integrity, accountability and

transparency.

The stakeholders associated with the company are responsive to follow the
general principles built on company’s values and the ethical standards, we are
proud of it. Corporate good governance structures encourage creating of

values and ensuring of accountability.




The Board of Directors

The Board consists of a Chairman, three Functional
Directors, three Non-Executive Directors and two
Independent Directors. The Board is the supreme
authority while the Executive Committee, the Audit
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee
(NRC) and Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Committee are four wings of the Board working in unison
for smooth operation and development of the company.
All Directors shown below have full and timely access to
all pertinent information and independent professional
participation and advice.

Board's Composition

The Board consists of the following eight members
having versatile professional acquaintance of knowledge,
skills and adequate expertise:

Shah Abdul Hannan
Chairman

Commodore (Retd.) M. A. Rahman
Director and Chairman, Executive Committee

Prof. Dr. AK.M. Sadrul Islam
Managing Director

Prof. Dr. Choudhury Mahmood Hassan
Director, Technical

Kazi Harun-Or-Rashid
Director, Finance

Prof. AN.M.A. Zaher
Director

Md. Rafiqul Islam Khan, FCA
Independent Director

Md. Abdus Salam FCA, FCS
Independent Director

Md. Shahid Farooqui FCS is the Secretary to the Board.
The Board Meeting is held at least once in a quarter.
Number of the meetings held during the financial year
2018-19 was 12 (Twelve).

It may be informed that pursuant to the Condition No. 4
of BSEC's Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2009-
193/217/Admin/90 Dated May 21, 2019, the Board in
its 265th Meeting held on June 09, 2019 has adopted
the creation of casual vacancy of two (2) Directors from
the General Shareholders having shareholdings of less
than minimum 2 % shares of the paid-up capital namely
Prof. Dr. Shah Md. Bulbul Islam and Colonel (Retd.) Prof.
Dr. Zehad Khan.

Policy on Appointment of Directors

The IBN SINA Pharma does not have its own and
separate policy on appointment of Directors. The
Company always complies with the regulations of the
regulatory authorities regarding appointment of
directors. BSEC notifications and Companies Act are
strictly followed in this regard. As per the Companies Act,
1994, Directors are subject to retirement. At least one-
third of the Directors shall retire by rotation in every
AGM. The term of an Independent Director is three years
and may be lengthened by another three years. With
regards to nomination, removal and casual vacancy of
the Directors, the Company follows all relevant rules and
regulations of the respective regulatory bodies.

The Directors of the company are:

Nominated Directors
Nominated by the Sponsor Shareholder

Non-Executive Independent Directors

Being appointed/recommended to be appointed
following the prescribed qualifications of Independent
Directors pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code of
BSEC.

m > New Director
W recommendation

Nominated Director
Nominated by Sponsor/Director Shareholder

Independant Director
Recommended from various sources

B Appointment
by the Board

Newly appointed Director,
Casual vacancies are filled by the Board
Existing Director- subject to retirement by rotation
at the AGM but eligible for re-appointment

B Approval by the
Shareholders at the AGM
Approval of appointment of

New Directors and Re-appointment
of existing Directors by rotation

E
i
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Practice of the Board

The Board is accountable for formulation of overall
planning, policies and strategies and guidelines of the
activities and implementation thereof to achieve the
goals and objectives of the Company and ultimately
remains accountable to the shareholders.

To pursue transparency, the Board follows the practice of
the advance planning in the matter requiring discussion
and decision by the Board. The Board is appraised by
presentation on finance, sales, marketing, major business
segments and operations of the Company.

The Board of Directors of the Company has laid down a
Code of Conduct for the Chairperson, Other Board
Members and Chief Executive and annual compliance of
the code based on the recommendation of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) which
have been duly recorded.

In accomplishment the affairs of the Company, the
Board is guided by Corporate Governance Code as
stipulated by BSEC and in compliance with the rules and
regulations of Companies Act 1994, Labour Rules, 2015,
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company and the Service Rule of the Company and
other relevant applicable laws and regulations. The
Board also remains them responsible for efficient and
effective implementation of the policies and strategies
adopted time to time.

Adequate Number of Non-Executive Directors

With a view to improve Corporate Governance practice,
the company maintains five (5) non-executive directors
out of the total eight (8) Directors.

Independent Directors in the Board
and their Independence

As per the Corporate Governance Code of Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC), one-fifth
of the total Directors of the Board shall be
Independent Directors.

Thus, in compliance with the guideline, two (2) Directors
out of the total eight (8) Directors are independent,
having no interest in the company. Independence of the
respective Independent Directors is confirmed during
selection and appointment of the Directors and they
remain committed to continue with such independence
throughout their tenure.

Chairman of the Board

The Chairman of the Company is elected by the Board of
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Directors and the Board considers the Chairman being
independent.

Role of the Chairman

The Chairman's primary role is to ensure that the Board
is effective in its task of setting and implementing the
Company's direction and strategy. As recommended by
the NRC, the Board approved the role and responsibility
of the Chairman. The principal features of the role of the
Chairman comprise the following:

Providing leadership to the Board;

Taking responsibility for the Board's
composition and development;

Ensuring proper information for the Board;
Planning and conducting Board meetings effectively;

Getting all Directors involved in the Board's work;

Ensuring the Board's focus on key tasks;

Engaging the Board in assessing
and improving its performance;

Overseeing the induction and developmentof Directors; and

Supporting the Managing Director.

The Chairman of the Board and the Managing
Director of the Company are different individuals

The position of the Chairman of the Board and the
Managing Director of the Company are filled by the
different individuals who are the members of the board.
There is a clear division of responsibilities between the
Chairman's functions and that of Managing Director.
The Chairman is mainly responsible for presiding the
Board Meeting as well as the Annual General Meeting.
The respective roles and the responsibilities of the
Chairman and the Managing Director are explicitly
defined by the Board of Directors of the Company to
enable them in discharging their responsibilities aptly
and effectively.

Management Review and Responsibility

The Managing Director is the functional head/Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. He is responsible for
implementing and coordinating the Company's
corporate and commercial activities to achieve the
company's business objectives. He is supported by the
different functional Committees, Functional Directors,
Executive Directors, GMs, Managers and Executives of
the Company. Under the active leadership of the
Managing the Director, the Company is governed within




the preview of the rules, regulations, guidelines,
directions and policies applicable for the Pharma industry
and business operations.

The statement from the Managing Director detailing the
analysis of the company's position and operations along
with a brief discussion of changes analysis in the
financial statements, among others during the period
under review is given in the page no. 44 of the Annual
Report.

Annual Appraisal of the Board's
Performance and Disclosure

Appraising a board's performance can clarify the
individual and collective roles and responsibilities of its
Directors, and provide better knowledge of what is
expected of them which can help boards become more
effective. Done properly, board appraisals may also
improve the working relationship between a company’s
Board and its management

A Board is a team of knowledge workers, and to do its
job, the board needs the same resources and capabilities
that any other successful team of knowledge workers
needs such as knowledge, information,
motivation, and time.

power,

Self-evaluation is not an easy issue for any group to deal
with. It is particularly difficult in the case of boards
because it requires board members to make judgments
and decisions about themselves and about issues that
affect all stakeholders.

The Board always help the company to formulate policy,
guide the implementation process, review the
performance of the implemented policies and give
suggestion for correction wither deem necessary. In this
way Board assess whether the desired outcome have been
achieved and by utilizing its resources, within expected
timeframe. The Board members have always taken
decisions that have benefitted the Company as a whole
and they have always performed their duties accordingly.

Annual Evaluation of the
Managing Director by the Board

The Board of Directors evaluates the Managing Director
based on the performance evaluation criteria duly
recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and approved by the Board along with the
goals set for him considering the company vision and
mission at the beginning of each year. The annual
financial budget and other strategic objectives are
discussed, reviewed and finalized by the Board at the

start of the financial year. The Board considers both
financial and non-financial goals during the appraisal.

Financial goal includes achievement of budgeted sales
and profit and non-financial goal includes development
of Human Resource and utilization of other resources of
the company.

Training and Development of the Board

The Board recognizes the importance of ensuring that
Directors are continuously being developed to acquire or
enhance the requisite knowledge and skills to discharge
their duties effectively.

All new Directors appointed to the Board attend a formal
induction programme to familiarize themselves with the
company's strategy and aspiration, understanding of the
line of businesses and corporate functions, key financial
highlights, audit, compliance and risk management. The
programme is conducted by the Company Secretary
when they join the board.

Financial and Accounting Knowledge
and Expertise of the Directors

Our Board of Directors consists of members who possess
a wide variety of knowledge and experience in finance,
economy, management, business administration,
marketing and law. This ensures that together, they
formulate the right policy for the development of the
business while having the specialized skills and the ability
to foresee developments across a larger perspective and
with enough independence to audit the management in
a balanced manner.

Among them, two Directors are Fellow member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh
(ICAB), naming Mr. Md. Rafiqul Islam Khan, Mr. Md.
Abdus Salam and Mr. Kazi Harun-Or-Rashid, Director
Finance, is a graduate of Accounting, from the University
of Dhaka. They provide guidance in the matters
applicable to accounting and audit-related issues to
ensure compliance and consistent financial reporting.

Board and Committee Meetings

The composition of the Board Committees as of 30 June
2019 and the attendance of Directors at the Board and
Board Committee meetings held during 2018-2019 have
been disclosed detail in the Page no. 61.

Business Objectives and Areas of Business Focus

The company's objectives and business focus have been
depicted in the page no. 36 of the Annual Report.
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Strategies for Achieving the Business Objectives

The company's Strategies for achieving business focus
have been described in the page no. 22.

Whistle Blowing Policy

The company Whistle Blowing Policy ensures to establish
transparency in all aspects and also in terms of
minimizing the risk management and detecting any
forgery or embezzlement.

The Requisite Committees
Audit Committee

The Board has formed an Audit Committee comprising
of three (3) members having adequate versatile and
financial competence as specified in the Terms of
Reference (TOR) prescribed by the BSEC duly approved
by the Board. The Committee is empowered, among
other things, to examine any matter relating to the
financial affairs of the company and to review all audits,
internal control and inspection programs, internal
policies and adherence to compliance requirements.

The number of the meetings held during the year 2018-
19 was 9 (Nine).

The details about the Audit Committee including
background, composition, responsibilities, meetings,
reporting and activities carried out by the Audit
Committee is disclosed in the title of "Report of the Audit
Committee” of the page no. 73 of the Annual Report.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

To cultivate a good governance practice in the Company,
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)
was formed as a sub-committee of the Board in view of
the corporate governance code of Bangladesh Securities
and Exchange Commission (BSEC). The Committee
comprises with the three Directors including two
Independent Directors. The number of the meetings held
during the year 2018-19 was 02 (Two).

The NRC assists the Board in formulating the nomination
criteria or policy for determining qualifications, positive
attributes, experiences and independence of Directors
and other top-level executives. The NRC also assists the
Board to formulate policy for formal and continued
process of considering remuneration/honorarium of
Directors and top-level executives.

Report of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
is stated in the page no. 75 of the Annual Report.
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Remuneration of Chairman and directors

The Chairman of the company is a non-executive and
hence does not receive any remuneration from the
company. Functional Directors including the Managing
Director is paid monthly remuneration recommended by
the NRC and approved by the Board of the company. A
description of remuneration paid to directors is given in
the page no. 141.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee (EC) is a committee consisting
of 4 (Four) Directors duly nominated by the Board to
execute the powers and functions as accorded by the
Board and as per Service Rules of the company.
Company Secretary is the Secretary of the Executive
Committee. The number of the meetings of EC held
during the year 2018-19 was 10 (Ten).

Other Operational Committees

The Managing Director discharges the responsibilities
with the help of the following operational committees
formed with skills and experienced officials. These
committees are being directly monitored and guided by
the Managing Director. The evaluation of the
performance of the company critically adopts strategic
action plan to achieve the targets of the company set by
the Board of Directors.

The various committees are as follows:-

01. Development Plan and Monitoring Committee;
02. Quality Assurance Committee;

03. Pharma Marketing Coordination Committee;

04. Natural Medicine Coordination Committee;

05. Budget Monitoring Committee (Pharma & NMD);
06. New Product Monitoring Committee;

07. Disciplinary Committee;

08. Factory Technical Committee;

09. Purchase Committee;

10. Inventory Management Committee, Pharma;

11. Inventory Management Committee, Natural Medicine;
12. Construction Committee;

13. cGMP Compliance Committee;

14. Risk Management and Control Committee.

15. CBA Dealing Committee;

Corporate Affairs Division

The corporate affairs division is vigilant to assist the
Board of Directors in discharging of its responsibilities of
corporate secretarial functions ensuring the Corporate
Good Governance and implementation of the Corporate




Governance Code, norms and standard under the
relevant laws and other legal and statutory requirements.

Company Secretary

As part of statutory requirement The IBN SINA
Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd. has appointed a qualified
Company Secretary with diversified experience in various
core fields. He is a Fellow Member of the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB). The Board
of Directors clearly defined the roles, responsibilities and
duties of the Company Secretary.

Chief Financial Officer

Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of The IBN SINA
Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd. is a Fellow Member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh
(ICAB). He is responsible to supervise the Accounts and
Financial activities of the Company. The Board of
Directors clearly specified the roles, responsibilities and
duties of the CFO.

Head of Internal Audit and Compliance

The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Limited has a
Head of Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC). He has
completed P-II from the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB). He is responsible for
internal control and audit of the Company. The Board of
Directors clearly set out the roles, responsibilities and
duties of the Head of Internal Audit and Compliance as
recommended by the Audit Committee. HIAC directly
reports to the audit committee.

Internal Audit and Compliance

The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd. considers
that internal audit and compliance is one of the
important regular functions of the Company. The
Company has an independent internal audit and
compliance department under the supervision of Audit
Committee, a sub-committee of the Board. The roles and
responsibilities of the Audit Committee which are
substantially supported by the Internal Audit and
Compliance is given in the page no. 73 & 74 of the
Annual Report.

Statutory Audit

S F Ahmed & Co., Chartered Accountants, House-51,
Road-09, Block-F, Banani, Dhaka-1213 is the statutory
auditors of the Company. They have conducted the
systematic examination of the books of accounts and
records of the Company and ascertain, verify and report
based on the facts in connection with the financial

operation and the results of the Company. In order to
comply with the corporate governance code, the
Company did not involve its statutory auditors to
perform the services other than statutory services
specified as appointed for.

Compliance Audit

In order to ensure the integrity of the corporate
governance with accountability for inspiring the
confidence of investors, regulators, financier and other
stakeholders, the Company is committed to keep them
compliant with the requirements of the Corporate
Governance Code issued by the BSEC.

The certificate for the compliance status of the Company
on the conditions of corporate governance code audited
by M. Mohasin & Co., Chartered Secretaries is attached
herewith on page no. 81 of this Annual Report.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy

To cultivate a good governance practice in the Company,
a policy on the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) was
approved by the Board in view of the corporate best
practice of the world.

To conduct the Corporate Social Responsibility of the
Company, CSR Committee is hereby formed comprising
of follwing three members:-

Prof. Dr. Shah Md. Bulbul Islam, Chairman
Prof. Dr. A K.M Sadrul Islam, Member
Kazi Harun-or-Rashid, Member

Md. Shahid Farooqui, FCS, Secretary

The Company hereby declares its "Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy” as follows:

® Conducting business in a socially responsible and
ethical manner;

@ Protecting the environment and the safety of people;

® Supporting human rights maintaining relationship
with stakeholders and employees; and

® Engaging, learning, respecting and supporting the
communities and cultures with which we work.

These can be achieved through our products and spirits
which enrich the quality of human life enabling people’s
feelings happy in the application of CSR strategy, an
effective tool for business success. The core components
of CSR practiced in the company are described in the
page no. 68 of the Annual Report.
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Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Activities

Free Medical Treatment Camp

To ensure day night health service to the devoted Muslims (Pilgrims) coming from
different parts of the country and abroad, two Medical Camps of Pharma and Natural
Medicine were conducted in the Bishwa Ijtema ground, Tongi Gazipur, As per record,
thousands of Musullees availed this free treatment facility from the Camp.

E: N %
63 menetINERS % Health Issues
3 "Publication of IBN SINA Health Magazine®

As part of CSR, a monthly IBN SINA Health Magazine
sponsored by The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry
Ltd. is being delivered to our doctors, patrons and to the

InRLRN people to extend awareness about the various health
' related matters, It may be noted here that the
HWR: Magazine contains contemporary important health
. : Nﬁ{-ﬂ? topics contributed by reputed specialized doctors.
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Forestation

As part of the policy to protect and improve the environment we have embarked on a
program of tree plantation to extend the greenery and landscape of the country. The
afforestation program was taken in the territory of factory and in various places
countrywide.

Donation of Medicine

As part of the CSR, Company had donated good volume of medicine valuing Tk.
30 Lac to the People of Bhutan Government through Prime Minister's Welfare
Fund (Tahbil).

Social and Environmental Responsibilities

As part of the ongoing commitment to the society and environment, the
company is engaged to minimize waste generation and use of material and
energy, to use renewable materials and to recycle our waste.

6

_-m

Annual Report 2018-19




Annual Report 2018-19

CSR Activities for the Welfare of the Officers and Workers

Welfare Activities for the Company's
Officers and workers

Considering the overall welfare, safety and
security for the officers and workers, company
has formed a Provident Fund (PF), Gratuity and
Superannuation Fund. Separate Trustee Board
is entrusted to look after these funds. Besides
of these, group insurance for workers of factory
and full time health service for the workers
employed in the factory are also available.
Expenditure of the treatment for partial or total
physical damage for accidental causes during
and out of normal course of service is being
endeavored from the company and also a
special amount as donation is given to the
deceased personnel causing accidental death
during and out of normal course of action.

Superannuation Fund

Group Insurance

As per Section- 99 of Bangladesh Labour Laws
2006 as amended in 2015, the Company has
established Group Insurance for its employees
with the recognized Insurance Company.

Officers-Workers Benevolent Fund

Employees are being facilitated from Officers-
Workers Benevolent Fund where financial
assistance is required. It recognizes our
employees with respect, dignity, caring each
other that ensure good atmosphere of
employment.

This is a structural pension program approved by the Board for the benefit of its
employees in order to mitigate the various specified problems like accidental death,
disablement, serious chronic illness etc. during the period under job. During the year
under review, total 35 officers and workers were facilitated paying Tk. 3,759,130/=
out of which Tk. 1,500,000/= was given to the successors of the deceased members

of this Fund.



Medical Expense Provided to
the Insolvent Employees

The employees who are not capable of paying
the expenditure incurred for their medical
treatment for various diseases/accidental
causes happened either during in course of
service or in any other way are being taken
under special consideration for payment of
such medical expense. In the year 2018-19
total medical expense endeavored by the
Company is about Taka 3,507,965.

Community Improvement

The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd.
believes that this program can be developed

Free Health Care Complex

through a combination of supports to individual
employee like matching support arrangements
between the company and the employees
which build team spirit particularly among the
employees for participatory activities in
community development.

Human Rights

We are committed to upholding the Universal
Declaration of Human Rights by the UN and the
labor standards set out by the International
Labor Organization and Bangladesh Labor Laws-
2006 (As amended 2015).

A free medical center is running 5 (Five) days a week at Shafipur, Gazipur for the
underprivileged people especially for Mother and Child inhabitants of the area. It
may be mentioned that factory workers are being taken under free medical
treatment by the qualified Doctors and Hakims, in the campus.

7
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Employee Training and Education Program

The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd. considers and desires the education and training as the
core theme to promote employees' interest in attracting future potentiality, focuses on the "Right-
to-Know" and "Partners-in-leadership” that aim to bring sustainable improvement of the personnel
in the Company and for the nation as well.

The training given to the employees in the year 2018-19 in-house and abroad is shown in the page
no. 38 of the Annual Report.
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Report of the Audit Committee

Dear Shareholder(s)

Assalamu Alaikum Wa-Rahmatullah

S o 4

The Audit Committee is a sub-committee of the Board of Directors of the IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd. and is
responsible to oversee the financial reporting process. The committee assists the Board for ensuring that the financial
statements reflect a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and good governance system within the
business. The Committee is considered the overseer of the companies for protecting the interest of the stakeholders.

Composition of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of the following:

Mr. Rafiqul Islam Khan, FCA, Independent Director, Chairman
Mr. Md. Abdus Salam, FCA, FCS, Independent Director, Member
Commodore (Retd.) M. A. Rahman, Director, Member

Mr. Md. Shahid Farooqui, FCS, Company Secretary, Secretary

The Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Head of Internal Audit
and Compliance (HIAC) attended the meetings on invitation.
The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee.

Role of Audit Committee
(a) Oversee the financial reporting process;
(b) Monitor choice of accounting policies and principles;

(c) Monitor Internal Audit and Compliance process to ensure
that it is adequately resourced, including approval of the
Internal Audit and Compliance Plan and review of the Internal
Audit and Compliance Report;

(d) Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors;

(e) Hold meeting with the external or statutory auditors for
review of the annual financial statements before submission to
the Board for approval or adoption;

(f) Review along with the management, the annual financial
statements before submission to the Board for approval;

(g) Review along with the management, the quarterly and half
yearly financial statements before submission to the Board for
approval;

(h) Review the adequacy of internal audit and compliance
function;

(i) Review the Management's Discussion and Analysis before
disclosing in the Annual Report;

(j) Review statement of all related party transactions submitted
by the management;

(k) Review Management Letters or Letter of Internal Control
weakness issued by statutory auditors;

(I) Oversee the determination of audit fees based on scope and
magnitude, level of expertise deployed and time required for
effective audit and evaluate the performance of external
Auditors; and

(m) Oversee whether the proceeds raised through Initial Public
Offering (IPO) or Repeat Public Offering (RPO) or Rights Share
Offer have been utilized as per the purposes stated in relevant
offer document or prospectus approved by the Commission.

Meeting and Attendance of the Audit Committee

During the year 2018-19, Nine meetings of the Audit
Committee were held. Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and Head of
Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC) attended the meetings
on invitation to meet instant queries of the Audit Committee.
The number of Audit Committee meetings held and the
attendance by each member during the year 2018-19 are given
as follows:

Name of Members Designation Position m'::trir:':;esr:efl d mee::;sb::tgri ded
Mr. Md. Rafiqul Islam Khan FCA Independent Director Chairman 9 9
Col. (Ret.) Prof. Dr. Zehad Khan Director Member 8 8
Mr. Md. Abdus Salam FCA, FCS Independent Director Member 5 5
Mr. Kazi Harun-or-Rashid Director Member 4 4
Mr. Abdur Raquib Independent Director Member 4 4
Mr. Md. Shahid Farooqui FCS Executive Director and Company Secretary Secretary 9 9
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The Company's external auditors were present at one meeting
during the financial year where matters related to the audit of
the Financial Statements for the year Audited as 30 June 2019
were discussed.

Reporting to the Authorities

The Minutes of the Audit Committee Meetings with the
observations and the recommendations of the Audit Committee
were circulated among the Members of the Committee and to
the Board of Directors of the Company for their information and
necessary action. It is also required to report to the Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) about anything,
which has a material impact on the financial condition and
results of operation of the Company. But no such thing occurred
during the year 2018-19.

External Audit

a) Make recommendations to the Board, to be placed before
the shareholders for approval in the AGM, in relation to
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the Company's
external auditors.

b) Oversee the relationship with the External Auditors including:
® Approval of their remuneration, i.e. fees for audit.

® Assessing annually their independence and objectivity taking
into account the relevant professional and regulatory
requirements.

e Satisfying itself that there is no relationships (such as family,
employment, investment, financial or business) between the
auditor and the Company (other than in the ordinary course of
business).

c¢) The Committee also arranged a meeting with the
representatives of the External Auditors on September 14, 2019
to review the Annual Financial Statement 2018-19 before
submission to the Board for perusal and recommendation.

d) Review the findings and recommendations made by the
external auditors for removal of recurrence irregularities, if any,
detected are duly acted upon by the management.

Internal Audit and Compliance

a) Monitor/evaluate whether internal audit functions are truly
independent.

b) Review the activities, structure and style of conduct of
internal audit functions to ensure that no unjustified restrictions
or limitations are imposed.

¢) Review and assess the annual internal audit plan.
d) Review the efficiency and effectiveness of internal audit function.

e) Review and ensure that appropriate recommendations made
by internal auditors to remove irregularities, if any, are duly
acted upon by concerned personnel in running the affairs of the
Company.

Financial Reporting

a) The Audit Committee checks whether the financial
statements reflect complete and accurate information and
determine whether the statement are prepared according to the
existing rules and regulations and standards enforced in the
Country and as per the relevant International Accounting
Standards (IAS)/International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) prescribed by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission ( BSEC) ;

b) Discuss with the management and external auditors to
review the financial statements before finalization.

) Review the quarterly and half-yearly financial statements with
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the management before submission to the Board for approval.

d) Review statements of significant related party transactions
submitted by the management.

Deliberations of the Audit Committee in 2018-19

During the year 2018-19, the Audit Committee carried out its
regular functions on the areas pertaining to its responsibilities.
Some of the issues that are performed during the year under
review for improvement of operational performance of the
Company are listed below:

a) The Audit Committee reviewed the Financial Statements of
the Company for the year 2018-19, which include Statement of
Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity,
Statement of Cash Flows and Notes of the Financial Statements.

b) The Committee recommended for the approval of the Annual
Financial Statements of the Company to the Board.

c) The Committee recommended appointment of Company's
External Auditors for the year 2019-20.

d) The activities were persuaded as per approved Annual Audit
Plan of the Company for the year 2018-19.

e) The Audit Committee reviewed the un-audited quarterly and
half-yearly financial statements before their submission to the
Board for final review and approval.

f) Reviewed the Auditor's Certification on Corporate Governance
Compliance for the year ended 30 June 2019.

g) Reviewed and ascertained that the internal control system
including financial and operational controls, accounting system,
and reporting structure are adequate and effective.

h) Reviewed the periodical reports submitted by the Internal
Auditors and recommended to the management regarding proper
and prompt resolution of the irregularities/issues stated therein.

i) Reviewed the actions taken by the management for
implementation of Audit Committee observations on the issues
deliberated in the Audit Committee reports.

j) The Committee placed its reports regularly to the Board for
reviewing and monitoring the activities recommended on
internal control system, compliance with rules and regulation of
the regulatory bodies.

k) Based on the above review and discussion, the Audit
Committee is of the view that the internal control and
compliance procedures are adequate to present a true and fair
view of the activities and financial status of the Company.

1) Discussing and giving an opinion on the status of the Risk
Management Process (RMP) and the Company's business
Continuation as a going concern.

Appreciation

The Audit Committee expressed their sincere thanks to the
members of the Board, Management, Statutory and the
Internal auditors for their support in carrying out its duties and
responsibilities effectively.

On behalf of the Audit Committee,

Md. Rafiqul Islam Khan FCA
Chairman, Audit Committee
Sunday, September 22,2019



Report of The Nomination and

Remuneration Committee -2019

executives.

The Board of Directors of The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd. has duly constituted
a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC), as per the requirements of the
Corporate Governance Code of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC).
The NRC assists the Board in formulating the nomination criteria or policy for determining
qualifications, positive attributes, experiences and independence of Directors and other top-
level executives. The NRC also assists the Board to formulate policy for formal and
continued process of considering remuneration/honorarium of Directors and top-level

The statement of Nomination and Remuneration Committee is prepared following the
Corporate Governance Code issued by the BSEC. This Report covers nomination and
remuneration policies, evaluation criteria and activities of the NRC.

The Overview of the Nomination
and Remuneration Policies:

The Company inevitably will follow the nomination and
remuneration policies and the benchmark of which
pursuing the business code of conduct and standards
perceptible in the market context and appropriate to
meet the present and future needs of the Company.

The broad criteria in this respect for the Executive
Directors and Top-Level Executives of the Company are
as follows:

a) The Nomination Criteria

i. The Company policies as well as guidelines and
applicable laws/regulations for the Company;

ii. A prescribed selection process that is transparent in all
respects;

iii. Following a process which is compatible to the
recognized standards and the best practices;

iv. Distinguishing the core competencies of the
respective personnel for the different level of
management and employees of the Company;

v. Follow diversity in age, maturity, qualification,
expertise and gender disciplines.

b) Recruitment and Selection Standards

The outline of the Company needs for the employees at
different levels, as determined by the management. The
recruitment and selection of Executive Directors, Top-
Level Executives of the Company are made according to
the following core guiding principles:

Executive Directors and Top Level Executives: The
candidate(s) for Executive Director(s), based on the set
criterions of BSEC and Service Rules of the Company. The
Board of Directors appoints Executive Director(s) and Top
Level Executives, upon nomination and recommendation
of the NRC.

Independent Director: The Independent Director shall be
a knowledgeable individual with integrity who is able to
ensure compliance with financial laws, regulatory
requirements and corporate laws that can make
meaningful contribution to the businesses.

The Independent Director should have competence of
the relevant sector in which Company operates, and
necessarily should have the quadlifications as required by
the Code of BSEC. The Board of Directors appoints
Independent  Directors upon nomination and
recommendation of the NRC, which is then approved by
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting of the
Company.
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¢) Remuneration Criteria

The key features of the Remuneration Criteria
recommended by the NRC are as follows:-

i. The structure, scale and composition of remuneration/
honorarium are reasonably considered based on the
Company's Policies and Guidelines set by the Board of
Directors to attract, retain and motivate the top level
executives/executive directors to run the Company
efficiently and successfully;

ii. The context of packages, including remuneration/
benefits is categorically laid down which meets the
appropriate performance benchmarks as per the
Company Policies and Guidelines ratified by the Board as
and when required;

iii. The NRC will recommend the Board meeting
attendance fees, honorarium, including incidental
expenses, if any; and

iv. No member of the NRC will be allowed to receive,
either directly or indirectly, any remuneration for any
advisory or consultancy role or otherwise, other than
Board meetings and Board's sub-committee meetings
attendance fees from the Company.

d). Evaluation Criteria

Directors/Executive Directors/Top Level Executives: The
respective line authority of the Directors/Executive
Directors/Top Level Executives sets the performance
measurement criteria based on the respective role profile
and responsibilities through the Company's annual
appraisal policy/process at a certain time of each
calendar year.

Independent Director: The evaluation of performance of
the Independent Directors (IDs) is to be carried out
according to the criteria of attendance and participation
at the Board meetings and committee meetings;
participation in the Board meetings and committee
meetings and contribution to the improvement of the
corporate governance practices of the Company.

Activity Summary of Nomination and
Remuneration Committee during the year

Formation of NRC Committee and its Meetings

The Board in its 266th meeting held on 26 June 2019
formed the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
(NRC) as per the requirements of BSEC Corporate
Governance Code with the following composition:
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Mr. Md. Abdus Salam FCA, FCS
Chairman
Independent Director

Commodore (Retd.) M. A. Rahman
Member
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Md. Rafiqul Islam Khan FCA
Member
Independent Director

Md. Shahid Farooqui, FCS acts as the Secretary of NRC.
In 2018-19, the Committee met twice. The newly formed
NRC noted the nomination and remuneration initiatives
ensuring the standards and compliance accordingly. The
activities of the NRC during the year were as follows:

i. Consider the Terms of Reference (ToR) of NRC, as
approved by the Board of Directors;

ii. Formulate a policy relating to the remuneration of the
Directors and top-level executives of the Company;

iii. Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications,
positive attributes and independence of the Directors;

iv. Formulate the criteria for evaluation of performance
of Independent Directors;

v. Adopt a Code of Conduct for the Chairman, Directors
and Top-level Executives of the Company.

oA

Md. Abdus Salam FCA, FCS
Chairman
Monday, 23 September 2019



Internal Control and
Risk Management Process

Internal Control

Internal Control is the mechanism to provide reasonable assurance to Company on an ongoing basis regarding the
achievement of objectives in the effectiveness and efficiency of operations, the reliability of financial reporting and
compliance with applicable laws, regulations and internal policies. The primary objective of Internal Control and
Compliance is to help the Company perform better and add value with its resources. Through the Internal Control
system, Company identifies its weaknesses associated with the process and adopts appropriate measures to overcome

that. The main objectives of internal control are as follows:

a) Operations Objectives: Achievement of company basic mission and vision.

b) Reporting Objectives: Timely, accurate, and comprehensive reporting, financial and

non-financial, internal and external.

c) Compliance Objectives: Conducting activities and taking specific actions by following

applicable laws and regulations.

Internal Audit and Compliance

Internal Auditing is an independent, objective assurance
and consulting activity designed to add value and
improve an organization's operations. Audit team of the
Company has a combination of business, professional
and IT knowledge-based personnel. Audit Department is
committed to meet the standards of best professional
practices. The Company has a strong internal audit
team comprised of three segments to carry out the
audit activities, namely Head Office Audit, Factory Audit,
and all Depot Audit.

Compliance Unit

The Company establishes the best compliance culture
throughout the organization by encouraging employees to
comply with policies, procedures, and regulation. To
establish the Company and uphold the momentum of

compliance culture, three separate segments are under the
Compliance Unit, namely- Regulatory Compliance, Internal
Compliance and Audit committee recommendation.
Compliance unit also ensures required reporting to
Management, Audit Committee and Regulators accordingly.

Risk Management Process

Risk is the chance of exposure to the adverse
consequences of uncertain future events. This is an
integral part of any business. Over our long existence, we
have managed to significantly enhance and achieve a
very robust and matured stage for our risk management
process. The Company risk management process is
featured to estimate the likelihood of any uncertain
events and provide adequate responses for eliminating
the consequence of that event. The overall risk
management process is summarized as below:
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Identification of Risk

Prepare a list of potential risks by referring to the relevant
business critical information, which is obtained from
various reporting line and by taking into consideration of
various non-financial factors relating to current political
and economic situations.

Analysis of the Outcome

Priorities the potential risks by considering the possible
likelihood and impact on the Company's current and
future prospects.

Design Possible Solutions

Prepare avoidance and contingency plans by establishing
controls at different levels of business and also deciding
of various strategies to embed the culture at all levels of
employee.

Recommend

The responsibility to implement the designed system is
delegated to the different department heads.

Implement

The department heads then take all the necessary
initiatives for the implementation of the designed system.

Evaluate

The management always monitors the effectiveness of
the designed systems through receiving various reports
from different departments and if necessary then
reanalyze.

Director’'s awareness and responsibility

Board of Directors declares its awareness and
responsibility on the importance of safeguarding
shareholders’ investment and the Company assets
recognizing the importance of risk management and
internal controls which also includes the establishment of
an appropriate control environment and framework, as
well as reviewing its adequacy, integrity and
competence.

Risk and Mitigation of Risk

The core risk areas of the business operations comprise
Regulatory Risk, Technology Related Risk, Exchange rate
risks, Operational Risk, Credit Risk, Distribution risks and
Liquidity Risk. Some of these risks and their mitigation
measures/plans are discussed as follows:

Regulatory Risk

The Company operates under the Drugs Ordinance 1982,
Companies Act 1994, Directorate General of Drug
Administration (DGDA) Regulations, Income Tax
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Ordinance 1984, Income Tax Rules 1984, Customs Act
1969, Value Added Tax (VAT) Act 1991 and Value Added
Tax (VAT) Rules 1991, Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Rules 1987 and other rules and regulations of the country.
Any abrupt changes to the policies made by the regulatory
authorities may affect the business of the Company.

Mitigation

The Company is one of the top-ranking pharmaceutical
companies of the Country; it is doing business by
following all the rules and regulations of the Country.
Change in regulations will bring changed strategies for

doing the business by the dynamic management of the
Company.

Technology Related Risk

The pharmaceutical is dynamic and heavily driven by
technology. Hence, the technology always plays a vital
role here. Adaptation of better technology can help to
gain remarkable core competencies that certainly create
competitive advantages like increased productivity;
reduce costs, better perception of customers. Firms are
exposed to technology risks when there are better
technologies available in the market than the one used by
the Company, which may cause operational inefficiency.

Mitigation

The Company has a clear intent regarding the
adaptation of the latest technology in the Company here
and the management is aware of technological changes

and always trying to adopt new technology according to
its needs.

Exchange rate risk

Exchange rate risk relates to the core business of the
Company since it mostly imports materials from abroad
in foreign currency. The Company imports raw materials
against the payment of foreign currency and the price of
raw material in the international market are relatively
volatile. Unfavorable volatility or currency fluctuation
may affect the profitability of the Company.

Mitigation

The volatility of Taka against Dollar and the recent trend
of local currency devaluation may expose foreign
currency risk. However, The Company can significantly
reduce the foreign currency risk and price escalation risk
through forwarding bookings if it is justifiable in terms of
cost-benefit analysis. The Company also maintains
Economic Order Quantity (EOQ) for its material imports,
which provides a considerable cushion against an
adverse movement of the exchange rate and price in the
international market.



Operational Risk

The Company relies on suppliers for ingredients and
various third parties for certain manufacturing-related
services to produce material that meets appropriate
content, quality, and stability standards of the Company
products and after approval, it is being released for
commercial distribution. The Company may not be able
to produce its drug substance or drug product to
appropriate standards without the required support from
its suppliers and vendors.

Mitigation

The Company has a good number of vendors and for
ingredient and service, The Company has more than one
approved vendor. It uses to conduct Vendor audit and its
concerned professionals are very conscious regarding the

vendor issue. Further, none of the suppliers accounts for a
significant amount of total purchases.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial
instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by
failing to discharge an obligation. Credit risk helps users of
Financial Statements asses the credit quality of the entity's
financial assets and level and sources of impairment loss.
Management has a sales policy in place and exposure to
credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

Mitigation

To mitigate the credit risk the management of The
Company follows robust credit control and collection
policies. The Company has dedicated credit collections
team who is responsible for any dues and they have

been remarkable performances in collecting receivables
as per Company's credit and collection policy.

Distribution risk

For any company, the most crucial wing is the distribution
channel. Wide distribution network and control over the

network is essential to make the quality product available
to the consumer at the right time and price.

Mitigation
The Company has a strong presence all over the country,

both in rural and in urban areas. The Company has
strong distribution networks in a well-planned manner.
Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that The Company will not be able
to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Company's approach to managing liquidity (Cash and
Cash equivalents) is to ensure as far as possible, that it
will always sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when
due under both normal and stressed conditions without
incurring unacceptable losses or bringing damage to the
Company's reputation.

Mitigation

Effective liquidity risk management requires both a top-
down and a bottom-up approach. Strategy, principles,
and objectives are set at Board and Management levels.
The Company conducts liquidity management in a
manner that maintains stability and flexibility in day-to-
day funding activities. Our liquidity risk management
starts by managing daily payment of cheque, daily cash
inflow, and outflow, the maturity of deposit and our
access to other sources of funding as and when required.

Conclusion

The above mitigation measures/plans are to establish for
a sound system of risk management supervision and
internal control to identify, assess, monitor and manage
material risks related to the conduct of the Company's
activities. The aims are to constantly improve the
management of risk; better understand the reward-to-
risk balance, and reduce the risks to an acceptable level.
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Statement of Directors’
Responsibilities for Financial Report

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that
the Company keeps proper books of accounts
of all the transactions and the financial
statements for the period from 01 July, 2018
to 30 June, 2019 and gives a true and fair view
of the state of affairs and profit for the year.

The Directors also ensure that the financial
statements have been prepared and presented
in accordance with the International
Accounting Standards (IAS) and IFRS, as
applicable in Bangladesh, the Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and in
accordance with the Bangladesh Accounting
Standards (BAS) as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh and
provide the information as required by the
Companies Act 1994, Bangladesh Securities
and Exchange Ordinance 1969, Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission Rules
1987 and the regulations of the Dhaka Stock
Exchange (DSE) and Chittangong Stock
Exchanges (CSE).

It ensures that the estimates and judgments
relating to the financial statements were made
on a prudent and reasonable basis, so that
they reflect in a true and fair manner and
reasonably present the Company's true state
of affairs.

The Company has taken proper and sufficient
care in installing a system of internal control,
which is reviewed, evaluated and updated on
regular basis. To augment those objectives the
Board of Directors has formed an Audit
Committee as per guidelines of Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC).
They have performed their responsibilities

by~

Prof. Dr. A.K.M. Sadrul Islam
Managing Director

without any undue interference from any of the
Directors.

Internal Audit Department of the Company
conducts periodic audits to provide reasonable
assurance that the established policies and
procedures of the Company are consistently
followed.

The Company has adequate resources to
continue operational existence for the
foreseeable future and therefore, has
continued to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the Accounts.

The Board of Directors confirms that
International Accounting Standards, as
adopted in Bangladesh by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh, have
been adhered to, subject to any material
departure being disclosed and explained in the
notes to the accounts.

The Directors also confirm that the annual
reports together with Directors' Report and the
Financial Statements have been prepared in
compliance with the law, rules and regulatory
guidance.

The Auditors of the Company, S. F. AHMED &
CO., Chartered Accountants, had carried out
the Annual Audit to review on the system of
internal controls, as they consider appropriate
and necessary, for expressing their opinion on
the financial statements. They have also
examined the financial statements made
available by the management together with all
the financial records, related data and Minutes
of the Board, relevant policies and expressed
opinion there on.

Md. Shahid Farooqui, FCS
Company Secretary

/
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ANNEXURE -B

M. MOHASHIN & CO. (A Firm recognized by ICSB

i . formed under an act of parliament)
chartered secretaries in practice

[Certificate as per condition No. 1(5)(xxvii)]

COMPLIANCE REPORT

Report to the Shareholders of The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Limited
on compliance on the Corporate Governance Code

We have examined the compliance status to the Corporate Governance Code by The
IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Limited for the year ended 30 June 2019. This
Code relates to the Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated
03 June 2018 of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission.

Such compliance with the Corporate Governance Code is the responsibility of the
Company. Our examination was limited to the procedures and implementation
thereof as adopted by the Management in ensuring compliance to the conditions of
the Corporate Governance Code.

This is a scrutiny and verification and an independent audit on compliance of the
conditions of the Corporate Governance Code as well as the provisions of relevant
Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSS) as adopted by Institute of Chartered
Secretaries of Bangladesh(ICSB) in so far as those standards are not inconsistent with
any condition of this Corporate Governance Code.

We state that we have obtained all the information and explanations, which we have
required, and after due scrutiny and verification thereof, we report that, in our
opinion:

(a) The Company has complied with the conditions of the Corporate Governance
Code as stipulated in the above mentioned Corporate Governance Code issued by
the Commission.

(b) The Company has complied with the provisions of the relevant Bangladesh
Secretarial Standards (BSS) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of
Bangladesh (ICSB) as required by this Code.

(c) Proper books and records have been kept by the company as required under the
Companies Act, 1994, the securities laws and other relevant laws; and

(d) The Governance of the Company is satisfactory.

7

L
g

Dhaka M. MOHASHIN & CO.
05 October, 2019 Chartered Secretaries

Shahera Tropical (3rd floor), Room # 4, 218 Elephant Road, Dhaka-1205, Bangladesh. Phone: 02-9127148, 01815583682, 01711846470

Annual Report 2018-19




ANNEXURE -C

Compliance Status on Corporate Governance Code of BSEC

[As Per Condition No. 1(5)(xxvii)]

Status of compliance with the conditions imposed by the Commission’s Notification No. BSEC / CMRRCD / 2006-158 /
207 / Admin / 80 dated 03 June 2018 issued under section 2CC of Securities and Exchange Ordinance 1969

(Report under Condition No. 9)

Compliance Status

Condition Not Remarks
No. Complied Complied (if any)
1.1 Board Size (number of Directors -minimum 5 and maximum 20) N
1.2 Independent Directors:
1.2(a) At least one fifth of Directors should be Independent Directors; N
1.2(b)(i) Independent Director does not hold any share or holds less than 1% share of J
the total paid-up shares;
1.2(b)(ii) Not a Sponsor of the Companyor non-connectivity with the company's sponsor
or director or shareholder who holds 1% or more shares on the basis of family N
relationship.;
1.2(b)(iii) | Who has not been an executive of the company in immediately preceding
2 financial years
1.2(b)(iv) Does not have any other relationship, whether pecuniary or otherwise,with the J
company or its subsidiary/associated companies;
1.2(b)(v) Not a Member or TREC, Director or Officer of any Stock Exchange N
1.2(b)(vi) Not a Shareholder/Director/Officer of any Member/TREC holder of Stock Exch. N
1.2(b)(vii) | Not a partner or an executive or was not a partner or an executive during J
the preceding 3 (Three) years of the concerned Company's statutory audit firm.
1.2(b)(viii) | Shall not be an Independent Director in more than 5 listed companies; N
1.2(b)(ix) Not Convicted by a court of competent jurisdiction as a defaulter in paymentof J
any loan/advance to a Bank or a Non-Bank Financial Institution.
1.2(b)(x) Non convicted for a criminal offence involving moral turpitude; N
1.2(c) Appointment of Independent Director shall be by Board and subsequently J
approved by shareholders in the AGM;
1.2(d) The post of Independent Director(s) cannot remain vacant for more than Not
90 (ninety) days. Applicable
1.2(e) Tenure of office of an Independent Director (for a period of 3 years, may be J
extended for 1 term only);
1.3 Qualification of Independent Director
1.3(a) Shall be a knowledgeable individual with integrity who is able to ensure
compliance with financial, regulatory and corporate laws and can make N
meaningful contribution to business;
1.3(b)(i) Business Leader who is or was a promoter or director of an unlisted company.
1.3(b)(ii) Corporate Leader who is or a top level executive of an unlisted company
having 100 million paid up capital or of a listed company.
1.3(b)(ii) | Former official of government not below 5th grade of salary Not
Applicable
82 1.3(b)(iv) University Teacher who has educational background in Economics or J
Commerce or Business Studies or Law.
1.3(b)(v) Professional like practicing Advocate, Chartered Accountant/Cost Accountant/
Chartered Secretary or equivalent qualification
1.3(c) The Independent Director shall have at least 10 (ten) years of experiences.
1.3(iii)(d) Relaxation of qualifications of Independent Directors subject to prior approval Not
of the Commission. Applicable
1(4) Duality of Chairperson of the Board of Directors and Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer
1(4)(a) The posts of Chairperson of the Board and MD/CEO shall be filled by different J
individuals.
1(4)(b) MD and/or CEO of a listed company shall not hold the same position in another J
listed company.
1(4)(c) The Chairperson shall be elected form among the non-executive directors. V
1(4)(d) The Board shall clearly define respective roles and responsibilities of the J
Chairperson and the Managing Director and/or CEO.
1(4)(e) In absence of Chairperson of the Board, for the particular Board Meeting,
Chairperson may be elected from one of non-executive directors and to be N
duly recorded.

Annual Report 2018-19




Compliance Status
Condition - Remarks

Complied Cor"rl\%tlied (if any)

1(5) The Directors’ Report to Shareholders

1.5(i) Industry outlook and possible future developments in the industry; Vv

1.5(ii Segment-wise or product-wise performance; V

1.5(iii) Risks and concerns including internal and external risk factor; \

1.5(vi) Discussion on Cost of Goods sold, Gross Profit Margin and Net Profit Margin; \

1.5(v) Discussion on continuity of any extra-ordinary activities and their implications; \

1.5(vi) Detail disclosure on related party transactions; \

1.5(vii) Utilization from public issues, rights issues and/or through any others Not
instruments: Applicable

1.5(viii) Explanation if the financial results deteriorate after going for IPO, RPO, Rights Do-
Offer, Direct Listing, etc.;

1.5(ix) Significant variance between Quarterly Financial performance and Do-
Annual Financial Statements and explanation thereon;

1.5(x) Remuneration to Directors including Independent Directors; V

1.5(xi) Statement about fairness of financial statements; V

1.5(xii Maintenance of proper books of account; V

1.5(xiii) Application of appropriate accounting policies and estimates; \

1.5(xiv) Application of International Accounting Standards (IAS)/International Financial J
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as applicable in Bangladesh;

1.5(xv) Efficiency of Internal control system; V

1.5(xvi) Statement about the interest of minority shareholders have been protected; \

1.5(xvii) Statement about the ability to continue as going concern; \V

1.5(xviii) Significant deviations from the last year's operation results of the issuer J
company shall be highlighted and the reasons there of should be explained.

1.5(xix) Key operating and financial data of at least preceding 5 (Five) years; V

1.5(xx) Reason for non declaration of dividend; Not

Applicable

1.5(xxi) Board's statement to the effect that no bonus shares or stock dividend paid Do-
as interim dividend.

1.5(xxii) Number of Board Meetings (no. of Board Meetings held and attendance by J

each director);

1.5(xxiii) The pattern of shareholding;

1.5(xxiii)(a) | Parent/Subsidiary/Associated Companies and other related parties J
(name wise details);

1.5(xxiii)(b) | Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial Officer,

Head of Internal Audit and Compliance and their spouses and minor children N

(name wise details);

1.5(xxiii)(c_ | Executives;

1.5(xxiii)(d) | Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or more voting interest in the

company (name wise details).

1.5(xxiv) | Appointment or reappointment of a director, disclosure

1.5(xxiv)(a) | Brief resume of the Director;

1.5(xxiv)(b) | Nature of his/her expertise in specific functional areas;

1.5(xxiv)(c) | Names of companies in which the person also holds the directorship and the 83

membership of committees of the board.

1.5(xxv) Management discussion and analysis signed by CEO or MD

<<=

<

1(5)(xxv)(a) | Accounting policies and estimation for preparation of financial statements. \ Gueninthe Al Reprt

1(5)(xxv)(b)| Changes in accounting policies and estimation as well as cash flows on J Do-
absolute figure for such changes

1(5)(xxv)(c)| Comparative analysis and financial position as well as cash flew for current J Do-
financial year with immediate preceding five years explaining reasons

1(5)(xxv)(d)| Compare financial performance or results and financial position as D
well as cash flows with the peer industry scenario. v o

1(5)(xxv)(e) | Briefly explain the financial and economic scenario of the country and the globe; N -Do-

1(5)(xxv)(f) | Risks and concerns issues related to the financial statements; V -Do-

1(5)(xxv)(g)| Future plan or projection or forecast for company’s operation shall be J Do-
explained to the shareholders in the next AGM,;

1(5)(xxvi) | Declaration or certification by the CEO and the CFO to the Board as J Page no. 110
required under condition No. 3(30) shall be disclosed as per Annexure-A,; may be seen

1(5)(xxvii) | Report as well as certificate regarding compliance of conditions of this J Page no. 81
Code as required under condition no. 9 shall be disclosed; may be seen
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Compliance Status

Condition No R-emarks
No. Complied ¢ omplied (if any)

1(6) Meeting of the Board of Directors

1(6) Compliance under Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSS). | V | In Practice

1(7) Code of Conduct for the Chairperson, other Board Members and Chief Executive Officer

1(7)(a) The Board shall lay down a code of conduct, based on the recommendation of N
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)

1(7)(b) The code of conduct as determined by the NRC shall be posted on the website \

2 Governance of Board of Directors of Subsidiary Company

2(a) Provisions relating to the composition of the Board of the holding company Not
shall be made applicable to the composition of the Board of the subsidiary. Applicable

2(b) At least 1 Independent Director of holding company also be a director of the -Do-
subsidiary company.

2(c) Minutes of subsidiary to be placed in the following meeting of holding company. -Do-

2(d) Minutes of the respective Board meeting of the holding company shall Do-
state that they have reviewed the affairs of the subsidiary company.

2(e) The Audit Committee of the holding company shall also review the financial Do-
statements in particular the investments made by the subsidiary company.

3 Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Head of Internal Audit and
Compliance (HIAC) and Company Secretary (CS)

3.1 Appointment

3(1)(a) Board shall appoint MD or CEQO, CS, CFO, and HIAC. N

3(1)(b) The positions of the MD,CEO,CS,CFO & HIAC shall be filled by different J
individuals.

3(1)(c) MD or CEQ, CS, CFO, and HIAC of a listed company shall not hold any J
executive position in any other company at the same time.

3(1)(d) The Board shall clearly define respective roles, responsibilities and duties of J
the CFO, the HIAC and the CS.

3(1)(e) MD or CEQ, CS, CFO, and HIAC shall not be removed from their position No such
without approval of the Board and be disseminated to the commission and situation is
exchange. observed

3.2 Requirement to attend Board of Directors’ Meetings

3.2 MD or CEQO,CS,CFO and HIAC shall attend the meetings of the Board and CS, N In Practice
CFO & HIAC shall not attend such part of which involves their personal matters.

3.3 Duties of Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

3.3(a) MD or CEO and CFO to certify that they have reviewed financial statements to J
the best of their knowledge.

3(3)(a)(i) The statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit J
any material fact or contain statements that might be misleading.

3(3)(a)(ii) | The statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s J
affairs and are in compliance

3(3)(b) MD or CEO and CFO to certify on due diligence in the Report. N

3(3)(c) The certification of the MD/CEO and CFO shall be disclosed in the Annual Report. N Pegeo. 101y b son

4 Board of Directors’ Committee - Board shall have at least:

84 4(i) Audit Committee Vv

4(ii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee V

5 Audit Committee

5.1 Responsibility to the Board of Directors

5(i)(a) Company shall have an Audit Committee as a sub-committee of the Board. N

5(i)(b Audit Committee shall assist the Board in ensuring that the financial J In Practice
statements reflect true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company.

5(i)(c) Audit Committee shall report on its activities to the Board of Directors. \ -Do-

5.2 Constitution of the Audit committee

5(2)(a) The Audit Committee shall be composed of at least 3 (three) members. \

5(2)(b) Board shall appoint members of the Audit Committee who shall be non- J
executive director.

5(2)(c) All members of the Audit Committee should be “financially literate” and at J
least 1 (one) member shall have accounting or related financial.

5(2)(d) When the term of service of the Committee member expires, Board shall appoint J
new Committee member immediately or not later than 1 month of vacancy.

5(2)(e) The Company Secretary shall act as the Secretary of the Audit Committee N

5(2)(f) Quorum shall not constitute without at least 1 independent director. \
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Condition
No.

Compliance Status

. Not
Complied complied

Remarks
(if any)

. Chairperson of the Audit Committee
5(3)(a) The Board shall select Chairperson of the Audit Committee who will be ID. N
5(3)(b Absence of chairperson, the remaining members may elect one of them and J
reason of absence to be recorded in the minutes.
5(3)(c) Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall remain present in the AGM. N
5.4 Meeting of the Audit Committee
5(4)(a) The Audit Committee shall conduct at least 4 meetings in a financial year. N
5(4)(b Quorum: presence of 2 or 2/3 members whichever is higher and 1 independent J
director is must.
5.5 Role of Audit Committee
5(5)(a) Oversee the financial reporting process. N In Practice
5(5)(b) Monitor choice of accounting policies and principles. N -Do-
5(5)(c) Internal Audit and Compliance process to ensure that it is adequately resourced. N -Do-
5(5)(d) Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors. N -Do-
5(5)(e) Hold meeting with the auditors, review the annual financial statements J
before submission to the Board for approval or adoption.
5(5)(f) Review with the management, the annual financial statements before J In Practice
submission to the Board for approval.
5(5)(9) Review with the management, the quarterly and half yearly financial statements Do-
before submission to the Board for approval. v
5(5)(h) Review adequacy of internal audit function. v -Do-
5(5)(i) Review the management’s discussion and analysis before disclosing in the N Do-
Annual Report.
5(5)(j) Review statement of all related party transactions submitted by the Management. N -Do-
5(5)(k) Review management letters or letter of Internal Control weakness issued J
by statutory auditors.
5(5)(1) Oversee determination of audit fees and evaluate performance of external auditors. N
5(5)(m) Oversee whether IPO/RPO proceeds utilized as per the published Prospectus. Not
Applicable
5.6 Reporting of the Audit Committee
5.6(a) Reporting to the Board of Directors
5(6)(a)(i The Audit Committee shall report on its activities to the Board. N
5(6)(a)(ii) | Shall report immediately the Board on the followings:
5(6)(a)(ii)(a)| Report on conflicts of interests. Not
Applicable
5(6)(a)(ii)(b)| Suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity or material defect identified in J
the internal audit and compliance process.
5(6)(a)(ii)(c)| Suspected infringement of laws, regulatory compliance including securities Not
related laws, relies and regulation. Applicable
5(6)(a)(ii)(d)| Any other matter which the Audit Committee deems necessary shall be Not
disclosed to the Board immediately. Applicable
5.6(b) Reporting to the Authorities Not
Applicable
5.7 Reporting to the Shareholders and General Investors V
6 Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) 85
6.1 Responsibility to the Board of Directors:
6(i)(a) The company shall have a NRC as a sub-committee of the Board. N
6(i)(b) NRC shall assist the Board in formulation of the nomination criteria or policy for
determining qualifications and policy for remuneration of directors, top level N
executives.
6(i)(c) The Terms of Reference of the NRC shall be clearly set forth in writing. N In Practice
6.2 Constitution of the NRC
6(2)(a) The Committee shall comprise of at least three members including an ID. v
6(2)(b) All members of the Committee shall be non-executive directors. N
6(2)(c) Members of the Committee shall be nominated and appointed by the Board. N
6(2)(d) Board have authority to remove and appoint any member of the committee. N
6(2)(e) Board shall fill the vacancy within 180 days of such vacancy in the Committee. N
6(2)(f) The Chairperson of the Committee may appoint/co-opt any external non-voting No such matter
expert for valuable advice. is observed
6(2)(g) The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the committee. N As Per TOR
6(2)(h) Quorum shall not constitute without at least 1 independent director. N -Do-
6(2)(i) No member of the NRC shall receive any remuneration/advisory, other
i , i v -Do-
than Director’s fees or honorarium form the company.
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Compliance Status

Condition Not Remarks
= Complied complied  (if @NY)
6.3 Chairperson of the NRC
6(3)(a) Board shall select 1 member of the NRC to be Chairperson of the Committee J In Practice
who shall be an Independent Director.
6(3)(b) Absence of chairperson, the remaining members may elect one of them and J Do-
reason of absence to be recorded in the minutes.
6(3)(c) Chairperson of the NRC shall attend the AGM. Tobe Corplied
6.4 Meeting of the NRC
6(4)(a) The NRC shall conduct at least one meeting in a financial year. N
6(4)(b) The Chairperson of the NRC, may convene any emergency meeting. N
6(4)(c) Quorum: presence of 2 or 2/3 members whichever is higher and 1 independent J As Per TOR
director is must.
6(4)(d) Proceedings of NRC meeting shall be recorded in the minutes and such J Do-
minutes shall be confirmed in the next meeting.
6.5 Role of NRC
6(5)(a) NRC shall be independent and responsible/accountable to the Board and to J In practice
the shareholders.
6(5)(b) NRC shall oversee, among others, the following matters and make report with J Do-
recommendation to the Board:
6(5)(b)(i) Formulating the criteria for qualification and remuneration of the directors and J Do-
top level executives considering the following:
6(5)(b)(i)(a) | Level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, J Do-
retain and motivate suitable directors to run the company successfully.
6(5)(b)(i)(b)| Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets J Do-
appropriate performance benchmarks.
6(5)(b)(i)(c)| Remuneration to directors, top level executive involves a balance between J Do-
fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long term performance.
6(5)(b)(ii) | Devising a policy on Board’s diversity taking into consideration age, experience etc. N -Do-
6(5)(b)(iii) | Identifying persons who are qualified the criteria laid down and J Do-
recommend their appointment and removal to the Board.
6(5)(b)(iv) | Formulating criteria for evaluation of performance of independent J Do-
directors and the Board.
6(5)(b)(v) | Identifying company’s needs for employees at different levels and J Do-
determine their selection, transfer or replacement.
6(5)(b)(vi) | Developing recommending and reviewing annually the company’s human J _Do-
resources and training policies.
6(5)(c) The company shall disclose the nomination and remuneration policy and the J P%?e no.
evaluation criteria and activities of NRC at a glance in its annual report. be sn;ae)r/w
7 External or Statutory Auditors
7(1) Issuer company shall not engage its external auditors to perform the following services:
7(1)( Appraisal or valuation services or fairness opinions. N
7(1)(ii) Financial information systems design and implementation. N
7(1)(iii) Book keeping or other service related to the account ion records. N
7(1)(iv) Broker—dealer services vV
7(1)(v) Actuarial services N
86 7(1)(vi) Internal/special audit services. N
7(1)(vii) Any services that the Audit Committee may determine. N
7(1)(viii) Certification services on compliance of corporate governance. \
7(1)(ix) Any other service that may create conflict of interest. N
7(2) No partner or employees of the External/Statutory Auditors audit firms shall J
possess any share of the company they audit at least during the tenure.
7(3) Representative of External Auditors shall remain present in the AGM. v
8 Maintaining a website by the company
8(1) The company shall have an official website linked with that of the stock exchange. N In Practice
8(2) The company shall keep the website functional from the date of listing. N -Do-
8(3) The company shall make available the detailed disclosures on its website as J Do-
required under the listing regulations of the concerned stock exchanges.
9 Reporting and Compliance of Corporate Governance
9(1) The company shall obtain a certificate from a practicing professional firm J Pg‘g%gg-
on yearly basis regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance be seen
9(2) The professional who will provide the certificate on compliance of J
Corporate Governance shall be appointed by the Shareholders in the AGM.
9(3) The directors of the company shall state, in accordance with the Annexure-C
attached, in the directors report whether the company has complied with these conditions., N
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Duality Policy

Nes

The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd.

is committed to

serve humanity by manufacturing and
providing quality pharmaceutical products
and services to it's customers.

=
Ll

maintaining ethical standards in all it's
functions following the requirements of cGMP
and regulatory authorities.

rml
Ll

marching onward for sustainable growth and
continual improvement.
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Health Safety and Environment

The inherent safety risks relating to the pharmaceutical and chemical industry will always be a
key focus as standardized health, safety and environment (HSE) processes are embedded across
all of our operations. IBN SINA Pharma is committed to providing a safe and secure workplace
that inspires innovation while promoting health, wellness and productivity across our country.

Safety is our top priority. It is integral to our culture. We believe zero harm is possible, through a
singular focus and disciplined teamwork.

In order to ensure reliable and safe operations, we continue to focus on day-to-day
management of operational risks, including risks related to Health, Safety and Environment. To
promote safety across of the business operations, executive management meets regularly to
review environment and safety performance.

It is in the nature of our industry that our people face many stressful situations in the
workplace. We continue to offer comprehensive health and wellness services to our employees.
Our employees' physical and emotional wellbeing appears to be in line with the industry norms
of the business our country.



Our Approach to the
Sustainability

Our approach to sustainability focuses on creating and protecting value, driving
growth and innovation, and providing societal value through our core business
activities, to make a meaningful contribution to the country. The significant
social benefits delivered through our products and services are supported by our
CSR activities.

In our sustainability strategy we have prioritized following four key areas:-

Supporting
our patients and
communities

Operating
responsibly

and ethically as per CSR Enabling

w policy of the our people
) Company.
to build a v

sustainable
platform for
the future.

investing in the
development

of workforce
protecting their
health and safety.
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ORGANOGRAM

The Ibn Sina Pharmaceutical Indsutry Limited

Board of Directors w
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Executive Committee w
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Y ) )
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[ _ _ ]
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! . . B Executive ¢ . _
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The Pharma Plant

The Manufacturing Plant The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd. was founded in 1983 on a
campus of about14 acres of land, about 56 km away from Dhaka city. Its commercial production
was started in May 1986 since its journey with a few productions. The IBN SINA Factory is now a
big industrial complex having the following establishments & Departments and about 500

products of different Pharmaceutical dosage form.

Pharma Plant General Cephalosporin Lyophilized and prefilled syringe unit

PRODUCT SEGMENT

TABLETS

Tablets are the major product ranges in OSD
Production facilities comprised of about 40 %
of the total IBN SINA Pharma production.
There are three dedicated processing units,
eight high speed tablet compression units, six
coating units & seven blister packaging units.
Another two highly sophisticated tablet
compression machine is recently added in our
production line. Two new high speed blister
machines with auto cartoning line have been

installed in this year. Both the machines have
been imported from Germany. Dry granulation
unit with roller compactor has been introduced
for processing potent and sensitive products.
There are two auto tablet counting machine
are in operation.

Installation of Auto dust extractor for coating
units has increased production efficiency and
reduced environment dust contamination.

9

_-m
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CAPSULE

Total four high speed Capsule filling machine are in operation. These machines have the versatile
capacity of filling pellets and liquid fill in Hard Gelatin Shells in addition to powder fill. These
capsule filling machines are sufficient to meet the present market demand.

INJECTABLE (PARENTERAL) PRODUCTS

Injectable product is life saving prestigious
products for a company. Prescribing of
Parenteral products of a company reflects
confidence of doctors about the company.
The IPI injection Products are now prescribed
by renowned physicians that indicates their
confidence on the uncompromising quality of
IPI products. IPI produces its products

maintaining the ethical standards in all its
functions and follow WHO-cGMP.

The injection production facilities are
comprised of class A (ISO class 5) production
area and the adjacent areas are of different
classification. The sterile ampoules are filled by
high tech machine ROTA (Germany) and
powder vial are filled by Flexicon (Denmark).




OPHTHALMIC (SINAVISION)

Ophthalmic products of IPI are marketed
under the division named "Sinavision"

products. These include ophthalmic drops,
ointments and gels. All the Ophthalmic
products are manufactured under HVAC
System in class-A with background class-B. We
have a fully automatic ophthalmic Eye Drops
production line including automatic washing,

LIQUID PRODUCTS

The IBN SINA is one of the leading
manufacturers of Liquid pharma products in
Bangladesh. It has five production lines
including (1) high speed Auto-Glass bottle Line
for Syrups, (2) Auto Antanil production Line,
another facility is under installations (3) The
pediatric drops & suspension line, and (4) High
Capacity two pet bottle filing line. Auto PET
bottle, a most sophisticated liquid production
line. There have bottle feeding unit, rotary
bottle washing unit, big light checking unit,

drying, autoclaving and filling sealing facility.
As a result, production capacity with quality as
per compliance increased considerably. In
view of increased demand of eye drops and
eye ointment, IPI Management is in the
process of installation of one sophisticated
eye ointment filling machine and one high
speed eye drop filling machine.

multi head linear liquid filling unit, capping &
sealing unit, light checking unit, auto sticker
labeling unit and packing line with auto carton
strapping unit. It has a production capacity of
120 - 150 bottles per minutes. Introduction of
such big line has increased liquid production
capacity considerably.

Another dedicated facility for Gavisol
suspension (first time in Bangladesh) is under
installation.

9
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POWDER FOR SUSPENSIONS (DS) PRODUCTS

Powder for Suspensions are mainly Antibiotic
products intended for children and young
patients. We have two separate areas for
production of powder for suspension. One for
general pharma products and another for
cephalosporin products.

TOPICALS & CONSUMER PRODUCTS

Some good popular brands of Topical

ointments, cream and gels are produced in IPI
factory. These products are manufactured with
fully automatic Italian Axomatic lamitube filling
machine. The popular brand in this area are
Fungicort Cream, Fungin, Fungin-B & Neocort
ointment etc. In every year a number of generic
products are adding with existing products.

SACHET

Unisaline is a popular brand of IPI for ORS. We
have a self-contained separate production
facility for sachets, lined with three-
sophisticated sachet filling machine. The IPI
has already started marketing of most popular
Unisaline items like Unisaline Fruity Lemon,
Unisaline Fruity Orange & Unisaline Fruity
Mango in three difference flavors. Other non
ORS Sachet brand is Sinalax, which was
introduced in Bangladesh by IBN SINA for the
first time.

To meet the increased demand of existing
sachet products and for some new brands, IPI
has set-up independent sachet production
area of existing building and installed a
sophisticated high capacity sachet-packing
machine from China.



Cephalosporin Division

It is our pride to mention that we have been
manufacturing cephalosporin drug products in a self
contained dedicated and cGMP compliant plant which
has enabled us to meet the international compliance
requirement. The plant was constructed as a of the art
facility under the direct guidance and consultancy of APC
Australia with the aim to get GMP accreditation from TGA.

Centrally located at the company premises, the
cephalosporin plant is an aesthetic viewed two storied
building having 15000 sft. per floor.

Production facility includes four dedicated zones for the
production of micro dosing dry injection vials, Tablets,
Capsules and Powder for oral suspension. The full facility
has been designed with clean room system, the injection
production area being class A/B and the oral dosage
production area being class-D. The major production
machinery includes Romaco micro dosing line, Italy.

Tablets & Capsules machine from Sejoing Korea and the
PFS line from CVC, Taiwan. The popular brands in
Cephalosporin division are; Axosin, Cefixim, Sinaceph
and Merocef.

Quality Assurance: The Ibn Sina Quality strategy outlines
the vision for quality. QA plays an important role for
continual  improvement following quality risk
management system. To extend and improve people's
lives, we reliably ensure quality medicines by being a
proactive efficient and trusted partner through our high
performing teams. Quality Assurance plays a role in
system development, controlling and auditing of cGMP
practices in the plant. We are trying to continual
improvement of process performance and product
quality throughout the product life cycle for achieving
GMP accreditation from local Drug administration as well
as stringent regulatory authorities like MCC, ANVISA,
TGA, US-FDA, UK-MHRA etc.

State of the Art, self contained cGMP Cephalosporin Drug Manufacturing plant
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QC and Microbiology

A modern and well equipped QC laboratory and a microbiology laboratory have been set up
at the first floor of Cephalosporin plant. It ensures product quality. safety, purity and efficacy
before release a batch for sale. The microbiology tab includes class A/B clean room and
adequate different pressure adjustment. The major QC machinery includes HPLC, TOC from
shimadzu, Japan, UV from thermo Scientifics USA. FTIR from Broker, Germany and the major
microbiology machines includes incubator from moment, Germany, auto clave from
Hirayama, Japan and UV visible microplate reader from Biotech, USA.

Environmental and compliant issues in the production of cephalosporin medicines stands
first. A group of qualified trained and experienced persons are engaged in the production and
control system of the cephalosporin project. We hope that the plant will be accreditation by
TGA which will ultimately lead IPI into international compliance drug manufacturing
company.

interscience




Quality Control (QC) and Quality Assurance (QA)

Our dedication to quality in everything we do is uncompromising, and covers every stage of the development, production,
quality control, quality assurance and marketing of our medicines; from the supply of materials through manufacturing
and approval. The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd., impeccable adherence to Good Laboratory Practice (GLP),
Good Manufacturing Practice (GMP) and Good Documentation Practice (GDP) is recognized by nationally and
internationally as well. The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd., has three separate production division named General
Pharma Division, Cephalosporin Division and Natural Medicine Division. Each division has independent quality assurance
and quality control department. All quality assurance and Quality controls are guided by individual management having
highly qualified, well trained, motivated and skilled personnel. These departments are independent from production which
are directly controlled by Hon'ble Managing Director through Technical Director and Head of Plant.

Quality Control (QC)

It has separate quality control laboratory for each
production division. Each laboratory has the following
wings-

Physical Chemical
Lab Lab

Packaging
Materials
Section

Instrument | Microbiological
Lab and

For conforming the quality of -

® Raw Materials

® Packaging Materials

® Intermediate Products

® Bulk and Finished Products

All laboratories are equipped with modern facilities and
sufficient sophisticated equipment.
Quality Assurance

Quality Assurance (QA) is a wide-ranging concept
covering all matters that individually or collectively
influence the quality of a product. The QA department is
responsible for evolving, implementing and monitoring
quality assurance activities having an impact on product
quality of products.

The IBN SINA quality strategy outlines the vision for
quality. QA plays an important role for continual
improvement following quality risk management system.

The quality assurance ensures the following:

Defining the responsibility and authorization of personnel
Quality Manual

Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs)

Ensure Qualified, Trained and Certified personnel
Quality Risk Management

Validation of Facility, Equipment and Process
Calibration of Equipment

Batch manufacturing record & Batch packaging record
Process Control

Change control management

Deviation management

Corrective and Preventive Action execution and follow up
Market complain handling

Internal Quality Audit

Annual Product Quality Review

Implementation of New regulatory requirements
Learning's from Health Authority Inspections and Audits

To extend and improve people’s lives, we reliably ensure
quality medicines by being a proactive efficient and
trusted partner through our high performing teams.
Quality Assurance plays a role in system development,
controlling and auditing of cGMP practices in the plant.
We are trying to continual improvement of process
performance and product quality throughout the
product life cycle for achieving GMP accreditation from
local Drug administration as well as stringent regulatory
authorities like MCC, ANVISA, TGA, US-FDA etc.
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Product Development (PD) Department

Product Development is an important wing of The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry (IPI) Ltd. We have
two separate PD Departments for Pharma and Natural medicine divisions. Both are enriched with a
number of highly qualified and experienced personnel.

The goal of PD Department is to develop innovative, high quality pharmaceutical products in a cost-
effective way maintaining its highly ethical issues regarding human health.

Our experienced PD team is dedicated to develop & introduce quality products according to ICH
guidelines and continuous improvement of new and existing product for customer satisfaction,
environmental change, technology change and other competitors. The inter department liaison of PD
with PMD, QA, QC, Purchase & Production helps a successful introduction of a new product to the valued
customers.

PD Department is equipped with highly sophisticated machineries and equipments of GMP standard for
development of new products in an efficient manner.

PD team ensures following activity

Preformulation study - To select the compatible Reformulation - improvements or changes in
excipient by checking bio-chemical action and manufacturing processes, formulation, or analytical

incompatibility of ingredients with API methods to enhance quality as well as cost
effectiveness of the product

Pharmaceutical Formulation - To conversion of the Preparation of Sample and Documents - Preparation
formulation of molecules into a Pharmaceutical of samples, protocols and other necessary documents
dosage form (e.g. Tablet, Capsule and Injectables etc.) for registration of products from Drug Administration

(DA). Preparation of BMR, BPR for all products

Stability Study - As per ICH guide-line, physical, manufactured following cGMP requirements.
chemical, and microbiological aspects of formulation

are checked to confirm the shelf-life of the product Comparative Dissolution Study with Innovator

Products- In-vitro dissolution (F2) testing is the pre-

requisite step for identifying needs for bioequivalence

Process Development and Validation - To optimize studies which is confirmed by PD

the manufacturing processes by which the product can

3 be consistently reproduced on a commercial scale Technology Transfer to Production, QC & QA - After
completion of successful development and process

validation of a new product, Formulation &

methods to characterize the Active Pharmaceutical Manufgctunng |nstrgct|on, Product SPECIfICGtIOI’? &
Analytical method is then transfer to Production,

Ingredient including its chemical and physical properties, Quality Control and Quality Assurance for smooth
stability and the presence of impurities. commercial manufacturing.

Pharmaceutical Analysis - The development of analytical

We are on the way of developing central PD laboratory and Scale-up area for Process Validation for The IBN
SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd. having required space with all modern equipments facility.

PD yields around 20-25 new products in health sector every year. This active participation of The IBN SINA
Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd. in pharmaceutical sector stands as one of the leading pharmaceutical
industries in Bangladesh.

_-U
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Marketing Department is the key in a Pharmaceutical to attain the mission. Marketing team
plays a vital role to retain sustainable growth and development. The team works hard to
increase the prescription and sales by promoting the products and building strong relationship
to the customer.

The work of marketing team is very much challenging and requires skilled effort. That's why a
company needs a very efficient and well trained marketing team. Considering this percept,
IBN SINA management also emphasizes to develop a unified Marketing Division to meet the
market demand. Our Marketing department is enriched with an established, professional,
skilled and well equipped marketing team to promote novel ideas and innovative
pharmaceutical products.

2 Jd

In addition with this Marketing team, the integrated Marketing
Division has its own modern distribution channel to cover the whole
Pharmaceutical market within the country, dynamic product
management team, skilled market research team and agile indoor
marketing services team.

The Product Management Department (PMD) intensifies the
marketing activity of field forces by providing intellectual
promotional support throughits dynamic, skilled and well trained
professionals. They also organize seminar and symposium
throughout the country to develop strong relationship with doctors
and provide relevant clinical papers according to doctor's need.

IBN SINA Pharma Marketing Division also started its journey in
herbal section with a few products back in 2008. By this time
Natural Medicine Division of the company became reflection of
trust providing quality products and services to its valued customers.

The integrated Marketing Division is working efficiently &
relentlessly to achieve the company goal.
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Product Management Department (PMD) is the core of marketingin a Pharmaceutical
company. PMD deals with the strategic planning to tactical activities of marketing of the
products at all stages of product lifecycle. PMD plays an important role for setting a product
vision, specifying a product strategyand developing a roadmap meeting both company
goals and customers demand.

Our PMD enriched with a group of dynamic, innovative, diversified, skilled and well trained
professionals.The team plays a crucial role to enrich the product line of the company by
launching new and innovative products. It tries to build a robust product pipeline
comprising of established brands in growing therapeutic segments for steady business
generation and growth of the organization.

PMD carry out marketing activities through market research and strategic planning and
execution of that plans to establish brand. Italso involved in monitoring products
prescription & sales across the country to enhance market share. The team captures new
ideas and suggestions as part of the product database which serve as a good sources of
information for product's evolution.

PMD team intensifies the marketing activity of field forcesby providing all promotional
materials (literature, pad, sticker, dispensing bag, dongle, banner, festoon etc.), gift, and
relevant clinical papers according to doctor’'s need. They play an important role in some
other potential activities such astraining of new and existing field forces. They also organize
seminar and symposium on diseases, medicines etc. throughout the country to develop
strong relationship with doctors and build up image of the company.

In a nutshell, the diverseness of the PMD team helps to maximize sales revenues market
share, and profit margins of the company ultimately.
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Natural Medicine

Division
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The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd. has established a Natural Medicine Division
equipped with latest technological supports in 2008 with a view to facilitate best natural
therapeutic service to the people. Within a very short time our Natural Medicine has
achieved the goodwill and credibility of the medicine professional and consumers for its
efficacy and quality.

Production Department

Some new sophisticated production machineries are recently to support the production
requirement with quality. e.g. High Speed Tabletcompression Machine, Automatic
Laminated tube filling machine, 7 Track sachet filling machine & Automatic sealing machine
etc. Some others machineries under procurement for the new upcoming probiotic products.

Quality Control Department

Quality Control and Quality Assurance Department is well furnished and equipped with the
valuable machineries in light of the latest technology such as AASP, HPLC, FTIR, TLC, UV-
Visible Spectrophotometer, Digital Polari meter, pH meter, Moisture balance etc. Quality
Assurance Department ensured and monitored the quality of products in every step. As a
result it becomes possible to deliver the quality products up to the customer's level.

Herbarium

There is a standard and well decorated Herbarium Department in the natural medicine
factory. Here, a team of efficient manpower is engaged including a qualified taxonomist to
preserve different specimen Raw Materials- Plants, Animals and Minerals. Some rare items
like Pearls Silver leaves, Ambar, Jafran, Sand fish (Reghmahi) etc. are also preserved in this
Herbarium. Besides this, there is a prescribed album with colorful photographs with evidence
of some essential plants as well as sufficient number of reference standard samples have
been enriched in Herbarium.

Product Development Department

The Product Development Department of IBN SINA Natural Medicine Division plays the
pioneer role in healthcare of Bangladesh. There are developing new products to fulfill the
new market demand depending on the latest innovation and customers requirement . Very
recently some sophisticated instruments have been introduced in the Natural Medicine
Product Development laboratory.

Experts on relevant field including PhD professional, other experienced and trained
personnel and recognized natural medicine consultant are involving themselves in
continuous research and product development.
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Marketing
Department

Natural Medicine Division

Field forces of NMD stay alert in the market to execute
marketing strategies and corporate goals approved by the
authority .The young & promising marketing team is working
hard to execute marketing strategies and programs to expand
market size and increase the profitability of products or
sevices.The marketing division is composed of motivated
marketing team, dedicated sales team and experienced &
dynamic indoor marketing service team. The dedicated
marketing team is trying best to reach our products and services
to each and every corner throughout the country under a strong
and dynamic leadership.

This department already has established strong customer
relationship and created demand of our products among the
doctors as well the patients through quality products, sharing
scientific information and knowledge based marketing concept.
Product Management Department assists the Marketing
Department to achieve its goal through organizing scientific
seminars, symposia, doctor’s conferences, workshops and
training programs among newly recruited and existing marketing
field forces

The Marketing Department is striving hard in an organized
manner with a vision to reach the leading position in Bangladesh
Natural Medicine Market.



Product Management
Department

Natural Medicine Division

Product Management Department is an organizationl lifecycle
function within a company dealing with the planning,
forecasting and production or marketing of a product or products
at all stages of the product lifecycle. The IBN SNA Natural
Medicine Division has adopt a well organized Product
Management Department comprised of qualified Unani doctors
and Pharmacist to achieve the company’s goal according to its
Mission and Vision. The young dynamic, self motivated and goal
oriented Product Management Department is always trying hard
to enrich innovative products line.

Product Management Department plans, designs and conducts
fruitful scientific seminars, symposia, CME, RTCdoctor's
conferences regularly throughout the country for expansion of
market size. Product Management Department also provides
intellectual & logistic supports to the field forces such as
developing training manual, products manual, booklet,
publishing Health Magazine and so on. Product Management
team also deals with monitoring products wise sales prescription
monitoring with objective to increase market size. By introducing
new products and innovative promotional works we are trying to
achieve qualified and renowned professor’s prescription in
different medical disciplines. By vigorous promotional works in
the mean time we have made some products as OTC brand.

In a word Product Management Department plays the central
and core role in marketing department.
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Human Resource
Department

Success isn't possible without a great team. At The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical
Industry Ltd., nurturing and supporting human talent is of utmost priority to us.
The company recognizes its Human Resources as a core part of its business
sustainability & growth and sustainable growth is only possible if we foster
teamwork, develop talent, enhance leadership capability and maximize the
potential of our human resources.

Being an Employer of choice, The IBN SINA Pharma has positioned itself with a
performance-driven rewarding work culture where employees are treated with
respect and receive expanded opportunities to realize their potentials. To ensure
long term sustainability, The IBN SINA Pharma emphasizes on skill and merit
base recruitment & selection process, highly competitive remuneration packages,
sufficient training and development Programs, career growth with succession
planning, high performance culture and satisfying working atmosphere where
employees are able to escalate their grievance and receive counseling.

The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd. has been serving for the mankind
for last 35 years. Skilled, motivated, multi-talented & devoted personnel, the
asset of the company are working in our Pharma Division, Natural Medicine &
Cephalosporin Division. Like many areas of the organization finding ways to
maximize efficiency and effectiveness is an ongoing priority for our Human
Resource Department.

Our people, our asset. Recruiting right man in right place in perfect time is the
core strategy of HRD through bias free hiring process. In order to nurture
talents, with the help of T&D team, we provide adequate development
opportunities to all our people. The safety of our people is of paramount
importance and we are committed to establish a culture of health, safety &
environment (HSE) excellence in our organization. A well designed Succession
planning is used to asses, develop and retain talents. Our people deserve the
best of us and hence we focus on our Benefit Policy to ensure our talent receives
benefits and allowances. Rewards and Recognitions are given to recognize
employees for their excellence in service, loyalty, ideas, dedication to the vision
and values of the organization. We pride on being an Equal Opportunity
employer and our code of conduct provides clear guidelines that allow us to
build a working environment that is productive, enjoyable, safe and free from
harassment and discrimination.




Information Technology

Being an ever expanding, leading pharmaceutical company, The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical
Industry Ltd. is producing quality products and is making accuracy in every arena applying
its up to date Information Technology. The company already introduced an ERP System
where Procurement, Inventory, Production, Costing, HR, Admin, Accounts, Marketing, Sales,
Survey and Distribution modules are being incorporated. As a result, the management
could provide all sorts of budget and could implement their plan accordingly. The company
is now able to find out any type of costing, even to produce a single product or a labor
hour. Our marketing people is now using mobile apps to make order which in turn is
helping distribution people for preparing invoice and receiving payments. The purchase
department is procuring materials in advance and production department is producing
goods timely since the marking department provides sales forecast quarterly, half yearly
and annually through ERP. The Accounts and Finance department could implement their
Capital and Financial budget, allocate Finance and prepare their Financial Statement
based on costing and other related factors come out from ERP. HR department is using ERP
for recruitment, promotion, increment, leave, attendance, training and development
purposes. Finally, the Company Affairs and Admin department implements policies, rules
and regulation in the ERP. The management is now able to view any type of report
through ERP by a single click only. IT Department is providing all sorts of security to all the
servers of the company deploying Firewall, Anti-Virus and up to date Network Device. The
department is more concerned about strong backup system for data recovery in any type
of digesters.

IT Department is working for more modernization and time benefiting of this system to
cope up the growing demand of the competitive challenging markets with the help of
expert management of the company.
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We are looking for
Impnncr:’ Distributer!
Agent in Bhutan

Global Market

IBN SINA Pharma is committed to improve its position continuously as a leading
pharmaceutical company in Bangladesh and strengthen its presence in the global
market. With the global vision in mind, the company is now expanding its horizon to
several countries in Asia Pacific region, Middle East, Central America & Africa. Currently
the company is exploring distributorship, looking for contract manufacturing and in
licensing etc. to expand the business worldwide.

With a view to provide healthcare facilities globally, as of now, IBN SINA Pharma is
having its overseas marketing network in Myanmar, Cambodia, Philippines, Sri Lanka,
Vietnam, Somalia, Kenya, Mali, Afghanistan, Yemen, and Sierra Leone. The company
is also in the process of receiving regulatory approvals and exploring business
opportunities in more countries including Laos, Zimbabwe, Ethiopia, Guatemala,
Nepal, Bhutan etc.



The 34th Annual General Meeting of the The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd.
was held on 22 November, 2018 at EmmaNuelle’s Convention Center, Shimanto Square
Market (Rifles Square), Dhanmondi, Dhaka. A good number of Shareholders attended
the AGM. Mr. Shah Abdul Hannan, Chairman of the Board, presided over the meeting.
After recitation from the Holy Quran, the Annual General Meeting was started by the
welcome address to the shareholders by the Chaiman.

The Annual Gereral Meeting is a forum through which the shareholders are informed of
company's activities and progress. The Chairman of the meeting invited comments on
Directors’ Report and Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June, 2018. In
the question and answer session, shareholders were encouraged to ask questions before
approving any specific recommendations.The shareholders expressed their views on the
important activities of the company, its success and progress in the competitive local
and overseas markets.

The Managing Director Prof. Dr. AK.M. Sadrul Islam thanked the shareholders for their
constructive suggestions for the sustainable improvement of the Company. Strategies
and future vision of the company had also discussed. Shareholders put up valuable
recommendations which were discussed and scrutinized in the Subsequent Board
Meeting and proper actions had duly been taken. The meeting approved 10% Stock
Dividend and 30% Cash dividend as against per share of Tk. 10/- each for the year
2017-18.
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5TH ICSB NATIONAL"AWARD, 201758

] e C £ ~ '_ B The Company being
PhOtO 4 x - ' A awarded by ICSB for
, ! | () VY ; i "Best Presented
GCIl Iery Y U e Annual Report"in 2017.

Donation Cheque is being provided

to the Bangladesh Sromik Kallyan
Foundation, Ministry of Labour and
Employment, Govt. of Bangladesh.

Partial view of the
shareholders in the
34th AGM of the Company.

Farewell Tribute to the
retired officers and employees
by Company Management.
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Managing Director of the
Company delivering his speech
in the inaugural session of
“"Regional Conference 2019".
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Scientific Seminar on
“Natural Medicine;
A Global Perspective”

Shareholders registering
their name in the registration
booth of 34th AGM.

44 SINA Pharmaceutical [
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Trainlng Programme on
ealing & Cash Management'

Cayniers of Sales Depats.

As part of

in-house training
program is going on.

Annual Training Manual

Photo

Gallery
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Annexure-A
[As per condition No. 1(5)(xxvi)]

The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd.
Declaration by Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer

Date: 19 September 2019

The Board of Directors

The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd.
Tanin Center, 3 Asadgate, Mirpur Road
Mohammadpur, Dhaka-1207

Subject: Declaration on Financial Statements for the year ended on 30 June 2019.

Dear Sirs,

Pursuant to the condition No. 1(5)(xxvi) imposed vide the Commission's Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-
158/207/Admin/80 Dated 3 June 2018 under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969, we do
hereby declare that:

(1) The Financial Statements of The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd. for the year ended on 30 June 2019 have
been prepared in compliance with International Accounting Standards (IAS) or International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), as applicable in the Bangladesh and any departure there from has been adequately disclosed;

(2) The estimates and judgments related to the financial statements were made on a prudent and reasonable basis, in
order for the financial statements to reveal a true and fair view;

(3) The form and substance of transactions and the Company's state of affairs have been reasonably and fairly
presented in its financial statements;

(4) To ensure above, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a system of internal control and
maintenance of accounting records;

(5) Our internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance that the established policies
and procedures of the Company were consistently followed; and

(6) The management's use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements is
appropriate and there exists no material uncertainty related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

In this regard, we also certify that:

(i) We have reviewed the financial statements for the year ended on 30 June 2019 and that to the best of our
knowledge and belief:

(a) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements
that might be misleading;

(b) these statements collectively present true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with existing
accounting standards and applicable laws.

(i) There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which
are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of conduct for the company's Board of Directors or its members.

Sincerely yours,

G Do

Prof. Dr. A.K.M. Sadrul Islam Md. Jasim Uddin FCA
Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
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A House 51 (2nd Floor)
Road 9, Block F
Banani, Dhaka 1213
Bangladesh

A Telephone: (880-2) 9894346 & 9870957
(880-2) 9894026 & 09610998048
(880-2) 55042314
sfaco@dhaka.net
sfali@connectbd.com
ahmeds@bol-online.com

S FAHMED & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Fax:
E-mails:

....... Since 1958
Member Firm of HLB International

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO
THE SHAREHOLDERS OF THE IBN SINA PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRY LTD.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statments

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd., which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2019 and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give true and fair view in all material respects of the financial
position of the Company as at 30 June 2019 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as explained in notes 1 to 47.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

Revenue

The company has reported a revenue of Taka
5,263,963,344 for the year ended 30 June 2019.

Following the first-time application of the new
revenue recognition standard (IFRS 15,
Revenue from Contracts with Customers), the
company adopted its accounting policies.

112

Under IFRS 15 revenue is recognized when a
performance obligation is satisfied by transferring
control over a promised good or service.

Goods are considered as transferred when (or
as) the customer obtains control of that
goods. Revenue from sale of goods is
measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable net of
returns and allowances, trade discounts,
rebates and Value Added Tax (VAT).

Our procedures included obtaining an understanding of
management's revenue recognition process. We tested a sample
of transactions to verify whether the revenue was accounted for
in accordance with the revenue accounting policy as disclosed in
Note- 3.4 and 24 of the financial statements. In addition, we
assessed whether the disclosed revenue accounting policy was in
accordance with relevant accounting standards.

For the revenue recognized throughout the year, we tested
selected key controls, including results reviews by management,
for their operating effectiveness and performed procedures to
gain sufficient audit evidence on the accuracy of the accounting
for customer contracts and related financial statement captions.

With regard to the implementation of IFRS 15 we verified
management's conclusion from assessing different types of
contracts and the accuracy of the revised accounting policies in
light of the industry specific circumstances and our
understanding of the business. We tested the appropriateness of
the accounting treatment on a sample basis. In addition, we
verified the accuracy of IFRS 15 related disclosures.
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Key Audit Matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

See note no 3.4 and 24 to the financial
statements

These procedures included reading significant new contracts to
understand the terms and conditions and their impact on revenue
recognition. We performed enquiries with management to
understand their risk assessments and inspected meeting minutes
to identify relevant changes in their assessments and estimates.

Our audit approach was a combination of test of internal controls
and substantive procedures which included the following:

Evaluated the design of internal controls relating to recording of
efforts incurred and estimation of efforts required to complete
the performance obligations.

We conducted substantive testing of revenue recorded over the
year using sampling techniques by examining the relevant
supporting documents including sales invoices and depot wise
sales bank reconciliation report, bank statement and also, we
confirmed selected customers' receivable balances at the balance
sheet date, selected on a sample basis by considering the
amount outstanding with those customers.

We specifically put emphasis on those transactions occurring
close before or after the balance sheet date to obtain sufficient
evidence over the accuracy of cut-off.

Finally assessed the appropriateness and presentation of
disclosures against relevant accounting standards.

Valuation of Inventory

The Company had inventory of Taka
522,185,354 at June 30, 2019, held in
different depot, warehouses and across
multiple product lines.

Inventories consisting of raw materials, work in
progress and finished goods are valued at lower of
cost and net realizable value. Cost of inventories
include expenditure incurred in acquiring the
inventories, production or conversion costs and
other costs incurred in bringing them to their
existing location and condition.

Cost of inventories is determined by using the
weighted average cost formula. Where
necessary, allowance is provided for
damaged, obsolete and slow-moving items to
adjust the carrying amount of inventories to
the lower of cost and net realizable value.

We tested the appropriateness of management's assumptions
applied in calculating the value of the inventory provisions by:

e evaluating the design and implementation of key inventory
controls operating across the company, including those at a
sample of, factory production house, warehouse, and sales depots;

e evaluating internal controls to monitor or keep track of
Inventory movement;

e attending inventory count on 30 June 2019 and reconciling the
count results to the inventory listings to test the completeness of data;

e comparing the net realizable value, obtained through a detailed
review of sales subsequent to the year-end, to the cost price of a
sample of inventories;

@ reviewing the historical accuracy of inventory provisioning, and
the level of inventory write-offs during the year;

e challenging the completeness of inventory provisions through
assessing actual and forecast sales of inventory lines to assess whether
provisions for slow moving/obsolete stock are valid and complete.
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Key Audit Matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

Net realizable value is based on estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

See note no 3.7 and 08 to the financial
statements

@ evaluating the correctness of the batch wise costing of final products;

e evaluating the correctness of the valuation of raw materials and
packing material as per weighted average method;

e reviewing the calculation of standard labor hours and their
regular comparison with actual labor hours of production; and
reviewing the process of valuing Work-in-progress.

Measurement of deferred tax Liability

Company reported net deferred tax liability
totaling Taka 79,884,252 as at 30 June 2019.

Significant judgement is required in relation
to deferred tax liability as their liability is
dependent on forecasts of future profitability
over a number of years.

See note no 3.16(b) and 18 to the financial
statements

We obtained an understanding, evaluated the design and tested
the operational effectiveness of the Company's key controls over
the recognition and measurement of Deferred Tax Assets and
Liabilities and the assumptions used in estimating the future
taxable expense of the company.

We also assessed the completeness and accuracy of the data
used for the estimations of future taxable expense.

We evaluated the reasonableness of key assumptions, timing of
reversal of temporary differences and expiration of tax loss carry
forwards, recognition and measurement of Deferred Tax Liability.

We assessed the adequacy of the company's disclosures setting
out the basis of deferred tax liability balances and the level of
estimation involved.

We also assisted in evaluating the tax implications, the reasonableness
of estimates and calculations determined by management.

Finally assessed the appropriateness and presentation of
disclosures against IAS 12 Income Tax.

Valuation of defined benefits obligation

The Company operates a defined benefit
schemes which in total are significant in the
context of the overall financial position. At
year end the company reported a net defined
14 benefits scheme liability of Taka 70,133.
The company had a opening balance of
liability Taka 17,252,564 and paid during the
year Taka 54,608,676.

Liability for gratuity is provisioning on the
presumption that all the employees are
retiring on the balance sheet date rather than
actuarial calculation of the gratuity.
Therefore, valuation of the benefits payable
provision is considered as a key audit matter.

See note no 3.11(b) and 17 to the financial
statements

Our audit procedures included updating our understanding of the
business processes followed by the Company for accounting and
valuing their defined benefit plan.

We obtained sufficient audit evidence to conclude that the inputs
and methodologies used to determine the liability for defined
benefit plan.

We assessed the design and operating effectiveness of the
Company's key controls supporting the identification,
measurement and oversight of valuation of the defined benefits
payable provision.

We examined the basis on which gratuity is payable to the
employee and is worked out the liability for gratuity on the
presumption that all employees retire on the balance sheet date.

We ensured that the basis of computing gratuity is valid; verify
the computation of liability on aggregate basis.

Employee data used in calculating obligation is also tested and
appropriateness and presentation of disclosures against IAS 19:
Employee Benefits were assessed.
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We have nothing to report on going concern

We are required to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting is
inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of that basis
for a period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the financial statements. We have nothing to report
in these respects.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the information in the
Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditors' report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to
be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified
above when it becomes available and in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

After going through the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements and
Internal Controls

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements in accordance with IFRSs
as explained in note 02 and 03, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The
Companies Act, 1994 require the Management to ensure effective internal audit, internal control and risk management
functions of the Company.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

115

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the company to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the company audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditors' report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the Companies Act 1994 and the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, we also report the following:

a) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof;

116
b) in our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appeared from our examination of these books;

c) the statements of financial position and statement of comprehensive income dealt with by the report are in
agreement with the books of accounts and returns; and

d) the expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the Company's business for the year.

Dated, Dhaka; S. F. Ahmed & Co.
19 September, 2019 Chartered Accountants
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THE IBN SINA PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRY LTD.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Investment in marketable securities
Investment in associate

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Advances, deposits & prepayments
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Shareholders’ equity and liabilities
Shareholders’ equity

Share capital

Tax holiday reserve

Unrealised gain on marketable securities
Retained earnings

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Long term finance

Retirement benefit obligations
Deferred tax liability

Current liabilities

Short term finance

Current portion of long term finance
Trade and other payable

Provision for corporate tax

As at 30 June 2019

AMOUNT IN TAKA

Notes

~N o v

10
11

12
13
14
15

16
17
18

20
21
22
23

Total shareholders’ equity and liabilities
Net assets value (NAV) per share (adjusted NAV of 2017-18) 33.2

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

P U e @/

Chairman

Dated, Dhaka;
19 September, 2019

Cp—

Managing Director Director

Signed in terms of our report of even date annexed

30 June 2019

30 June 2018

1,864,246,635

1,581,974,696

1,684,778,351

1,409,800,123

139,187,479 152,905,372
4,878,355 4,415,580
35,402,449 14,853,620
964,225,217 859,761,961
522,185,354 465,017,832
22,585,997 18,050,445
248,500,644 206,679,519
170,953,223 170,014,165

2,828,471,852

2,441,736,657

1,478,296,395

1,227,208,578

312,436,270 284,032,980
4,392,110 4,392,110
(126,137) (156,978)
1,161,594,152 938,940,466
205,863,793 151,991,847
125,909,408 81,245,727
70,133 17,252,564
79,884,252 53,493,557

1,144,311,664

1,062,536,232

542,029,553

23,572,102
406,113,163
172,596,846

552,022,978

14,786,265
346,935,910
148,791,079

2,828,471,852

2,441,736,657

47.32

Company Secretary

39.28

Chief Financial Officer

5,ﬁ,%mw%,

S.F. Ahmed & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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THE IBN SINA PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRY LTD.
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 30 June 2019

Revenue
Cost of goods sold
Gross profit

Operating expenses
Administrative expenses
Selling & distribution expenses
Operating profit

Financial charges

Other income

Net profit from operation
Workers' profit participation fund and welfare fund
Share of associate profit/(loss)
Profit before tax

Income tax expenses
Current tax

Deferred tax income/(expense)

Net profit after tax

Other comprehensive income

Change in fair value of marketable securities
Deferred tax

Total other comprehensive income for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per share (EPS) (adjusted EPS of 2017-18)

Number of Shares used to Compute EPS

AMOUNT IN TAKA

Notes

24
25

27
28

29

30

31
19

32

33.1

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

01 July 2018 to

01 July 2017 to

30 June 2019 30 June 2018
5,263,963,344 4,657,350,011
(3,1702,151,141) (2,764,720,036)

2,161,812,203

(1,672,915,230)

1,892,629,975

(1,486,797,324)

(132,265,190) (119,348,734)
(1,540,650,041) (1,367,448,590)
488,896,972 405,832,651
(14,738,885) (35,856,327)
2,376,777 221,901,479
476,534,864 591,877,802
(22,692,136) (28,184,657)
(1,701.171) (2,269,527)
452,141,557 561,423,618
(89,487,419) (103,964,069)
(26,387,269) (5,162,835)
(115,874,687) (109,126,904)
336,266,870 452,296,714
34,268 (174,420)
(3,427) 17,442
30,841 (156,978)
336,297,711 452,139,736
10.76 14.48
31,243,627 31,243,627

L W gt J/%’

Chairman Managing Director

Signed in terms of our report of even date annexed

Dated, Dhaka;
19 September, 2019
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Chief Financial Officer
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THE IBN SINA PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRY LTD.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 30 June 2019

Amount in Taka

Unrealised
et Copital | Reserve | morketable | Eamings | T
securities
Balance as at 01 July 2018 284,032,980 | 4,392,110 (156,978) 938,940,466 | 1,227,208,578
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss)-2018-2019 30,841 336,266,870 336,297,711
Dividend for the year 30 June 2018 (Cash -30%) (85,209,894) (85,209,894)
Dividend for the year 30 June 2018 (Stock-10%) | 28,403,290 (28,403,290)
Balance as at 30 June 2019 312,436,270 | 4,392,110 (126,137) 1,161,594,152 | 1,478,296,395
Balance as at 01 July 2017 258,211,800 | 4,392,110 289,485,578 552,873,744 | 1,104,963,232
Reclassification adjustment (289,485,578) 24144138 | (265,341,440)
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss)-2018 (156,978) 452,296,714 452,139,736
Dividend for the year 30 June 2017 (Cash -25%) (64,552,950) (64,552,950)
Dividend for the year 30 June 2017 (Stock-10%) [ 25,821,180 (25,821,180)
Balance as at 30 June 2018 284,032,980 | 4,392,110 (156,978) 938,940,466 | 1,227,208,578

e N C@/ e \\j/%/

Chairman Managing Director Director Company Secretary  Chief Financial Officer

Signed in terms of our report of even date annexed

S. F. Ahmed & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Dated, Dhaka;

19 September, 2019 119
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THE IBN SINA PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRY LTD.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 30 June 2019

AMOUNT IN TAKA

Notes

Cash flows from operating activities
Received from revenue and others
Payment for operating expenses & others

Miscellaneous income

Cash generated from operations

Cash payment for income tax

Payment for financial charges

Net cash provided by operating activities 334

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sales of motor vehicles

Investment

Dividend received/IBBI-MPB
Received from bank deposits
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Payment of dividend

Long term finance received/(paid) from bank (Net)
Short term finance received/(paid) from bank (Net)
Net cash flow from financing activities

Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the opening

Foreign exchange fluctuation gain/(loss) on FCAD ERQ accounts 29
Cash and cash equivalents at the closing

NOCFPS (adjusted NOCFPS of 2017-18) 333

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

o (@/ o —/

Chairman

Dated, Dhaka;

19 September, 2019
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Managing Director Director

Signed in terms of our report of even date annexed

01July 2018 to

01 July 2017 to

30 June 2019 30 June 2018
5,259,427,792 4,652,515,092
(4,689,238,564) (4,337,509,651)
680,313 37,875
570,869,540 315,043,316
(122,765,719) (86,775,565)
(14,738,885) (35,856,327)
433,364,937 192,411,424
(389,730,586) (532,619,231)
- 2,703,300
(20,977,337) 276,598,589

- 397,494

2,471,655 2,861,176
(408,236,268) (250,058,673)
(66,456,496) (60,735,273)
44,663,681 (148,250,220)
(1,207,588) 239,998,048
(23,000,403) 31,012,554
2,128,266 (26,634,694)
170,014,165 197,423,176
(1,189,209) (774,317)
170,953,223 170,014,165
13.87 6.16

Company Secretary

Chief Financial Officer

S. F. Ahmed & Co.
Chartered Accountants




THE IBN SINA PHARMACEUTICAL INDUSTRY LTD.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2019

1. Reporting entity
1.1 The company

The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd. (the
"Company”) was incorporated in Bangladesh on 22
December 1983 under the Companies Act, 1913
(replaced by the Companies Act 1994) and it was
converted into a Public Limited Company in 1989.

The registered office of the company is at Tanin Center, 3
Asad Gate, Mirpur Road, Mohammadpur, Dhaka-1207.
The Company is listed with Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited
(DSE) and Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited (CSE).

1.2 Nature of business

The Company involves in production of pharmaceutical
drugs and natural medicines and selling them in both
local and international market.

1.3 Associate companies
The IBN SINA Consumer Products Ltd.

The IBN SINA Consumer Products Ltd. was incorporated in
Bangladesh on 14 January 2016 under the Company Act,
1994. The Company involves in production, processing,
storing and other related activities of consumer and
agricultural products.

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
2.1 Statement on compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and International Accounting Standard
(IAS) adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Bangladesh (ICAB), the Companies Act, 1994,
Securities and Exchange Rules, 1987 and other relevant
laws as applicable.

2.2 Other regulatory compliances

The Company is also required to comply with the following
major legal provisions in addition to the Companies Act
1994 and other applicable laws and regulations:

- The Income Tax Ordinance 1984
- The Income Tax Rules 1984

- The Value Added Tax Act 1991

- The Value Added Tax Rules 1991

- The Drugs Act 1940 and the Drug Rules 1946

- The Drugs (Control) Ordinance 1982

- The Customs Act 1969

- The Stamp Act 1899

- The Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission Act 1993

- The Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission Rules 1987
- DSE/CSE Rules

- Listing Regulations,2015

- Bangladesh Labour Act, 2006(as amended to 2013)

2.3 Authorization for issue

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the
Board of Directors in its meeting held on 19 September
2019 for publication.

2.4 Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on
historical cost basis except for certain assets which are
stated either at revalued amount or fair market value as
explained in the accompanying notes.

2.5 Accrual basis of accounting

The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Limited prepares
its financial statements, except for cash flow information,
using the accrual basis of accounting. Since the accrual
basis of accounting is used, the company recognizes
items as assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses
(the elements of financial statements) when they satisfy
the definitions and recognition criteria for those
elements in the IFRS conceptual Framework.

2.6 Presentations of financial statements 121

The presentation of these financial statements is in
accordance with the guidelines provided by IAS 1:
Presentation of Financial Statements. The financial
statements comprise of:

(a) Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2019

(b) Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income for the year ended 30 June 2019

(c) Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended
30 June 2019

(d) Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 30 June 2019

(e) Notes, comprising summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.
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2.7 Functional and presentation currency

Functional and presentation currency items included in
these financial statements are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the company operates ('the functional currency'). These
financial statements are presented in Bangladesh Taka
("BDT") which is also the functional currency of the
company. The amounts in these financial statements
have been rounded off to the nearest BDT except
otherwise indicated.

2.8 Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with International Financial Reporting Standards requires
management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses and for contingent assets and
liabilities that require disclosure, during and at the date
of the financial statements.

Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions of accounting estimates are recognized
in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any
future periods affected as required by IAS 8: "Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors".

2.9 Investment in associates

An entity in which an investor has significant influence,
but which is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint
venture is classified as Investment in Associates. Equity
Method accounting has been followed to recognize and
measure the investment in associates in accordance with
International Accounting Standard (IAS) 28 "Investments
in Associates. The IBN SINA Pharmaceuticals holds 40 %
of its associate's (The IBN SINA Consumer Product
Limited) equity shares as at year end.

2.10 Materiality, aggregation and off setting

Each material item as considered by management
significant has been displayed separately in the financial
statements. No amount has been set off unless the
Company has legal right to set off the amounts and
intends to settle on net basis. Income and expenses are
presented on a net basis only when permitted by the
relevant accounting standards. The values of assets or
liabilities as shown in the statement of financial position
are not off-set by way of deduction from another liability
or asset unless there exist a legal right therefore. No such
incident existed during the year.
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2.11 Going concern assumption

The financial statements are prepared on the basis of
going concern assumption. As per management
assessment there is no material uncertainties related to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

2.12 Reporting period

The reporting period of the company covers 12 (twelve)
months from 07st July 2018 to 30th June 2019.

2.13 Comparative information

Comparative information has been disclosed in respect of
2017-2018 in accordance with IAS-1 "Presentation of
Financial Statements” for all numeric information in the
financial statements and also the narrative and
descriptive information where it is relevant for
understanding of the current periods of financial
statements. Prior year figure has been re arranged
wherever considered necessary to ensure comparability
with the current period.

3. Significant accounting policies
3.1 Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

An item shall be recognized as property, plant and
equipment’s if, and only it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
entry, and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Items of property, plant and equipment's are measured
at cost less accumulated depreciation as per IAS 16:
Property, Plant and Equipment.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price, import duties and non-
refundable taxes, after deducting trade discount and
rebates, and any costs directly attributable to bringing
the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to
be capable of operating in the intended manner. The cost
also includes the cost of replacing part of the property,
plant and equipment and borrowing costs for term debt
availed for the construction/ Implementation of the PPE,
if the recognition criteria are met.

The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of
material and direct labor and other costs directly
attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition
inclusive of inward freight, duties and non-refundable
taxes for their intended use.



Subsequent costs

The subsequent expenditure is only capitalized as part of
assets when the useful life or economic benefit or both of
that asset is increased provided that it is probable that
the future economic benefits embodied within the part
will flow to the company and its cost can be measured
reliably. The costs of day to day servicing of property,
plant and equipments are recognized in the Statement
of Profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
'Repair and Maintenance’ when it is incurred.

Depreciation on non-current assets

Depreciation is provided to amortize the cost of the
assets after commissioning, over the period of their
expected useful lives, in accordance with the provision of
IAS 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment”. Depreciation is
charged on additions made during the year from the
month in which those assets are put into ready for use.
Depreciation is charged on dall the fixed assets except
land and land development on reducing balance method
at the following rates.

Particular of Assets Rate of Depreciation
Building 25%
Plant & Machinery 10%
Internal Road 10%
Installations 10%
Equipment 10%
Computers 30%
Furniture & Fixtures 10%
Motor vehicles 20%
Spare & Loose Tools 30%
Library Books 30%
Temporary Construction 30%

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values
are reviewed after each reporting period. Depreciation
rate Spare & Loose Tools, Library Books, Temporary
Construction was revised during current reporting period
due to change in nature of use and revised estimation
regarding useful life of the assets. Last year depreciation
rate for Spare & Loose Tools, Library Books and
Temporary Construction was 20%, 10% and 20%
respectively. No estimate other than the those
mentioned in this paragraph in respect of Property, Plant
and equipment was revised during the year.

Impairment

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, recoverable amount is estimated
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.
Impairment loss is recorded on judgmental basis, for
which provision may differ in the future years based on
the actual experience.

Disposal of property, plant and equipment

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is removed
from the statement of financial position when it is
dispose off or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss on the
disposal of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is
included in the statement of income of the period in
which the de-recognition occurs.

Capital work in progress

Property, plant and equipment under construction /
acquisition have been accounted for as capital work-in-
progress until construction / acquisition is completed and
measured at cost.

3.2 Intangible assets and research and development
expenditures

Intangible assets are stated at cost less provisions for
amortization and impairments, if any. License, patents,
know-how and marketing rights acquired are amortized
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight line
basis, from the time they are available for use. The cost
of acquiring and developing computer software for
internal use and internet sites for external use are
capitalized as intangible assets where the software or
site supports a significant business system and the
expenditure leads to the creation of a durable asset.

In compliance with the requirements of IAS 38
"Intangible  Assets”, research, development and
experimental costs are usually absorbed as revenue
charges as and when incurred. However, the research and
development expenditures that is definite to yield benefit
to the Company and is material in the Company's and/
local context, are capitalized as per IAS-38.

3.3 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of
the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of

123
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interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds as per IAS 23:
Borrowing Costs.

3.4 Revenue

The Company recognises as revenue the amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Company expects
to be entitled in exchange for goods or services when (or
as) it transfers control to the customer. To achieve that
core principle, this standard establishes a five-step model
as follows:

e Identify the contract with a customer;

o Identify the performance obligations in the contract;

e Determine the transaction price;

e Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract; and

@ Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.

Considering the five steps model, the Company
recognises revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised goods
to a customer. Goods is considered as transferred when
(or as) the customer obtains control of that goods.
Revenue from sale of goods is measured at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable net of returns
and allowances, trade discounts, rebates and Value
Added Tax (VAT).

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when
control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods. The Company has generally concluded
that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements
because it typically controls the goods or services before
transferring them to the customer.

Profit on bank deposits
Profit on bank deposits have been accounted on accrual basis.
Dividends

Revenue is recognised when the company's right to
receive the payment is established, which is generally the
date when shareholders approve the dividend.

3.5 Financial instruments

IFRS 9 sets out requirements for recognising and
measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and some
contracts to buy or sell non-financial items. This standard
replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement.
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The details of new significant accounting policies and
the nature and effect of the changes to previous
accounting policies are set out below.

Classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities

IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in IAS 39
for the classification and measurement of financial
liabilities. However, it eliminates the previous IAS 39
categories for financial assets of held to maturity, loans
and receivables and available for sale.

The adoption of IFRS 9 has not had a significant effect
on the company's accounting policies related to financial
liabilities. The impact of IFRS 9 on the classification and
measurement of financial assets is set out below.

Under IFRS 9, on initial recognition, a financial asset is
classified as measured at: amortised cost; Fair Value
through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) - debt
investment; Fair Value through Other Comprehensive
Income (FVOCI) - equity investment; or Fair Value
Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL). The classification of
financial assets under IFRS 9 is generally based on the
business model in which a financial asset is managed
and its contractual cash flow characteristics. Derivatives
embedded in contracts where the host is a financial asset
in the scope of the standard are never separated.
Instead, the hybrid financial instrument as a whole is
assessed for classification.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

a. it is held within a business model whose objective is to
hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

b. its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets
both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

a. it is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and

b. its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not
held for trading, the company may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment's fair



value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-by-
investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at
amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL. A financial asset (unless it is a trade
receivable without a significant financing component
that is initially measured at the transaction price) is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at
FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to
its acquisition.

The following accounting policies apply to the
subsequent measurement of financial assets.

Financial assets at FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend
income, are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. The amortised
cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-
recognition is recognized in profit or loss. Trade
receivables are classified as financial assets measured at
amortised cost.

Debt investments at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Interest income calculated using the effective interest
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net
gains and losses are recognised in OCI. On de-
recognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Dividends are recognised as income in profit or loss unless
the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in OCI and are never reclassified to profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

IFRS 9 replaces the 'incurred loss' model in IAS 39 with
an ‘'expected credit loss' (ECL) model. The new
impairment model applies to financial assets measured
at amortised cost, contract assets and debt investments
at FVOCI, but not to investments in equity instruments.

The financial assets at amortised cost consist of trade
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, and corporate

debt securities. The company measures loss allowances
at an amount equal to ECL from trade receivables.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECLs, the company considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information and
analysis, based on The company's historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including forward-
looking information.

The company considers a financial asset to be in default
when the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to
the company in full, without recourse by The company to
actions such as realizing security (if any is held).

Measurement of Expected Credit Losses (ECL)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows
due to the entity in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the company expects to receive). ECLs
are discounted at the effective interest rate of the
financial asset.

Presentation of impairment

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at
amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets. For debt securities at FVOCI, the
loss allowance is recognised in OCI, instead of reducing
the carrying amount of the asset.

Impairment losses related to trade receivables and
others, including contract assets, are presented
separately in the notes to the financial statement.

3.6 Impairment
i) Financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances for Expected
Credit Losses ECLs on:

e financial assets measured at amortised cost;
e debt investments measured at FVOCI; and
e contract assets.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at
amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets. Loss allowances measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following,
which are measured at 12-month ECLs:

e debt securities that are determined to have low credit
risk at the reporting date; and
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e other debt securities and bank balances for which
credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the
expected life of the financial instrument) has not
increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract assets
are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information and
analysis, based on the Company's historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including forward-
looking information.

ii) Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial
assets (other than inventories) are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists,
then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated in
order to determine the extent of impairment loss (if
any). Where it is not possible to determine the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company
estimates the recoverable amount of the Cash
Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. An
impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of
an asset or its CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the
greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to
sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash
flows, discounted to their present value using a pre- tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset or CGU.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. An
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the
asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

3.7 Inventories

Inventories consisting of raw materials, work in progress,
finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost of inventories include expenditure
incurred in acquiring the inventories, production or
conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing
them to their existing location and condition. Cost of
inventories is determined by using the weighted average
cost formula. Where necessary, allowance is provided for
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damaged, obsolete and slow-moving items to adjust the
carrying amount of inventories to the lower of cost and
net realizable value. Net realizable value is based on
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

3.8 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consists of cash on hand and
with banks on current accounts, deposit accounts and
short term investments which are held and available for
use by the company without any restriction. There is
insignificant risk of change in value of the same.

3.9 Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Earnings Per Share (EPS) are calculated in accordance
with the International Accounting Standard IAS- 33
“"Earnings Per Share".

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the
profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the entity by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the year. The Basic EPS of
previous year has been restated to adjust the effect of
bonus issue of shares during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per
shares, an entity adjusts profit or loss attributable to
each ordinary equity holders of the entity, and weighted
average number of shares outstanding, for the effects of
all dilutive potential ordinary shares. Diluted EPS is only
calculated where the company has commitment to issue
ordinary share in future at reporting date. No such
commitment is hold by company at reporting date.

3.10 Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are recorded, on initial
recognition in the functional currency at the spot
exchange rate ruling at the transaction date.

At the end of each reporting period in compliance with
the provision of IAS 21: The Effects of Changes in
Foreign Exchange Rates.

a) Foreign currency monetary items are translated using
the closing rate.

b) Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical costs in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

¢) Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency is translated using the exchange rate
at the date when the fair value is determined.



Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items or on translating monetary items at rate
different from those at which they were translated on
initial recognition during the period or in previous
financial statements is recognized in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

Amount in FCAD ERQ Account and any other foreign
currency balance have been translated into taka at the
reporting date at the exchange rate prevailing on that
date and gain/(loss) have been accounted for as other
income/(loss) in statement of profit or loss and
comprehensive income.

3.11 Employee benefits

The company maintains both defined contribution plan
and defined benefit plan for its eligible permanent
employees. The eligibility is determined according to the
terms and conditions set forth in the respective trust
deeds and rules. Both of the plans are funded and are
recognised/approved under Income Tax Ordinance 1984
from National Board of Revenue (NBR).

(a) Defined contribution plan (provident fund)

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment
benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and has no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further amounts.
Obligations for contribution to defined contribution plans
are recognised as an employee benefit expense in profit
or loss in the period during which related services are
rendered by employees. Advance contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund
or a reduction in future payment is available.

The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd. has a separate
recognised provident fund scheme. All permanent
employees of The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd.
contribute 10% of their basic salary to the provident fund
and the company makes matching contributions.

The company recognises contribution to defined
contribution plan as an expense when an employee has
rendered related services in exchange for such
contribution. The legal and constructive obligation is
limited to the amount The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical
Industry Ltd. agrees to contribute to the fund.

(b) Defined benefit plan (gratuity)

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan
other than a defined contribution plan. The employee
gratuity plan is considered as defined benefit plan as it
meets the recognition criteria. The company's obligation
is to provide the agreed benefits to current and former

employees. The net defined benefit liability/(asset) in
respect of a defined benefit plan is recognised in the
statement of financial position.

Current service cost, past service cost and gain/loss on
settlement and net interest on the net defined benefit
liability/(asset) are recognized in profit or loss.

Service cost and gain/loss on settlement are classified as
personnel expense and net interest on the net defined
benefit liability (asset) is classified as financial expense.

The gratuity is calculated for all the employees prescribed
by the rates as per Labor Act 2006 (as amended to 2013)
for their service with the company. The gratuity fund is
administered by the Board of Trustees.

Superannuation Fund

The company has established a Superannuation Fund in
the year 2013 to extend financial help to the employees
and their family members as per rules in case of severe
diseases, physical disability, death and retirement.
During the year from 1st July 2018 to 30th June 2019
Company contributed an amount of Tk. 3,700,000
(Thirty-Seven Lacs) to the Fund and will continue its
support in the coming days.

Workers' Profit Participation Fund (WPPF)

The Company provides 5% of its profit before Tax after
charging contribution to WPPF in accordance with
Bangladesh Labour Act, 2006 (as amended to 2013)

(c) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured
on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided.

3.12 Accruals, provisions and contingencies
(a) Accruals

Accruals are liabilities to pay for goods or services that
have been received or supplied but have not been paid,
invoiced or formally agreed with the supplier, including
amounts due to employees. Accruals are reported as part
of trade and other payables.

(b) Provisions

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial
position when the company has a legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. Provision is ordinarily measured
at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the present obligation at the reporting date. Where the
company expects some or all of a provision to be
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reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is
presented in the income statement net of any
reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money
is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific
to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as
a finance cost. During the reporting year the company
has made sufficient provisions where applicable.

(c) Contingencies

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the company; or a present obligation that arises from
past events but is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from
past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the company. At the reporting date the company does
not have any contingent asset.

Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised in the
statement of financial position of the company.

3.13 Operating Segments

No geographical segment reporting is applicable for the
Company as required by IFRS 08: Operating Segments,
as the Company operates in a single geographical area
and has a single business line of product i.e.
manufacturing and selling of medicine.

3.14 Statement of cash flows

The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared in
accordance with the requirements of IAS 7: Statement of
Cash Flows. The cash generating from operating
activities has been reported using the Direct Method as
prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Rules, 1987
and as the benchmark treatment of IAS 7 whereby
major classes of gross cash receipts and gross cash
payments from operating activities are disclosed.

3.15 Related party disclosures

As per International Accounting Standards [AS-24:
'Related Party Disclosures’, parties are considered to be
related if one of the parties has the ability to control the
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other party or exercise significant influence over the
other party in making financial and operating decisions.
The Company carried out transactions in the ordinary
course of business on an arm's length basis at
commercial rates with its related parties. Related party
disclosures have been given in Note 36.

3.16 Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred
taxes. Income tax expense is recognised in profit or loss
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity
in accordance with IAS 12: Income Tax.

(a) Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the period, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous periods.
The tax rate used for the reporting period was 25% as a
publicly traded company.

(b) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized as income or an expense amount
within the tax charge, and included in the net profit or loss
for the period. Deferred tax relating to items dealt with
other comprehensive income is recognized as tax relating to
other comprehensive income within the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income.

Taxable Temporary difference

A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable
differences, except to the extent that the deferred tax
liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill; or
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction which is not a business combination; and at
the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting
profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).

Revaluations to fair value-Investment in marketable securities

The revaluation does not affect taxable profits in the
period of revaluation and consequently, the tax base of
the asset is not adjusted. Hence a temporary difference
arises. This is provided for in full based on the difference
between carrying amount and tax base. An upward
revaluation is therefore given rise to a deferred tax liability.

Deductible temporary difference

A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary difference can be utilized, unless
the deferred tax asset arises from the initial recognition



of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination; and at the time of the
transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable
profit (tax loss).

3.17 Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the company's position at the
statement of financial position date are reflected in the
financial statements as per International Accounting
Standards IAS-10: 'Events after the Reporting Period".

All material events occurring after the balance sheet date
have been considered and where necessary, adjusted for
or disclosed.

3.18 Risk exposure
Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that Company faces due to
unfavorable movements in the interest rates. Changes in
the government's monetary policy, along with increased
demand for loans/investments tend to increase the
interest rates. Such rises in interest rates mostly affect
companies having floating rate loans or companies
investing in debt securities.

Management perception

The Company maintains low debt/ equity ratio; and
accordingly, adverse impact of interest rate fluctuation
is insignificant.

Exchange rate risk

Exchange rate risk occurs due to changes in exchange
rates. As the Company imports materials and equipment
from abroad and also earns revenue in foreign currency,
unfavorable volatility or currency fluctuation may affect
the profitability of the Company. If exchange rate
increases against local currency, opportunity arises for
generating more profit.

Management perception

The products of the company are sold mostly in local
currency. Therefore, volatility of exchange rate will have
no impact on profitability of the Company.

Industry risks

Industry risk refers to the risk of increased competition
from foreign and domestic sources leading to lower
prices, revenues, profit margin, and market share which
could have an adverse impact on the business, financial
condition and results of operation.

Management perception

Management is optimistic about growth opportunity in

pharmaceutical sector in Bangladesh. Furthermore, there
is untapped international market.

Market risks

Market risk refers to the risk of adverse market conditions
affecting the sales and profitability of the company.
Mostly, the risk arises from falling demand for the
product or service which would harm the performance of
the company. On the other hand, strong marketing and
brand management would help the company increase
their customer base.

Management perception

Management is fully aware of the market risk, and act
accordingly. Market for pharmaceuticals, drugs and
medicines in Bangladesh is growing at an exponential
rate. Moreover, the company has a strong marketing and
brand management to increase the customer base and
customer loyalty.

Operational risks

Non-availabilities of materials/equipment/services may
affect the smooth operational activities of The
Company. On the other hand, the equipment may face
operational and mechanical failures due to natural
disasters, terrorist attacks, unforeseen events, lack of
supervision and negligence, leading to severe accidents
and losses.

Management perception

The company perceives that allocation of its resources
properly can reduce this risk factor to great extent. The
Company hedges such risks in costs and prices and also
takes preventive measures therefore.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will

not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at
areasonable price.

Management perception

The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to
ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal
and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable
losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation.
Typically, management ensures that it has sufficient cash
and cash equivalent to meet expected operational
expenses, including the servicing of financial obligation
through preparation of the cash forecast, prepared based
on time line of payment of the financial obligation and
accordingly arrange for sufficient liquidity/fund to make
the expected payment within due date.
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3.19 Compliance with financial reporting standards as applicable in Bangladesh

The Company as per Para-12 of Securities & Exchange Rule-1987, with the following International Accounting
Standards (IASs) and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by The Institute of Chartered

Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) in preparing the financial statements.

.l
1 1 Presentation of Financial Statements Complied
2 2 Inventories Complied
3 7 Statement of Cash Flows Complied
4 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors Complied
5 10 | Events after the Reporting Period Complied
6 12 | Income Taxes Complied
7 16 | Property, Plant & Equipment Complied
8 17 | Leases Not Applicable
9 19 | Employee Benefits Complied
10 20 | Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance Not Applicable
I 21 | The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates Complied
12 23 | Borrowing Cost Complied
13 24 | Related Party Disclosures Complied
14 26 | Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans Not Applicable
15 27 | Separate Financial Statements Not Applicable
16 28 | Investments in Associates and joint ventures Complied
17 29 | Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economics Not Applicable
130 18 31 Interest in Joint Ventures Not Applicable
19 32 | Financial Instruments: Presentation Complied
. 20 33 | Earnings per Share Complied
21 34 | Interim Financial Reporting Complied
22 36 | Impairment of Assets Complied
23 37 | Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets Complied
24 38 | Intangible Assets Complied
25 40 | Investment Property Not Applicable
26 41 Agriculture Not Applicable
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1 1 First-time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards Not Applicable
2 2 Share-based Payment Not Applicable
3 3 Business Combinations Not Applicable
4 4 Insurance Contracts Not Applicable
5 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations Not Applicable
6 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources Not Applicable
7 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures Complied
8 8 Operating Segments Complied
9 9 Financial Instrument Complied
10 10 | Consolidated Financial Statements Not Applicable
11 11 Joint Arrangements Not Applicable
12 12 | Disclosure of Interests in other Entities Complied
13 13 | Fair Value Measurement Complied
14 14 | Regulatory Deferral Accounts Not Applicable
15 15 | Revenue from Contracts with Customers Complied

3.20 Changes in significant accounting policies

Except for the changes below, the Company has
consistently applied the accounting policies to all periods
presented in these financial statements.

The Company has initially adopted IFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers and IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments from 1 July 2018.

There is no impact on financial statements on initial
application of the standards.

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

"IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
determining whether, how much and when revenue is
recognised. It replaced IAS 18 Revenue, IAS 11
Construction Contracts and related interpretations.

The Company has adopted IFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers retrospectively to each prior
period presented in accordance with IAS 8 Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
from 1 July 2018. The adoption of this standard had no
impact on the Company's financial statements.

IFRS 9 Financial instruments

IFRS 9 sets out requirements for recognising and
measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and some
contracts to buy or sell non-financial items. This standard
replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement.

As a result of the adoption of IFRS 9, the Company has
adopted consequential amendments to IAS 1
Presentation of Financial Statements, which require
impairment of financial assets to be presented in a
separate line item in the statement of profit or loss and
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).

Classification and measurement of financial assets and
financial liabilities

IFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for
financial assets: measured at amortised cost, FVOCI (Fair
Value Through OCI) and FVTPL (Fair Value Through Profit
and Loss). The classification of financial assets under IFRS
9 is generally based on the business model in which a
financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow
characteristics.
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IFRS 9 eliminates the previous IAS 39 categories of held
to maturity, loans and receivables and available for sale.
Under IFRS 9, derivatives embedded in contracts where
the host is a financial asset in the scope of the standard
are never separated. Instead, the hybrid financial
instrument as a whole is assessed for classification.

IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in IAS 39
for the classification and measurement of financial
liabilities. The adoption of IFRS 9 has not had a
significant effect on the Company's accounting policies
related to financial liabilities.

For an explanation of how the Company classifies and
measures financial instruments and accounts for related
gains and losses under IFRS 9, see note 3.5.

The following table and the accompanying notes below
explain the original measurement categories under IAS 39
and the new measurement categories under IFRS 9 for each
class of the Company's financial assets and financial
liabilities as at 01 July 2018.

The effect of adopting IFRS 9 on the carrying amounts of financial assets at 01 July 2018 relates solely to the new

impairment requirements.
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Original New Origifml Ne\fv
classification classification :?1';'3"::2 :?;2’;?12
der IAS 39 der IFRS 9
under under under IAS 39 | under IFRS 9
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables, Loans and receivables Amortised cost 18,050,445 18,050,445
Cash and cash equivalents Loans and receivables Amortised cost 170,014,165 170,014,165
Total 188,064,610 188,064,610
Financial liabilities Other financial Other financial
Trade and other payables liabilities liabilities 346,935,910 346,935,910
Total 346,935,910 346,935,910

Trade and other receivables that were classified as loans and receivables under IAS 39 are now classified at amortised
cost. No material impact to the primary financial statements has arisen on the adoption of IFRS 9 and the Company

has not restated prior periods on adoption of IFRS 9.

The following table reconciles the carrying amounts of financial assets under IAS 39 to the carrying amounts under

IFRS 9 on transition to IFRS 9 on 01 July 2018.

IAS 39 carrying IFRS 9 carrying
amount at Re-measurement amount at
30 June 2018 01 July 2018

Financial Assets
Trade and other receivables

Brought forward: Loans and receivables 18,050,445

Re-measurement

Carried forward 18,050,445
Cash and cash equivalents

Brought forward: Loans and receivables 170,014,165

Re-measurement

Carried forward 170,014,165
Total 188,064,610 188,064,610
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Impairment of financial assets

IFRS 9 replaces the ‘incurred loss" model in IAS 39 with
an ‘expected credit loss’ (ECL) model. The new
impairment model applies to financial assets measured
at amortised cost, contract assets and debt investments
at FVOCI, but not to investments in equity instruments.
Under IFRS 9, credit losses are recognised earlier than
under IAS 39 - see Note 3.5.

The Company applies the simplified approach to
providing for expected credit losses prescribed by IFRS 9,
which requires the use of the lifetime expected loss
provision for all trade receivables. Credit risk is minimised
due to the quality and short-term nature of the
Company's trade receivables as well as the fact that the
exposure is spread over a large number of customers.

As detailed in note 3.5, no material impact to the
primary financial statements has arisen on the adoption
of IFRS 9 and the Company has not restated prior
periods on adoption of IFRS 9.

3.21 Standards issued but not yet effective

In January 2018, the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Bangladesh (ICAB) has adopted International
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board as IFRSs. As
the ICAB previously adopted such standards as
Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards without any
modification, this adoption does not have any impact on
the financial statements of the Company for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

A number of new standards are effective for annual
periods beginning after 1 January 2018 and earlier
application is permitted; however, the Company has not
early adopted the new or amended standards in
preparing these financial statements.

Of those standards that are not yet effective, IFRS 16 is
expected to have a material impact on the Company's
financial statements in the period of initial application.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease
accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognises a right-
of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying

asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to
make lease payments. There are recognition exemptions
for short-term leases and leases of low-value items.

Lessor accounting remains similar to the current
standard - i.e. lessors continue to classify leases as
finance or operating leases.

IFRS 16 replaces existing leases guidance, including IAS
17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases
- Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.

The standard is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2019. Although early adoption is
permitted, the company has not early adopted IFRS 16
in preparing these financial statements.

The most significant impact identified is that, the
company will recognise new assets and liabilities for its
operating leases of corporate offices and sales depot. In
addition, the nature of expenses related to those leases
will now change as IFRS 16 replaces the straight-line
operating lease expense with a depreciation charge for
right-of-use assets and interest expense on lease
liabilities.

Previously, the company recognised operating lease
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease, and recognised liabilities only to the extent that
there was a timing difference between actual lease
payments and the expense recognized.

The company has no finance leases.

As a lessee, the company plans to apply IFRS 16 initially
on 1 July 2019, using the modified retrospective
approach. Therefore, the cumulative effect of adopting
IFRS 16 will be recognised as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained earnings at 1 July 2019,
with no restatement of comparative information.

The company also plans to apply IFRS 16 to all contracts
entered into before 1 July 2019 and identified as leases
in accordance with IAS 17 and IFRIC 4.

The company is currently assessing the impact of initially
applying the standard on the elements of financial
statements.
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AMOUNT IN TAKA

Property, plant and equipment 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Cost/Revaluation

Opening balance 2,006,554,756 1,606,348,997
Addition during the year 403,448,480 406,328,044
Disposal/adjustment during the year - (6,122,286)
Closing balance 2,410,003,235 2,006,554,756
Accumulated depreciation

Opening balance 596,754,632 490,016,499
Charged during the year 128,470,252 112,239,130
Disposal/adjustment during the year - (5,500,997)
Closing balance 725,224,884 596,754,632

Closing balance of written down value (WDV)
Details of fixed assets have been shown in Annexure - A.

Capital work-in-progress

a. Construction work-in-progress (building)

1,684,778,351

1,409,800,123

Opening balance 44,776,558 26,614,186
Add: Addition during the year 7,920,416 18,162,372

52,696,974 44,776,558
b. Machinery in transit 86,490,505 108,128,815
Closing balacne (a+b) 139,187,479 152,905,372

A new building is being constructed in the factory premises located in Shafipur Gazipur to increase the overall
production capacity of The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd. The amount in machinery in transit represents
the amount for opening the LC for the procurement of Factory machineries for newly constructed factory building
and increasing production capacity for existing factory which are not received yet by the company.

Investment in marketable securities

Exim Bank Limited 497,200 -
Islami Bank Bangladesh Ltd. (IBBL)-Mudaraba Perpetual Bond (MPB) 4,381,155 4,415,580
4,878,355 4,415,580

The above investment in marketable securities are designated as Fair value through OCI (FVTOCI) by the
management. These are measured at fair value and presented as non-current asset. Unrealized gain/(loss) from the
above investment were recognized in other comprehensive income. The shares of EBL and IBBL-MPB are listed in
Dhaka Stock exchange and Chittagong Stock exchange. The whole investment in shares of both the companies are
in DSE only. The market value of each share of EBL and IBBL-MPB was at Tk. 11.3 and Tk. 954.50 on the reporting

date June 30, 2019.
Details has been shown in Annexure B

Investment in associate

Opening balance 17,750,000 9,750,000
Add: Addition during the year 22,250,000 8,000,000

40,000,000 17,750,000
Opening retained earnings (2,896,380) (626,853)
Add: Current year loss (1,701,171) (2,269,527)

35,402,449 14,853,620
Proportion of ownership 40% 40%
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08. Inventories

Raw materials
Packing materials
Work-in-process
Finished goods
Physicians' samples
Pad & literature
Spares & stores
Indirect materials
Printing & stationery
Laboratory chemicals
Material in Transit

09. Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables
Other receivable

AMOUNT IN TAKA

30 June 2019 30 June 2018
131,765,057 116,704,856
68,796,884 88,525,184
56,841,205 53,384,884
136,813,352 97,791,850
2,492,660 2,012,359
1,692,200 1,282,397
142,100 104,937
214,100 173,749
187,451 166,982
158,332 143,811
123,082,013 104,726,823
522,185,354 465,017,832
22171979 17,652,951
414,018 397,494
22,585,997 18,050,445

Amount are receivables from customers mainly different hospitals, medical colleges, clinics, diagnostic centers. No
amount was due by the directors (including the Managing Director), managers and other officers of the
company or any of them either severally or jointly with any other person.

10. Advances, deposits & prepayments

a. Advances against
Salary
Expenses/works/others
Depot rent
Motor cycles-to employees
Income tax
Head office rent
Others

b. Deposits
Security money

c. Pre payments
Value Added Tax
Insurance premium

3,447,738 3,354,298
6,069,154 5,778,044
8,481,875 8,476,125
7,538,283 7,440,710 135

197,645,296 140,561,229
11,661,000 11,661,000
437,382 318,874
235,280,728 177,590,280
12,595,627 12,691,203
624,288 16,114,765

- 283,271

624,288 16,398,036
248,500,644 206,679,519
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11.

12.

AMOUNT IN TAKA

30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Cash & cash equivalents
This consists of:
a. Cash in hand 2,533,060 2,022,096
b. Cash at banks Note: 11.1 158,670,163 161,089,296
c¢. Imprest cash 9,750,000 6,902,773
170,953,223 170,014,165
Cash at banks with
a. With Islami Bank Bangladesh Ltd.
In SND Accounts 53,725,223 94,754,908
In MSA Accounts 705,450 652,984
In FCAD ERQ Accounts 2,294,260 2,119,091
b. With Al-Arafah Islami Bank Ltd. in SND Accounts 64,409,542 9,719,329
¢. With Prime Bank Ltd. in Current Account (Islamic banking branch) 29,741 31,235
d. With Shimanto Bank Ltd. in SND Account 18,045 19,425
d. With Shahjalal Islami Bank Ltd. in Current Account 9,916 9,916
e) With First Security Islami Bank Ltd. in SND Accounts 9,326,872 19,404,430
f) With Sonali Bank Ltd. in ERQ Account 520,520 358,344
g) With Sonali Bank Ltd. in STD Account 27,630,595 34,019,634
158,670,163 161,089,296
Share capital
Authorized capital
50,000,000 ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each 500,000,000 500,000,000
Issued, subscribed & paid-up
31,243,627 ordinary shares as on 30 June 2019 and
28,403,298 ordinary shares as on 30 June 2018 of 312,436,270 284,032,980
Tk. 10 each fully paid up in cash.
: Number of | Number of 2018-19 2017-18
Categories of shareholders shareholders shares holding % holding %
Sponsors 1 13,693,312 43.83% 43.83%
Institutions 227 5,971,697 19.11% 17.39%
General Public 11,520 11,578,618 37.06% 38.78%
11,748 31,243,627 100.00% 100.00%

The distribution schedule showing the number of share holders and their share holdings as on 30.06.2019 are as follows:

Range of holdings | No.ofHolders || Total Holdings Percentage
Less than 500 shares 8,618 1,901,442 6.09 %
500 to 5,000 shares 2,667 3,981,883 12.74%
5,001 to 10,000 shares 233 1,652,033 5.29%
10,001 to 20,000 shares 120 1,664,300 533%
20,001 to 30,000 shares 45 1,064,083 3.41%
30,001 to 40,000 shares 19 658,092 211 %
40,001 to 50,000 shares 16 701,355 2.24%
Above 50,000 shares 30 19,620,439 62.80%
11,748 31,243,627 100.00%

The shares are listed with the Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited and Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited. The
shares were quoted at Tk. 264.10 in the Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited and at Tk. 263.60 in the Chittagong

Stock Exchange Limited on 30.06.2019 respectively.
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13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Tax holiday reserve

This represents provision made out of profit of Tax Holiday period in accordance with section 45 (2B) and section

46A (2) of Income Tax Ordinance 1984.

Unrealised gain on marketable securities

Closing market value of marketable securities

Less: Cost of marketable securities

Unrealised gain before adjustment of deferred tax
Less: Deferred tax on unrealised gain (loss)

Net unrealised gain/(loss) on marketable securities

Retained earnings
Opening Balance
Reclassification adjustment
Dividend paid

Net profit during the year

Long term finance
Al-Arafah Islami Bank Ltd.
Current maturity transferred to current liability ~ Note -21

Loan amount represent the amounts which would be due for repayment after 12 (twelve) months from the date
of statement of financial position @ 13.50% of profit. The loan was taken from Al-Arafah Islami Bank Ltd. against
mortgage of 804 decimal land and 63, 811 square feet factory building located at Shafipur, Gazipur to import
capital machinery and motor vehicle under Hire Purchase Shirkatul Melk.

Retirement benefit obligations

Opening balance

Add: Provision made during the year

Less: Transfer to gratuity fund account and Paid to the
retired members during the year

Deferred tax liability

Deferred tax assets and liabilities have been recognised and measured in accordance with the provisions of IAS 12
Income Taxes. Related deferred tax (expense)/income have been disclosed in note 19. The components of

deferred tax assets and liabilities are given below:

AMOUNT IN TAKA

30 June 2019

30 June 2018

4,392,110

4,392,110

4,878,355 4,415,580
5,018,507 4,590,000
(140,152) (174,420)
(14,015) (17,442)
(126,137) (156,978)
938,940,466 552,873,744
- 24,144,138
(113,613,184) (90,374,130)
336,266,870 452,296,714
1,161,594,152 938,940,466
149,481,510 96,031,992
(23,572,102) (14,786,265)
125,909,408 81,245,727

17,252,564 13,241,445
37,426,245 41,254,812
(54,608,676) (37,243,693)
70,133 17,252,564

Particulars Carrying Tax base | Totwble (deductable) | | Applicable Deferrgfi tax
amount value |temporarydifference | | tax rate liability
Property, plant and equipment 1,684,778351 1,365,115149 319,663,202 25% 79,915,801
Gratuity 54,678,809 54,608,676 (70,133) 25% (17,533)
Unrealised gain on marketable securities (140,152) (140,152) 10% (14,015)
For the year 2018-19 1,739,317,008 1,419,723,825 319,452,918 79,884,252
Property, plant and equipment 1,409,800,123  1,172,662,174 237,137,950 25% 59,284,487
Gratuity 60,337,648 37,243,693  (23,093,955) 25% (5,773,489)
Unrealised gain on marketable securities (174,420) (174,420) 10% (17,442)
For the year 2017-18 1,469,963,351 1,209,905,867 213,869,575 53,493,557
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AMOUNT IN TAKA

30 June 2019 30 June 2018

19. Deferred tax (expenses)/income
Closing balance of deferred tax liability 79,884,252 53,493,557
Opening balance of deferred tax liabilities 53,493,557 80,513,227
Total deferred tax expenses/(income) 26,390,696 (27,019,670)
Less: Deferred tax expenses related to other comprehensive income (3,427) (32,182,506)
26,387,269 5,162,835
20. Short term finance 542,029,553 552,022,978
A. From Al-Arafah Islami Bank Ltd. 542,029,553 552,022,978

Loan amount represent the amounts which would be due for repayment within 12 (twelve) months from the date
of statement of financial position @ 13.50 % of profit and .25 % commission per quarter. The loan was taken from
Al-Arafah Islami Bank Ltd. against mortgage of 804 decimal land and 63, 811 square feet factory building located
at Shafipur, Gazipur to import Pharmaceuticals raw materials, imported goods and to purchase business items
from local market under Composite facilities LC/MPI/MPI TR/UPAS/ Baimuajjal agreement.

21. Current portion of long term finance
Al-Arafah Islami Bank Ltd.-Secured

The amounts represent current maturity of long term finance obtained from Al-Arafah Islami Bank Ltd. which are
repayable within next 12 (Twelve) months from the reporting date.

22. Trade and other payable

23,572,102

14,786,265

23,572,102

14,786,265

Payable to suppliers 201,468,578 171,872,571
Accrued expenses 114,236,046 99,222,546
Deposits from different parties 10,059,893 8,753,025
Others payable Note-22.1 80,348,645 67,087,768
406,113,163 346,935,910
22.1 Deposit from different parties
Share money deposit 14,848 14,848
138 Security money received from employees 10,045,045 8,738,177
10,059,893 8,753,025
. 22.1 Others payable
Unclaimed dividend 57,656,509 38,903,111
Workers' profit participation fund & welfare fund 22,692,136 28,184,657
80,348,645 67,087,768
23. Provision for corporate tax
Opening balance 148,791,079 114,155,184
Current tax expense Note-31 89,487,419 103,964,069
238,278,498 218,119,253
Adjusted during the year (65,681,652) (69,328,174)
172,596,846 148,791,079
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AMOUNT IN TAKA

01 July 2018 to

01 July 2017 to

30 June 2019 30 June 2018
24, Revenue
Local revenue 5,200,271,649 4,590,402,113
Export revenue 63,691,695 66,947,898
5,263,963,344 4,657,350,011
a. The above sales represent the following :
. 2018-2019 2017-2018
Product Group Unit
Quantity Amount Quantity Amount
Tablet Pcs 836,288,856 1,830,660,334 886,124,346 1,659,816,576
Capsule Pcs 196,728,588 1,161,419,918 198,144,688 1,132,496,056
Dry Syrup / ORS Bottle 19,234,296 281,178,753 17,989,346 276,976,947
Liquid Bottles Bottle 21,115,042 1,108,684,408 18,347,438 774,374,864
Drops Pcs 5,876,710 312,598,361 5,291,726 278,116,722
Ointment Pcs 4,004,799 124,356,063 3,754,112 131,830,897
Injection Pcs 4,244,458 445,065,507 3,896,046 403,737,950
Total Value 5,263,963,344 4,657,350,011
b. Timing of revenue recognition
Products transferred at a point in time 5,263,963,344 4,657,350,011
Products and services transferred over time - -
5,263,963,344 4,657,350,011
25.  Cost of goods sold
Raw materials consumed Note-25.1 1,599,796,570 1,433,349,053
Packing materials consumed Note-25.2 918,972,204 804,571,783
2,518,768,774 2,237,920,836
Opening work-in-process 53,384,884 43,928,563
Closing work-in-process (56,841,205) (53,384,884)
Total Consumption 2,515,312,453 2,228,464,515
Manufacturing expenses Note-26 646,287,810 592,219,113
Cost of Production 3,161,600,264 2,820,683,628
Opening finished goods 97,791,850 61,978,640
Closing finished goods (136,813,352) (97,791,850)
3,122,578,762 2,784,870,418
Cost of physicians’ samples (20,427,621) (20,150,382)
3,102,151,141 2,764,720,036
25.1 Raw materials consumed
Opening stock 116,704,856 88,563,456
Purchases 1,614,856,771 1,461,490,453
Closing stock (131,765,057) (116,704,856)
1,599,796,570 1,433,349,053
25.2 Packing materials consumed

Opening stock
Purchases
Closing stock

88,525,184 68,253,484
899,243,904 824,843,483
(68,796,884) (88,525,184)
918,972,204 804,571,783
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26. Manufacturing expenses

Salary, wages & allowances
Travelling & conveyance

Printing & stationery

Repairs & maintenance-building
Repairs & maintenance- machinery & equipment

Repairs & maintenance-vehicle & others

House rent

Medical expenses

Power & fuel

Training expenses
Insurance premium
Entertainment

Staff welfare

Telephone, fax, etc.

Fees & charges

Donation & subscription
Advertisement

News paper & periodicals
Staff uniform

Laboratory chemicals & stores
Indirect materials
Depreciation

140 Sundry expenses
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AMOUNT IN TAKA

01 July 2018 to

01 July 2017 to

30 June 2019 30 June 2018
342,151,172 297,249,847
2,298,107 2,522,650
1,872,979 1,975,771
5,346,861 8,400,721
54,542,049 34,336,520
6,526,499 6,833,725
3,018,997

2,411,091 1,893,249
75,660,283 92,869,788
528,448 715,025
6,384,170 5,507,447
654,860 1,095,090
23,003,948 23,148,223
799,741 759,951
2,082,940 3,450,227
70,000

184,743 298,220
36,163 152,374
1,197,917 1,447,337
7,394,377 6,253,106
6,439,400 5,264,261
106,756,214 94,931,278
15,850 25,307
646,287,810 592,219,113




AMOUNT IN TAKA

01 July 2018 to 01 July 2017 to

30 June 2019 30 June 2018
27. Administrative expenses
Salary, wages & allowances 65,773,500 57,211,507
Directors' remuneration 7,920,000 7,920,000
Directors' meeting fee 1,684,114 1,246,458
Travelling & conveyance 3,174,221 3,684,424
Repairs & maintenance-building & equipment 2,309,758 3,289,911
Repairs & maintenance-vehicle & others 2,336,356 2,887,631
Audit fees 230,000 201,250
Head office rent 17,597,390 16,250,650
Medical expenses 22,514 11,234
Postage & stamp 202,351 136,380
Training expenses 218,205 246,700
Insurance premium 392,180 354,704
Entertainment 1,602,981 2,382,012
Staff uniform 100,967 7,160
Staff welfare 2,629,780 2,640,077
Telephone, fax, etc. 1,068,455 874,413
Fees & charges 2,241,350 2,928,891
Bank Charge 519,908 1,195,409
Donation & subscription 536,240 24,500
Advertisement 1,630,617 1,670,287
News paper & periodicals 203,138 161,422
Printing & stationery 1,497,832 1,036,793
Water, electricity & gas 2,104,556 1,940,103 141
Annual general meeting expenses 3,256,968 2,417,937
Expenses relating to dividend 160,800 135,297
Depreciation 9,061,247 6,914,391
Sundry expenses 30,630 79,193
Expenses relating to CSR 3,759,130 1,500,000
132,265,190 119,348,734
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28. Selling & distribution expenses

Salary, wages & allowances
Travelling & conveyance
Head office & sales centres rent

Printing & stationery

Repairs & maintenance-building & equipment

Repairs & maintenance-vehicle & others

Medical expenses

Water, electricity & gas
Postage & stamp

Field forces conference expenses
Insurance premium
Entertainment

Training expenses

Staff welfare

Telephone, fax, etc.

Fees & charges

Donation & subscription
Advertisement

Incentive

Sales representatives conference
Detailing bag & brief case

Field personnel expenses
Product development expenses
Product pad & literature

Other promotional expenses
Physicians' samples

Market survey & research
Export expenses

Delivery expenses

Depreciation

Sundry expenses

Irrecoverable debts

Staff uniform

Bad debts
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AMOUNT IN TAKA

01 July 2018 to

01 July 2017 to

30 June 2019 30 June 2018
993,072,859 852,473,093
4,519,769 5,099,089
30,546,127 31,381,984
6,475,977 7,872,910
2,789,118 4,305,242
15,193,917 18,035,173
1,074,360 1,379,360
1,552,040 1,810,873
584,271 416,760
629,800 12,117,232
2,316,968 2,040,614
1,290,685 1,489,775
2,625,306 2,061,960
1,703,412 2,083,777
7,332,940 3,838,160
155,132 223,096
10,000 15,000
1,402,281 1,475,830
36,377,462 32,471,653
3,000,177

1,108,998 495,976
187,588,747 160,585,111
1,860,485 366,314
31,494,534 31,304,504
25,908,343 22,747,806
24,611,591 24,277,569
2,509,933 2,853,497
4,688,924 4,233,395
137,395,279 126,351,723
12,652,791 10,393,460
163,076 5,244
896,976 132,794
117,939 107,811
1,628

1,540,650,041

1,367,448,590




29. Other income

Dividend income

Profit on bank deposits

Gain on sale of Motor Vehicles

Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Gain/(Loss) on FCAD ERQ Accounts
Gain on sale of share

Miscellaneous income

30. Workers' profit participation fund & welfare fund

AMOUNT IN TAKA

01 July 2018 to

01 July 2017 to

30 June 2019 30 June 2018
414,018 397,494
2,471,655 2,861,176

- 2,082,011

(1,189,209) (774,317)

- 217,297,240

680,313 37,875
2,376,777 221,901,479
22,692,136 28,184,657

This represents 5% of net profit before tax after charging the contribution as per provision of the
Bangladesh Labour Act, 2006 and is payable to workers as defined in the said Act.

31. Current tax

This represents estimated Income Tax liability for the year made as follows:

Profit before tax

Add: Accounting depriciation

Less: Tax depreciation

Add: Gratuity provision

Less: Gratuity paid

Add: Share of loss from associate

Add: Free sample distribution expense

Add: Unrealized loss on foreign exchange

Less: Income from other sources for separate consideration
Business income

(a) Income tax on business income @25 %
Dividend income

(b) Income tax on dividend income @20 %, @25 %
Capital Gain from sale of shares

(c) Income tax on capital gain on shares @10 %
Gain on sale of motor vehicles

(d) Income tax on gain on motor vehicle @25 %
Total Current Tax (a+b+c+d)

32. Change in fair value of marketable securities
Closing value of marketable securities
Opening value of marketable securities

Details has been shown in Annexure B

452,141,557 561,423,618
128,470,252 112,239,130
(210,995,505) (133,708,772)
37,426,245 41,254,812
(54,608,676) (37,243,693)
1,701,171 2,269,527
2,708,226 -
1,189,209 -
(414,018) (219,776,745)
357,618,460 326,457,877
89,404,615 81,614,469
414,018 397,494
82,804 99,374
- 217,297,240
21,729,724
2,082,011
- 520,503
89,487,419 103,964,069
(140,152) 4,415,580
(174,420) 4,590,000
34,268 (174,420)
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33.1 Earnings per share (EPS)

Earnings attributable to the ordinary shareholders (net profit after tax)
Number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year

AMOUNT IN TAKA

01 July 2018 to

01 July 2017 to

30 June 2019 30 June 2018
336,266,870 452,296,714
31,243,627 31,243,627
10.76 14.48

Earning Per Share (EPS) increased during the year 2017-2018 due to disposal of investment in shares held under
available for sale assets. Gain on sale of share is an irregular income and due to its irregular nature this income
did not arose during the year 2018-2019 and hardly could be seen in near future.

33.2 Net Assets Value Per Share (NAV)

Net Assets Value

Number of Ordinary Shares outstanding during the year

1,478,296,395
31,243,627

1,227,208,578
31,243,627

47.32

39.28

Increase in NAV arise due to increase in revenue and decrease in percentage of operating expenses.

33.3 Net Operating Cash Flow Per Share (NOCFPS)

Net cash provided by operating activities

Divided by number of Ordinary Shares outstanding during the year

Increase in NOCFPS arise due to increase in collection from revenue and others.

33.4 Reconciliation of net profit with cash flows from operating activities

34,

Profit before tax (PBT)

Adjustments:

Depreciation

Unrealised foreign exchange loss

Share of associate profit/loss

Gain on sale of share

Gain on sale of motor vehicles

Dividend received

Interest Income

Change in operating assets

Increase in inventory

Increase in accounts receivables

Decrease in advances, deposits and prepayments
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payable
Increase/(decrease) in retirement benefit obligation
Tax paid during the year

Interest expense

Value of imports on CIF basis
Materials (raw & packing)
Components & spare parts
Capital goods
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433,364,937 192,411,424
31,243,627 31,243,627
13.87 6.16
452,141,557 561,423,618
128,470,252 112,239,130
1,189,209 774,317
1,701,171 2,269,527

- (217,297,240)

- (2,082,011)

(414,018) 397,494
(2,471,655) (2,861,176)
(57,167,521) (179,870,382)
(4,535,552) (3,407,594)
15,262,942 (21,847,729)
53,875,588 61,294,244
(17,182,431) 4,011,119
(122,765,719) (86,775,565)
(14,738,885) (35,856,327)
433,364,938 192,411,424
1,093,739 989,467

- 4,731

124,636 193,477
1,218,375 1,187,675




35. Installed capacity, actual production on single shift basis and reasons for
short-fall during the year ended 30 June 2019 & 2018 Quantity in Thousand
Product Group Unit 2018-2019 2017-2018
Installed Actual production Installed Actual production

Tablet Pcs 784,284 838,508 769,392 888,543
Capsule Pcs 217,602 216,347 207,870 221,747
Dry Syrup / ORS Bottle 33,573 18,347 27,112 13,719
Liquid Bottle 31171 24,628 23,192 22,593
Drops Pcs 5124 6,513 4,224 5,858
Ointment Pcs 12,565 4,589 5332 3,903
Injection Pcs 18,798 4,604 16,224 4,248

Production was made keeping in view market demand.

36.

Related party transactions

During the year, the company carried out transactions with related parties in the normal course of business and on
an arm'’s length basis. The name of related parties, relationship, types of transaction and their total value have
been set out in accordance with the provisions of IAS 24 "Related Party Disclosures”. Transaction with related
parties are executed on the same terms as those of other customers of similar credentials and do not involve more
than a normal risk.

Name of Related Parties Relationship Type of Transaction Value of Transaction
Sponsor shareholder o
The IBN SINA Trust holding 43.83 % shares Dividend payment 37,345,407
The IBN SINA Consumer Products Ltd. Associate Acquisition of Share Capital 40,000,000
37. Commitment and contingency

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

There was no contract for Capital Expenditure remaining to be executed and not provided for at 30 June 2019.

Credit Facilities not availed
There was no general nature of credit facilities available to the company under any contract other than trade
credit available in the ordinary course of business and not availed of as on 30 June 2019.

Brokerage or commission
No brokerage or discount other than usual trade discount against sales was paid during the year. As there was no
sales agent, commission therefor was not paid.

Payment for export
During the year under review US$ 7,750 equivalent to Tk. 692,171 have been paid for registration and consultancy fees.

Remittance of dividend
As there were no non-resident shareholders, no dividend was remitted to or received from abroad.

Foreign earnings

During the year the company (a) earned foreign exchange of US$ 672,060 and EURO 76,513 equivalent to
Tk.56,357,999 and Tk. 7,333,695 respectively on account of export sale, (b) but did not earn or receive any income
in respect of royalty, technical know-how, professional & advisory fees, interest & dividend.

Acknowledgement of claim and refund

There were aggregating claims of Tk. 48,559,518 in respect of assessment years 1997-98 , 2000-2001, 2002-
2003, 2003-2004, 2004-2005, 2007-2008, 2011-2012, 2012-2013, 2013-2014, 2014-2015, 2015-2016, 2016-
2017 and 2017-2018 respectively against the Company for Income Tax and there were aggregating refund of
Tk. 9,946,383 in favor of the company for Income Tax in different years but no asset or liability was recongnized
for the claims are refundables. The Company filed Income Tax Reference case with High Court Division of the
Supreme Court & Appeals remained pending and have applied for adjustment for remaining cases.
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a4,

45,

46.

Contingent liability
There was no contingent liability other than letters of credit outstanding for importation of raw & packing
materials, capital goods as on 30 June 2019.

Director’s responsibilty statement
The Board of Dicrectors take the reponsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial statements.

Financial risk management

The company management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the company's risk
management framework. Risk management policies, procedures and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect
changes in market conditions and the company's activities. The company has exposure to the following risks from
its use of financial instruments.

(a) Credit Risk  (b) Liquidity Risk  (c) Market Risk

46.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the company's receivables.

Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. As at
30 June 2019, substantial part of the receivables are as follows and subject to insignificant credit risk. Risk
exposures from other financial assets, i.e. Cash at bank and other external receivables are also nominal.

(i) Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to
credit risk at the reporting data was:

AMOUNT IN TAKA

30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Accounts receivable:
Advance to employees 3,447,738 3,354,298
Advance to supplies 6,069,145 5,778,044
Trade receivable 22,171,979 17,652,951
Other receivables 16,457,540 16,235,709
Security deposit 12,595,627 12,691,203
Imprest cash 9,750,000 6,902,773
Cash at bank 158,670,163 161,089,296

229,162,193 223,704,274

The aging of trade receivables at the reporting date is as follows:
Trade receivables
Not past due

Past due 1-180 days
Past due more than 180 days

22,171,979

17,652,951

To mitigate the credit risk against trade receivables, the company has a system of specific credit line period to the
customers. This outstanding period and amount are regularly monitored. The company endeavors to cover the
credit risks on all other receivables, where possible, by restricting credit facility and stringent monitoring.
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46.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
company's approach to managing liquidity (cash and cash equivalents) is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the company'’s reputation. Typically, the company ensures that
it has sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet expected operational expenses, including financial obligations
through preparation of the cash flow forecast, prepared based on time line of payment of the financial obligation
and accordingly arrange for sufficient liquidity/fund to make the expected payment within due date.

The carrying amount of financial liabilities represent the maximum exposure to liquidity risk. The maximum
exposure to liquidity risk as at 30 June 2019 was:

AMOUNT IN TAKA

30 June 2019 30 June 2018

Trade and other payables 201,468,578 171,872,571
Security money received from employees 10,059,893 8,753,025
Other current liabilities 80,348,645 67,087,768
291,877,116 247,713,364

46.3 Market Risk

47.

Market risk is the risk that any change in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect
the company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters.

(i) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rate. Exposure to fair value movement relates to fixed rate instrument subject to fair
value accounting and exposure to cash flow fluctuation relates to variable rate instruments. The Company is
primarily exposed to cash flow fluctuation arising from variable rate borrowings. The objective of interest rate
management for The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd. is to reduce financial cost and ensure predictability.

(ii) Currency risk

The company is exposed to currency risk on certain revenues and purchases such as revenue from foreign
customers and import of raw material, machineries and equipment. Majority of the company’s foreign currency
transactions are denominated in USD and relate to procurement of raw materials, machineries and equipment
from abroad.

Events after the reporting period

The Board of Directors at its 269th meeting held on 19 September 2019 recommended 30 % cash dividend to the
shareholders for the year ended 30 June 2019 which will be considered for approval by the shareholders at the
35th Annual General Meeting.
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Return on Shareholders Fund - - - - - - oo oo 53
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Total ReVENUE - - - - - oo 47, 49, 50
Operating profit - - - - - - - o oo 47, 49, 50
EPS oo 47, 49, 50
Any Specific accounting policies - - ----- oo 121-133
Shareholders FUNd - - - - - - - <o oo 136
Property Plant & Equipment - - - - - - - - _______ 134, 148
Net Current ASsSets - - - - - - oo ooom oo 47,117
Long Term Liabilities/Current Liabilities ------------- 117, 137-138
Gross Profit Ration - - - - - - - - - o oo 47,49
Earning before Interest, Depreciation and Tax ------——-----——_- 55
Price earning ratio - - - - - - << oo oo 47,55
Current Ratio - - - - oo 47,45
Return on Capital Employed --------oooooo 54
Debt Equity Ratio - - === - - - - oo oo 55
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Corporate Governance Disclosure Checklist

SI. No. Particulars Page No.
1 BOARD OF DIRECTORS, CHAIRMAN AND CEO
1.1 Company's policy on appointment of directors disclosed 63
1.2 | Adequate representation of non-executive directors i.e. one third of the board 64
subject to a minimum of two
1.3 | Atleast one independent director on the board and disclosure/affirmation of the 64
board on such director's independence
1.4 | Chairman to be independent of CEO 64
1.5 | Responsibilities of the Chairman of the board appropriately defined and disclosed. 64
Disclosure of independence of Non-Executive Directors
1.6 | Existence of a scheme for annual appraisal of the boards performance 65
and disclosure of the same
1.7 | Disclosure of policy on annual evaluation of the CEO by the Boar 65
1.8 | Disclosure of policy on training (including details of the counting training program) of
directors and type and nature of training courses organized for directors during the 65
year existence of a scheme for annual appraisal of the boards performance
1.9 | Atleast one director having through knowledge and expertise finance and accounting
to provide guidance in the matters applicable to accounting and auditing standards to 65
ensure reliable financial reporting
1.10 | Disclosure of number of meetings of the board and participation of each directors 65 61
(at least 4 meetings are required to be held) ’
1.11 | Directors issue a report on compliance with best practices on corporate governance 81 38
that is reviewed by external auditors ’
2 VISION/MISSION AND STRATEGY
2.1 Company's vision/mission statements are approved by the board 10
and disclosed in the annual report
2.2 | Identification of business objectives and areas of business focus disclosed 11,36
2.3 | General description of strategies to achieve the company’s business objectives 22
3 AUDIT COMMITTEES 153
3.1 | Appointment and Composition 66,73
3.1.1 | Whether the audit committee chairman is an independent Non-executive Director 73
and Professionally Qualified
3.1.2 | Whether it has specific terms of reference and whether it is empowered to 66 73
investigate/question employees and retain external counsel ’
3.1.3 | More than two thirds of the members are to be Non-Executive Directors 66,73
3.1.4 | All members of the audit committee to be suitably qualified and at least one member
to have expert knowledge of finance and accounting 66,73
3.1.5 | Head of internal audit to have direct access to audit committee 67
3.1.6 | The committee to meet at least 4 times a year and the number of meetings and 73
attendance by individuals members disclosed in the annual report
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SI. No. Particulars Page No.
32 OBJECTIVE AND ACTIVITIES
3.2.1 | Statement of Audit Committees review to ensure that internal controls are well 74
conceived properly administrative and satisfactorily monitored
3.2.2 | Statement to indicate audit committees role in ensuring compliance with laws, 73
regulations and timely settlements of statutory dues
3.3.3 | Statement of Audit Committee involvement in the review of external audit function
-Ensure effective coordination of external audit function
-Ensure independence of external auditors 74
-To review the external auditors findings in order to be satisfied that appropriate action is being taken|
-Review and approve any non audit work assigned to the external auditor and ensure
that such work does not compromise the independence of external auditors
-Recommend external auditor for appointment/reappointment
3.2.4 | Statement on Audit committee involvement in selection of appropriate accounting
policies that are in line with applicable accounting standards and annual review 74
3.2.5 | Statement on Audit committee involvement in the review and recommend to the 74
board of directors, annual and interim financial release
3.2.6 | Reliability of the management information used for such computation 66,74,78
4 INTERNAL CONTROL & RISK MANAGEMENT
4.1 Statement of director's responsibility to establish appropriate system of internal control 39
4.2 Narrative description of key features of the internal control system and the manner in 7374
which the system is monitored by the board, audit committee or senior management .
4.3 Statement that the directors have reviewed the adequacy of the system of internal controls 40
4.4 Disclosure of the identification of risk the company is exposed to both internally and externally 77,79,146
4.5 | Disclosure of the strategies adopted to manage and mitigate the risks 77-79,146
5 ETHICS AND COMPLIANCE
5.1 Disclosure of statement of ethics and values, covering basic principles such as
integrity, conflict of interest, compliance with laws and regulation etc 24,41
5.2 Dissemination/communication of the statement of ethics & business practices to all 24
directors and employees and their acknowledgement of the same
53 Board's statement on its commitment to establishing high level of ethics and 41
compliance within the organization
5.4 Establishing effective anti-fraud programs and controls, including effective protection 42
of whistle blowers, establishing a hot line reporting of irregularities etc
6 REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
6.1 Disclosure of the charter (role and responsibilities) of the committee 66,76
6.2 Disclosure of the composition of the committee (majority of the committee should be 6676
nonexecutive directors, but should also include some executive directors) 4
6.3 Disclosure of key policies with regard to remuneration of directors, senior
management and employees 75
6.4 Disclosure of number of meetings and work performed 66, 75-76
154 7 | HUMAN cAPITAL
71 Disclosure of general description of the policies and practices codified and adopted by
the company with respect Human Resource Development and Management, including 104
succession planning, merit based recruitment, performance appraisal system, promotion
and reward and motivation, training and development, grievance management and counseling
7.2 Organizational Chart 90
8 COMMUNICATION TO SHAREHOLDERS AND STAKEHOLDERS
8.1 Disclosure of the company's policy/strategy to facilitate effective communication with
43,62
shareholders and other stakeholders
8.2 Disclosure of company's policy on ensuring participation of shareholders in the Annual General 03
Meeting and providing reasonable opportunity for the shareholder participation in the AGM
9 ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL OBLIGATIONS
9.1 Disclosure of general description of the company's policies and practices relating to 67 69
social and environmental responsibility of the entity ’
9.2 Disclosure of specific activities undertaken by the entity in pursuance of these policies and practices 88
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The IBN SINA Pharmaceutical Industry Ltd.

Corporate Office : Tanin Center, 3 Asad Gate, Mirpur Road, Mohammadpur
Dhaka-1207, Bangladesh. Tel: 911 9564, 911 9839, 911 9840, 911 8853, 913 7538
website : www.ibnsinapharma.com, e-mail:shareipi@ibnsinapharma.com
Fax: 880-2-911 8847, Factory : Shafipur, Kaliakoir, Gazipur, Bangladesh




